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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	Introduction and background
	The Public Service Commission (PSC) has designed, piloted and implemented a Transversal M&E System (System) that it uses to evaluate the performance of Public Service departments against the nine constitutional values and principles (CVPs) governing public administration.  The System measures compliance against the nine CVPs, which may be regarded as an operational definition for “good governance”.  Through an assessment using the System, this report provides a status of the quality of governance of the Office of the Public Service Commission (OPSC) across nine performance areas as evident in the CVPs.
During an EXMA meeting it was decided by management to utilise the System to do a self-assessment of the OPSC for purposes of self reflecting and ongoing improvement of the OPSC’s administrative management practices.
The results of this assessment were presented to MANCO on 8 March 2011 with a request for comments.  The names and designations of persons who attended this meeting are attached as Appendix A.2 to this report.  Based on this interaction, comments were submitted, and incorporated into the Executive Summary.



	Reporting period
	This assessment of the OPSC was conducted during 2010/11 and covers the following periods:

· Principles 2, 6, and 7: Information was obtained from the PSC’s Annual Report for the 2009/10 financial year.

· Principles 1, 3 to 5 and 8 to 9: The most recent information obtained from the PSC up to 30 September 2010 is utilised, which is the date of the final draft report for the 2010/11 evaluation cycle.



	Methodology
	The methodology applied by the System in essence involves assessing the actual performance of the department against a set of indicators and standards – refer to Appendix B for a complete list of these indicators and standards per principle.  Evidence about the actual state of practice for the nine CVPs was obtained by collecting and assessing policy and other documents, conducting interviews with samples of relevant persons and assessing qualitative and quantitative data according to templates and measures.  By interrogating the evidence against the indicators and standards, a sense of the performance of the department against each of the nine CVPs was arrived at.

Based on the assessment, a score is awarded to the department.  The rating scale, consisting of five performance bands, is captured in the table below.

Performance band

Score description

Score

%

5

Excellent performance against all the standards

4,25 – 5,00

81% - 100%

4

Good performance against most of the standards

3,25 – 4,00

61% - 80%

3

Adequate performance against several of the standards

2,25 – 3,00

41% - 60%

2

Poor performance against most of the standards

1,25 – 2,00

21% - 40%

1

No performance against all the standards

0,25 - 1,00

0% - 20%

Since the same indicators are used year after year, the performance of a sample of departments in a specific year can be compared with the samples of previous years, departments can be compared with each other, and a department’s performance can be compared with its own performance in a previous year when that department comes up for re-assessment.

(The detailed assessment framework is available on the PSC’s web page: www.psc.gov.za and a concise document is attached as an Appendix to this report).



	Research steps
	The process followed in the assessment of the performance of departments is captured in Diagram 1 below. As can be seen, the PSC has adopted a process, which engages the department throughout the cycle, in order to deepen the understanding of the System and promote learning through the application of the System.
















	Final result of evaluation
	The following is a synopsis of how the PSC has scored under each principle for the evaluation cycle 2010/11.
Principle

Total Score
%

1. Professional Ethics

3,50
70%
2. Efficiency, Economy and Effectiveness

3,00
60%
3. Development-Oriented Public Administration

4,00
80%
4. Impartiality and Fairness

5,00
100%
5. Public Participation in Policy-making

4,00
100%
6. Accountability

5,00
100%
7. Transparency

4,50
90%
8. Good Human Resource Management and Career Development

2,50
50%
9. Representivity

3,50
70%
Total 

35,00
80%
Average 

4,00
80%
According to the above figures the PSC’s performance and compliance with the nine Constitutional values and principles is 80%, which is good performance against most of the principles.
Strengths

The PSC performed between excellent (100%) and good (70%) against the following 7 principles in the 2010/11 evaluation period:

Principle

Performance

Principle 4: Impartiality and Fairness
Excellent performance (100%)

Principle 5: Public Participation in Policy-making
Excellent performance (100%)

Principle 6: Accountability
Excellent performance (100%)

Principle 7: Transparency
Excellent performance (90%)

Principle 3: Development-Oriented Public Administration

Good performance (80%)
Principle 1: Professional Ethics
Good performance (70%)
Principle 9: Representivity

Good performance (70%)
The excellent and good performance against these 7 principles indicates that the PSC:

· Ensures that all decisions are taken in terms of legislation and by duly authorised officials.  These decisions are also clearly communicated and are done with fairness.
· Due to the oversight role of the PSC it does not develop policies that require engagement or inputs from the public and for public scrutiny.  However, the PSC hosts various workshops and seminars on its core areas of work, and thus ensures that departments’ assessed are involved in the process from the start till the findings of the report.

· Has good internal financial control measures in place, which are developed in accordance with the requirements of the PFMA and aligned with the PSC’s risk management plan.

· Is transparent to Parliament and the public on its activities, and allows government and the public to have access to its information, albeit some improvements are recommended.
· Although not directly involved in programmes/projects that aim to promote development and reduce poverty, interventions are made which mainly target the monitoring and evaluation of poverty reduction programmes initiated by other departments to establish the success of such programmes.

· Does not tolerate misconduct and ensures that such cases are resolved within the required timeframes set by Resolution 2 of the PSCBC.

· Attends to representivity in the workplace and takes cognisance of officials’ diverse cultures, habits and beliefs.
The PSC performed adequately against Principle 2: Efficiency, economy and effectiveness (60%) and Principle 8: Good Human Resource Management and Career Development Practices (50%).  The adequate performance against these two principles is mainly due to objectives which were not always achieved as planned, the long time taken to fill vacancies and inadequate skills development planning.


	Recommen-dations
	Sixteen recommendations are made in this report that needs to be implemented within specific time frames.  Within six months of receipt of this report, a follow-up will be conducted by the Chief Directorate: Governance Monitoring on the progress made with the implementation of these recommendations using the list of recommendations at Appendix C as template for a feedback report.  The number of recommendations per principle is captured in the Table below.
Principle

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Total

Recommendations

1
1
3
-
-
1
4
4
2
16
% of total

6%
6%
19%
6%
28%
28%
13%
100%



	Challenges
	No challenges were experienced. Information was readily available.


	

	1. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 1: PROFESSIONAL ETHICS

· A high standard of professional ethics must be promoted and maintained.



	Performance Indicator
	Cases of misconduct where a disciplinary hearing has been conducted, comply with the provisions of the Disciplinary Code and Procedures for the Public Service.



	Underlying Assumption
	Departments that effectively deal with cases of misconduct where a disciplinary hearing has been conducted are generally maintaining a higher standard of ethics than those departments that do not.


	Standards
	1. A procedure is in place for reporting, recording and managing cases of misconduct.
2. All the managers surveyed have a working knowledge of the system.

3. All of the most recent cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing is conducted are finalized within the time frame of 20 – 80 working days.
4. Management reporting is done on cases of misconduct and acted upon.

5. All the managers are capable to deal with cases of misconduct.
6. Frequent training is provided on the handling of cases of misconduct.



	Rating
	3,50 out of 5,00 (70%) = Good performance against most of the standards


	Results
	1. A policy/guideline on managing cases of misconduct is in place

The OPSC uses the Disciplinary Code and Procedure for the Public Service as a guide on how to handle cases of misconduct.  However, the results of the survey on managers’ working knowledge of the policy were unsatisfactorily.  Four out of the five sampled managers were not well informed of the policy and its provisions. 

2. Time taken to resolve the most recent cases of misconduct

Cases where a hearing has been conducted

The PSC takes on average 23 working days to finalise a case of misconduct, which falls within the 20 – 80 working day period of PSCBC Resolution 2 of 1999 as amended. 
Cases that went on appeal

No cases went on appeal.
3. Regular management reporting on cases of misconduct

Cases of misconduct are reported on a quarterly basis to the Specialist Team: Institution Building and Strategic Operations.  No management action was needed, because the one case reported was finalised within the prescribed time frame.  
4. Capacity of the OPSC to handle cases of misconduct 
According to the OPSC 10 (or 9%) out of the 113 supervisors and managers (assistant director to chief director) on the establishment are highly competent to deal with cases of misconduct.  This competency level falls within the standard of less than 20% set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  This finding confirms the finding on the survey conducted on five sampled managers that they are not well informed of the handling of misconduct cases and its prescripts.
4. Training on the management of cases of misconduct

The OPSC conducts quarterly induction sessions presented to all new appointees in the PSC, covering all aspects of PSCBC Resolution 1 of 2003, which includes the Code of Conduct and the handling of misconduct cases


	Recommen-dations
	1. A policy/guideline on managing cases of misconduct is in place

The OPSC should before the end of the 2011/12 financial year ensure that all managers attend a refresher course on the management of discipline.
2. Capacity of the OPSC to handle cases of misconduct 

The recommendation made at paragraph 1 above is reiterated, namely that the PSC should before the end of the 2011/12 financial year ensure that all managers attend a refresher course on the management of discipline.  This should be a priority for the PSC.



	Comments from the OPSC on the results of the report


	The OPSC did not submit any comments on the findings of this principle.

	


	2. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 2:  EFFICIENCY, ECONOMY AND EFFECTIVENESS

· Efficient economic and effective use of resources must be promoted



	Performance Indicators
	1. Expenditure is in accordance with the budget.

2. Programme outputs are clearly defined and there is credible evidence that they have been achieved.



	Underlying Assumption
	Departments that have good systems for budgetary control and for verifying progress against outputs are more likely to be effective than those do not.


	Standards
	1. Expenditure is as budgeted for and material variances are explained.

2.
More than half of each programme’s Performance Indicators (PIs) are measurable in terms of quantity, quality and time dimensions.

3.
Outputs, PIs and targets are clearly linked with each other as they appear in the strategic plan (SP), estimates of expenditure and the departmental annual report (AR) for the year under review.
4.
Programmes are implemented as planned or changes to implementation are reasonably explained.

	Rating
	3,00 out of 5,00 (60%) = Adequate performance against several of the standards


	Results
	1. Planned expenditure vs actual expenditure

The expenditure stated in the AR is as budgeted for in the ENE.  Under-expenditure was 0.01% of the amount voted for during the 2009/10 financial year which falls within the generally accepted margin of 2% set by National Treasury.  
2. The quality of the PSC’s PIs

More than half of each programme’s PIs (or 95% on average) were measurable in terms of time dimensions.  The outputs, PIs and targets are overall clearly linked with each other as they appear in the strategic plan, estimates of expenditure and annual report for the year under review.

3. The achievement of priority outputs

Overall the PSC has achieved 60 out of its 117 planned outputs for the 2009/10 financial year.  This represents a success rate of 51%.  Of concern is the low success rate of the PSC’s core functions, namely programmes 2 (46%), 3 (32%) and 4 (23%), which on average represents a success rate of only 34%.  The main reasons for this low achievement of priority outputs are due to additional research that had to be undertaken, the large amount of data that had to be processed, the lack of funding, and capacity constraints in key management positions in the PSC.  The latter could be linked to the slow process in filling vacancies, which took on average of 6 months established from 20 sampled posts – also refer to Principle 8 on the time taken to fill a vacancy.  Of concern is that all these factors can be linked to poor planning and processes.


	Recommen-dations
	The achievement of priority outputs

The PSC should, within the next financial year (2011/12), improve their project planning process to ensure that strategic decisions on the importance of a project in relation to the manpower and funds to complete the project and the strategic objectives of the PSC are taken before these are agreed upon outputs for the workplan.  Failure to do so will keep on impact negatively on the overall performance of the PSC’s core functions.  Likewise, it will dent the image of the PSC as a custodian of good governance.


	Comments from the OPSC on the results of the report


	The OPSC did not submit any comments on the findings of this principle.

	

	3. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 3: DEVELOPMENT ORIENTATION

· Public administration must be development oriented



	Performance indicator
	The Department is effectively involved in programmes/projects that aim to promote development and reduce poverty.



	Underlying Assumption
	Departments that effectively initiate and/or implement development projects to reduce poverty are more development oriented than those that do not.



	Standards
	1. Beneficiaries play an active role in the governance, designing and monitoring of projects.

2. A standardised project plan format is used showing:

a) All relevant details including measurable objectives.

b) Time frames (targets). 

c) Clear governance arrangements.

d) Detailed financial projections.

e) Review meetings.

f) Considering issues such as gender, the environment and HIV/AIDS.

3. Poverty reduction projects are aligned with local development plans.

4. Organisational learning takes place.

5. Projects are successfully initiated and/or implemented.



	Rating
	4,00 out of 5,00 (80%) = Good performance against most of the standards


	Results
	1. Participation of beneficiaries in the design of the project

The PSC is not directly involved in programmes/projects that aim to promote development and reduce poverty.  Interventions are mainly targeted at the monitoring and evaluation of poverty reduction programmes initiated by other departments to establish the success of such programmes.  Government departments are, therefore, indirect beneficiaries of the PSC’s assessment of poverty reduction programmes.

2. Good project management standards
More than half of the project proposals are of an acceptable project management standard.  However, of concern is that despite these good project management standards applied by the OPSC, it at times fails to adhere to project time frames.  This is mainly due to too many projects without considering capacity constraints and the scope/complexity of the project(s), which is indicative of poor strategic planning.
3. The alignment of programmes with local development plans

The PSC’s projects do not necessitate alignment with local development plans (LDPs).  However, when the PSC evaluates programmes, such as poverty reduction programmes or departments’ adherence to the nine CVPs, it ensures that departments have taken due cognisance of the alignment of their programmes/projects with LDPs.
4. A system for recording lessons learnt is in place
Although the PSC does have some form of identifying and recording lessons learnt, a formal and structured system has not been put in place.
5. Success of the projects
At least half the PSC’s evaluation projects achieved success in at least 51% - 100% of their objectives.  However, of concern is the lack of following-up on recommendations made at dialogues on the findings as well assessing the impact of these reports. 


	Recommen-dations
	1. Good project management standards
The PSC should ensure that:

· All project proposals for the 2012/13 financial year are completed prior to the strategic planning session for that period indicating the time (days) and capacity (human and financial resources) needed for completion of the project, as well as the risk involved if the project is not taken on.

· All projects are duly considered and prioritised (quantity or quality) against the scope/complexity of a project, the available human capacity, financial resources and risks attached to a project.

· Only those priority projects are taken on which can be completed within the available man-days and which can be properly financed.

The implementation of this recommendation will ensure that the PSC will produce reports of a higher quality because of better in-depth analyses.  Reports will be delivered timeously which in turn will have a better impact.
2. A system for recording lessons learnt is in place
The PSC should explore the possibility of putting in place a formal and structured system of recording lessons learnt.  This could be shared during branch and/or strategic planning sessions to enhance the execution of planned projects.
3. Success of the projects
The PSC should before the end of the 2011/12 financial year:

· Embark on a follow-up process on recommendations made at dialogues on the findings of reports on poverty reduction projects.

· Assess the impact of these reports to establish whether the assessment of poverty reduction programmes should remain a priority output or whether resources utilised in the execution of these projects could not be utilised better elsewhere in the organisation.



	Comments from the OPSC on the results of the report


	The OPSC did not submit any comments on the findings of this principle.

	

	4. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 4: IMPARTIALITY AND FAIRNESS

· Services must be provided impartially, fairly, equitably and without bias



	Performance indicator
	There is evidence that the Department follows the prescribed procedures of the Promotion of Administrative Justice Act (PAJA) when making administrative decisions.


	Underlying assumption
	Departments whose decisions are duly authorised and comply with the provisions of the PAJA are more likely to behave in a manner that is fair and impartial than those that do not.



	Standards
	1. All decisions are taken in accordance with prescribed legislation/policies and in terms of delegated authority.
2. All decisions are justified and fair considering the evidence submitted in this regard.
3. The procedures required in the PAJA in communicating administrative decisions are duly followed.


	Rating
	5,00 out of 5,00 (100%) = Excellent performance against all the standards


	Results
	The extent to which decisions are authorised
Decisions in terms of legislation/policies

The PSC fully considers the implications of all decisions made in terms of legislation and policies to ensure compliance with the PAJA in their decision-making processes.
Decisions in terms of delegations

Clear delegations of authority exist in the PSC and all 4 sampled decisions assessed were taken by duly authorised officials.
The decisions are just and fair

The content of the 4 sampled decisions showed that the decisions taken were just and fair, in terms of content, reasons for decisions, procedures prescribed by policies and actions taken.
The communication of administrative decisions

The assessment of all the sampled documents submitted showed that the PSC provided prior notice and opportunities to make representations before action is taken.  All decisions were clearly communicated with adequate notice of the right to appeal or review or request reasons for decisions.  Requests for the reasons for decisions were answered in at least one third of the cases reviewed.



	Recommen-dations


	None.


	Comments from the OPSC on the results of the report


	The OPSC did not submit any comments on the findings of this principle.

	

	5. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 5: PUBLIC PARTICIPATION IN POLICY-MAKING

· People’s needs must be responded to and the public must be encouraged to participate in policy-making


	Performance indicator


	The Department facilitates public participation in policy-making.

	Underlying assumption
	Departments that have a policy and system for procuring public inputs to their policy-making processes are more responsive than those that do not and are more likely to integrate public opinion into their final policies.



	Standards 
	1. A policy and guideline on public participation in policy-making is in place. 

2. A system for soliciting public inputs on key matters is in use and effectively implemented.

3. All policy inputs received from the public are acknowledged and formally considered. 


	Rating
	4,00 out of 4,00 = Excellent performance against all the standards


	Results
	The existence of a policy/ guidelines 
Due to the oversight role of the PSC it does not develop policies that require engagement or inputs from the public and for public scrutiny.  The PSC was, therefore, exempted from assessment against this standard.
The existence of a system for soliciting participation
The PSC did not only developed a step-by-step guide to holding citizens forums but also South Africa-specific drivers of citizen satisfaction as a model to determine the level of satisfaction amongst citizens in service delivery and in the process engaging citizens in the work of the PSC.  The PSC also hosts various workshops and seminars on its core areas of work, whilst the PSC’s Transversal M&E System (System) ensures that departments’ assessed are involved in the process from the start till the findings of the report.
The extent to which public comments are formally considered
The PSC in at least half the cases acknowledges and considers contributions.


	Recommendations

	None.

	Comments from the OPSC on the results of the report


	The OPSC did not submit any comments on the findings of this principle.

	

	6. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 6: ACCOUNTABILITY

· Public administration must be accountable


	Performance indicators
	1. Adequate internal financial controls and performance management are exerted over all departmental programmes.

2. Fraud prevention plans, based on thorough risk assessments, are in place and are implemented.



	Underlying assumptions
	1. Departments that implement internal financial controls, that exert performance management over all departmental programmes and that prepare and implement fraud prevention plans are operating accountably.

2. The Auditor-General’s assessments of departmental internal financial controls are an adequate review of their efficacy.


	Standards
	1. The Auditor-General’s assessments of internal financial controls conclude that they are adequate and effective.

2. A performance management (M&E) system on all departmental programmes is in operation.

3. Fraud prevention plans are based on a thorough risk assessment.

4. Fraud prevention plans are in place and are comprehensive and appropriate, and are implemented.

5. Key staff for ensuring implementation of fraud prevention plans, especially investigation of fraud, are in place and operational.



	Rating
	5,00 out of 5,00 (100%) = Excellent performance against all the standards.


	Results
	1. The adequacy of internal financial controls
The A-G issued an unqualified audit opinion and concluded that the internal control measures are adequate in all aspects with no areas flagged as needing attention.  The A-G, however, raised concerns about suppliers not being paid within 30 days after receipt of invoices.
2. The existence of a and operational performance management system
The PSC uses monthly and quarterly financial and non-financial reports to monitor performance.  The quarterly performance reports also reflect the deviation from the set targets and indicate the corrective measures to be taken to achieve them.  The PSC is also utilising existing National Transversal Systems such as BAS, PERSAL and LOGIS to generate data for performance reporting purposes.

3. A thorough risk assessment has been done

The PSC has clearly identified and addressed all activities and risks in a Risk Register.  The seriousness of each risk was assessed, prioritised and rated in terms of its likelihood and impact during the resent risk assessment conducted in June 2010.  Sufficient and appropriate internal control measures were devised to address the risks in the PSC.  These encompass, amongst others, a risk manager, risk champions, an outsourced internal audit service, as well as a fraud prevention and risk management committee.

4. The existence of a fraud prevention plan

A comprehensive and appropriate fraud prevention plan, based on a thorough risk assessment, is in place and complies 100% with the 13 requirements for a good FPP dealt with in Table 6.1 at the end of the Main Report.
5. The implementation of the fraud prevention plan

Fraud investigations are undertaken by staff members from line function and at least 80% to 100% of the FPP strategies have been implemented. 



	Recommen-dations
	1. The adequacy of internal financial controls
The PSC should with immediate effect assign the responsibility to an official to record the date on which all invoices have been received as well as doing a daily follow-up on the payment of each invoice to ensure that it has been paid within the 30 day period.


	Comments from the OPSC on the results of the report


	The OPSC commented as follows:
Internal financial controls
Receipt of invoices is already recorded in a commitment register, and a document clerk has been appointed to ensure updating of the register.  This duty is reflected in the incumbent’s Job Description and Work Plan.  In addition, EXMA has established time frames within which invoices must be dealt with.  The D-G also receives a weekly report on outstanding invoices and follow-up is made within the Office with relevant managers.
Risk assessment
Risk Assessments are conducted on a quarterly basis, through the updating of the Risk Register.

As at 11 March 2011, 97% of the strategies had been implemented, based on the FPP Implementation Plan. (Status report will be provided): Training on discipline outstanding.



	

	7. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 7: TRANSPARENCY

· Transparency must be fostered by providing the public with timely, accessible, and accurate information


	Performance indicators
	A. Departmental Annual Report (AR)

· The Departmental AR complies with National Treasury’s (NT) Guideline on Annual Reporting.

B. Access to Information

· The Department complies with the provisions of the Promotion of Access to Information Act (PAIA).



	Underlying assumptions
	Departments that prepare their AR in accordance with NT’s Guideline on Annual Reporting and adhere to the requirements of the PAIA are committed to transparency, accountability and effective governance in other areas.



	Standards
	A. Departmental AR

1. The AR is attractive and clearly presented and is well written in simple accessible language.

2. The content of the AR covers in sufficient detail at least 90% of the areas prescribed by NT and the Department of Public Service and Administration (DPSA)

3. The AR clearly reports on performance against predetermined outputs in at least two thirds of the programmes listed.

B. Access to Information

1. The Department has at least one deputy information officer (DIO) with duly delegated authority.

2. The Department does have a manual on access to information (MAI) in place that complies with the requirements of the PAIA.

3. A system for managing requests for access to information is in place.


	Rating
	4,50 out of 5,00 (90%) = Excellent performance against all the standards


	Results
	1. The Departmental AR
1.1 The presentation of the AR
The AR is attractive, concise, and easy to read and follows a logical sequence.  It is well written in simple, accessible language, albeit only in English which, narrows transparency on the PSC’s work.
1.2 The content of the AR
The PSC’s AR covers in sufficient detail 93% of the areas prescribed by NT.  The only two areas that need attention are reporting on maintenance and asset management.
1.3 Reporting on performance in the AR
The AR clearly reports on performance against predetermined outputs in at least two thirds of the programmes listed.  However, it was found that some projects and outputs that are reported on in the AR do not appear in the MTSP.
2. The implementation of PAIA
2.1 The appointment of Deputy Information Officers (DIO)
The PSC appointed five DIOs – one for each branch and one for communication and information services – with duly delegated authority to deal with request to access to information.  However, these DIOs were not appointed in writing as required by PAIA and their duties as a DIO do not form part of his/her job description and performance contract.
2.2 The availability of a Manual on Access to Information (MAI)
The PSC has a MAI in place, which complies with all the requirements set by Section 14 of the (PAIA), 2000 (Act 2 of 2000).
2.3 Procedures to handle requests for access to information
The PSC has a system in place to manage requests for access to information and appeals as prescribed by the PAIA.



	Recommen-dations
	1. The Departmental AR
2.1 The presentation of the AR
The AR needs to be translated into at least two other official languages to accommodate other ethnic groups.

1.4 The content of the AR
The PSC should ensure that the projects reported on in the AR for the 2010/11 financial year are exactly the same as what appears in the MTSP for the same period or provide a reason for omission or additional projects to prevent confusion between what is reported and what was indicated as planned in the MTSP.
2. The implementation of PAIA
2.1 The appointment of Deputy Information Officers (DIO)
The PSC should with immediate effect, in terms of Section 17 (6)(a) of PAIA, appoint the DIOs in writing and ensure that the duties of a DIO (Sections 18 to 49 of PAIA) are included in their job descriptions and performance contracts for the 2011/12 financial year.
The PSC should consider conducting training for its Deputy Information Officers
2.2 The availability of a Manual on Access to Information (MAI)
Although the MAI is translated into three official languages, the PSC should strive to translate the MAI into all the official languages albeit it is not a requirement.


	Comments from the OPSC on the results of the report


	The OPSC did not submit any comments on the findings of this principle.

	

	8. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 8: GOOD HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT AND CAREER-DEVELOPMENT PRACTICES

· Good human resource management and career-development practices, to maximise human potential, must be cultivated


	Performance indicators
	A. Recruitment 

· Vacant posts are filled in a timely and effective manner.

B. Skills Development 

· The Department complies with the provisions of the Skills Development Act.



	Underlying assumptions
	A. Recruitment 

1. Effective recruitment policies and practices are a key indicator of good human resource management practice.

2. Departments that handle recruitment effectively and which fill their posts quickly and well are more likely to be maximising human potential than those that are not.

B. Skills Development 

1. Skills needs analyses are good instruments for assessing training needs and departments that draw upon them to prepare training strategies are working according to best practice. 

2. Taking care to monitor performance against plan suggests that Departments are committed to real human resource development.



	Standards
	A. Recruitment

1. A recruitment policy complying with good practice standards and spelling out a detailed procedure is in place. 

2. Vacant posts are filled within 90 days – including advertisement time.

3. Regular management reporting on recruitment is done and acted upon.

B. Skills development 

1. A skills development plan, based on a thorough skills needs analysis, is in place 

2. Activities planned for are implemented 

3. The results achieved through skills development are monitored and recorded.



	Rating
	2,50 out of 5,00 (50%) = Adequate performance against several of the standards


	Results
	1. Recruitment

1.1 The existence of a policy on recruitment

The PSC has a detailed Recruitment and Selection Policy that complies with good practices and sound procedures.  It enshrines the principles of fairness, consistency, equity, transparency, confidentiality and merit. The Policy complies with all the legislative frameworks governing recruitment and selection in the Public Service, and with the standard set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.
1.2 Time taken to fill a vacancy

The average time taken to fill a vacant post is 156 days (6 months).  None of the 20 identified posts were filled within the standard time frame of 90 days set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  Of concern is the slowness in finalising the recruitment process, especially in respect of the excessive time taken before a vacant post is advertised (between 44 and 204 days), and the time for interviews to take place after the closing date of the advertisement (between 17 days and 69 days).  Fifty percent of the sampled posts were affected by the slow process of which 7 posts were on middle management level, and 3 posts on senior management level.  According to the PSC the long time taken to fill vacancies is due to unavailability of panel members and short listed candidates on the date of the interviews.
1.3 Regular management reporting on recruitment

Monthly management reporting on recruitment is done.  Definite action is taken by management to address challenges regarding the establishment as reflected in the reports.  However, of concern is that despite the monthly progress reports to EXCO and EXMA, and that recruitment challenges are seemingly been addressed during these meetings, the recruitment process remained exceedingly long (6 months).  This is an indication that either the information provided to management was not sufficient enough to propose informed strategies for improvement, or that management’s proposed actions were not implemented.
2. Skills Development

2.1 The existence of a skills development plan

The PSC has a comprehensive workplace skills development plan (WSDP) in place.  However, it is not clear which skills are already possessed by staff per post due to the fact that a skills audit exercise has not yet been conducted.
2.1 Performance against the skills development plan

The PSC was able to implement 75 (or 34%) of the planned skills development activities.  The majority of the training (61%) was provided to managers and professionals, whilst only 39% of the training was provided to clerks and elementary occupations.  The unevenness of training provided is of concern, especially in the absence of a knowledge base on the skills already possessed by staff.  It is also been noticed that none of the disabled officials on the establishment were considered or trained to enhance their capabilities, knowledge or performance.  The impact of the implemented skills development activities on the service delivery of the PSC was not assessed.


	Recommen-dations
	1. Recruitment

1.1 Time taken to fill a vacancy

Measures should be put in place immediately to ensure that vacancies are advertised soon after a resignation has been received, and that interviews should take place within 30 days after the closing date of the advertisement.  A good strategy is to split the recruitment process as follows:  30 days as running period for the vacancy; 30 days to complete the short listing and interviews; and 30 days to obtain approval and appoint the successful candidate.  Adhering to this guideline will ensure that vacancies are filled in a timely manner and that service delivery is not affected negatively.
1.2 Regular management reporting on recruitment

The Deputy Director-General: Corporate Services, with immediate affect should ensure that monthly progress reports to management at least include the following:

· The post designation.

· The date the post became vacant.

· The date on which the post was advertised.

· The date of appointment.

· The reason(s) for delay(s).

Providing this information to EXCO and EXMA will enable management to take informed decisions about strategies for improvement.
2. Skills Development

2.1 The existence of a skills development plan

The PSC should with immediate effect conduct a skills audit on the skills already possessed by all officials.  This will enable the Office to put an informed strategy in place for providing focussed training to close the skills gap.

2.2 Performance against the skills development plan

The PSC should annually:

· Ensure that planned skills development activities are aligned with the skills gap identified through a skills audit.
· Evaluate the impact of skills improvement on the PSC’s service delivery.

The implementation of this recommendation will assist the PSC to provide focussed training and ensure improvement in service delivery.



	Comments from the OPSC on the results of the report


	The OPSC did not submit any comments on the findings of this principle.

	

	9. CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLE 9: REPRESENTIVITY

· Public administration must be broadly representative of SA people


	Performance indicator 
	The Department is representative of the South African people and is implementing diversity management measures.



	Underlying assumptions
	If Departments meet all their representivity targets and demonstrate sound approaches to diversity management, then they are likely to become representative in due course without compromising personnel management practices based on ability, objectivity and fairness.



	Standards 
	1. An employment equity policy and plan are in place and reported upon.

2. All representivity targets are met.

3. Diversity management measures are implemented.



	Rating
	3,50 out of 5,00 (70%) = Good performance against most of the standards


	Results
	1. The existence of an employment equity policy and plan

Compliance of the employment equity policy with section 1 of the EEA
The PSC has a draft Employment Equity Policy (EE Policy) which complies with 79% of the requirements of section 1 of the Employment Equity Act, 1998, (Act No. 55 of 1998).  The EE policy is not been approved yet.

Compliance of the employment equity plan with section 20 of the EEA
The PSC has an approved Employment Equity Plan (EEP) the period 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2010 that complies with 70% of the requirement of section 20 of the Employment Equity Act, 1998, (Act No. 55 of 1998).

Documents have been submitted to the Department of Labour
None of these documents have been submitted to the Department of Labour.
2. The achievement of representivity targets

At the end of the 2009/10 financial year the PSC had 88% Blacks at senior management level, which is in excess of 13% against the target of 75% set for 30 April 2005.  Women at all senior management levels comprise 40%, which represents a deficit of 10% against the target of 50% set for 31 March 2009.  However, the PSC is commended for having 2,2% people with disability on middle management level its employ, which is a surplus of 0,2% against the target of 2%.  The PSC thus achieved 2 of the three national targets.  However, of concern are the imbalances which occur in respect of the following areas despite the fact that representivity targets and figures are regularly discussed at EXMA, EXCO and plenary:

· The number of Blacks on the overall establishment (90%) against the Black economically active population in the Province which, according to STATSA, was 82% in 2003;

· The PSC’s own target for 89% Blacks on its establishment, which is still 7% above the Black economically active population in the Province;

· The excess of 13% Blacks at senior management level against the national target of 75%; and
· Targets which have not been set for top management posts, despite the deficit of 10% women and 13% excess of Blacks at top and senior management levels.
3. Regular management reporting on representivity
Apart from the annual report to the Department of Labour, the implementation of and progress with the employment equity plan are discussed by management at EXMA.  Representivity figures are submitted to EXCO and Plenary.  Evidence on management’s action on these reports is available.  Of concern, though, is that the imbalances which occur are seemingly not addressed despite this progress reports on representivity.
4. The implementation of diversity management measures

Comprehensive measures regarding diversity management have been implemented.  The PSC is applying transversal and national policies as well as frameworks to enhance equity and diversity management.  Measures have been put in place to sensitize its employees on diversity issues.  The only areas that need attention are the advertisement of vacancies in more than one language, the Office’s workspace, the lifts and air condition and the drafting of a policy against workplace bullying.


	Recommen-dations
	1. The existence of an employment equity policy and plan

The PSC should before the end of the 2010/11 financial year:

· Review both the EE Policy and EE Plan to ensure that it complies with all the requirements of sections 1 and 20 of the Employment Equity Act, 1998, (Act No 55 of 1998).

· Ensure that both the EE Policy and EE Plan are approved.

· Ensure that both these documents are submitted to the Department of Labour.
2. The achievement of representivity targets

The PSC should with immediate effect address the representivity imbalances which occur in respect of the overall number of Blacks on the establishment in relation to the Black economically active population in the Province, and the number of women at top and senior management level.


	Comments from the OPSC on the results of the report


	The OPSC did not submit any comments on the findings of this principle.



MAIN REPORT

Principle 1:  Professional Ethics 

	Background



	1. Constitutional Principal


	A high standard of professional ethics must be promoted and maintained.

	2. Performance Indicator
	Cases of misconduct where a disciplinary hearing has been conducted, comply with the provisions of the Disciplinary Code and Procedures for the Public Service.



	3. Standards and scores
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

1. A policy/guideline on managing cases of misconduct is in place

· A policy/guideline document is in place that sets out the procedure and time frames to be followed when handling cases of misconduct. 

· All the managers surveyed have a working knowledge of the system.
0,50

0,50
2. Time taken to resolve the most recent cases of misconduct

· 80% to 100% of the most recent cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing was conducted were finalised within the time frame of 20 – 80 working days.

OR

· 60% to 79% of the most recent cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing was conducted were finalised within the time frame of 20 – 80 working days. 

OR

· 40% to 59% of the most recent cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing was conducted were finalised within the time frame of 20 – 80 working days.

OR

· 20% to 39% of the most recent cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing was conducted were finalised within the time frame of 20 – 80 working days.

OR

· Less than 20% of the most recent cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing was conducted were finalised within the time frame of 20 – 80 working days.
1,00
0,75

0,50

0,25

0,00
3. Regular management reporting on cases of misconduct
· Cases of misconduct are regularly reported upon in management reports. 

· Evidence on management’s response/actions on these reports is available.
0,50

0,50
4. Capacity of the Department to handle misconduct cases

· 80% to 100% of the managers are highly competent to deal with cases of misconduct.

OR

· 60% to 79% of the managers are highly competent to deal with cases of misconduct.

OR

· 40% to 59% of the managers are highly competent to deal with cases of misconduct.

OR

· 20% to 39% of the managers are highly competent to deal with cases of misconduct. 

OR

· Less than 20% of the managers are highly competent to deal with cases of misconduct.
1,00

0,75

0,50

0,25

0,00

5. Training on the management of cases of misconduct
The managing of cases of misconduct is reflected in training materials and is covered in capacity building processes.

1,00
Maximum possible score
5,00



	Assessment



	4. A policy/ guideline on managing cases of misconduct is in place
	Overview:
1. Existence of policy/guideline document

The PSC does not have its own policy but adopted the Public Sector Co-ordinating Bargaining Council (PSCBC) Resolution 2 of 199 as amended by the Resolution 1 of 2003, which includes the prescribed “Disciplinary Code and Procedures” for the public service. 

2. Supervision of cases of misconduct within the PSC
Mr. S. S. Malema, Deputy Director: Human Resource Development supervises reported cases of misconduct.
3. Reporting level

The Deputy Director: Human Resource Development reports to Mr. H. A. Maluleke, Director: Human Resource Management and Development.
4. Preliminary investigation

Investigating Officers are appointed prior to disciplinary hearing to establish possible action(s).
5. Appointment of investigating officers, employer representatives and hearing chairpersons
The Director-General appoints the chairperson of the hearing including employer representatives.
Survey on managers’ working knowledge of policy:

Five sampled managers were interviewed with a view to determine their general awareness on the application of the policy/guideline.  Based on their responses, it was deduced that they have no understanding of the policy/guideline, from counselling to dealing with serious misconduct cases.  Table 1.1 below provides an overview of the managers’ responses during interviews. 

Table 1.1:
Survey of directors’ working knowledge of misconduct procedures

Manager

Overview of response
Has a working knowledge of the procedures YES/NO
Manager 1

The manager indicated that he will consult the Directorate: HRMD in the event of a misconduct case for guidance. The Manager has limited knowledge. 

No
Manager 2
The manager explained the procedures to be followed in detail. 

Yes
Manager 3
The manager has limited knowledge. She did not mention Resolution 1 of 2003, she only mentioned the Labour Relations Act, which is secondary in the Public Service. 

No
Manager 4
The manager has limited knowledge in the management of misconduct cases.  He indicated that he has not yet applied such document in his working experience. 

No
Manager 5
The manager has limited experience.  He indicated to have never applied the document to any of his supervisees. 

No
Rating:

The PSC has adopted the Public Service Co-ordinating Bargaining Council’s (PSCBC) Resolution No. 2 of 1999 as amended in Resolution No.1 of 2003, which includes the prescribed “Disciplinary Code and Procedures for the Public Service” as internal policy for the handling of misconduct cases.  The PSC complies with this standard of the PSC’s Transversal M&E System, therefore a full score of 0,50 is awarded.

Only one of the five sampled managers interviewed have a working knowledge of the PSCBC Resolution No. 2 of 1999 as amended in Resolution No.1 of 2003.  The remaining four officials have no understanding of the policy/guideline, from counselling to dealing with serious misconduct cases.  A score of 0,00 out 0,50 is awarded.  The conclusion is that all managers need to go on a refresher course on the content of PSCBC Resolution No. 2 of 1999.
Area for improvement:

The PSC should ensure that all managers before the end of the 2011/12 financial year attend a refresher course on the management of discipline.


	5. Time taken to resolve the most recent cases of misconduct
	Overview:

Cases where a disciplinary hearing was conducted

1. Average length of time taken to process cases
One cases of misconduct was submitted for assessment– refer to Table 1.2 at the end of this report.  It takes the PSC on average 23 working days to process and finalise a case of misconduct.  A verdict of guilty was obtained.  Given the prescribed steps that should be followed in accordance with the Disciplinary Code and Procedures, as well as the degree of complexity in the nature of the case, the average length of 23 working days, which the PSC spends to fully process a case of misconduct, is acceptable.

2. Number of cases preceding year (2008/2009)

During the 2008/09 financial year two cases of misconduct occurred where a hearing was conducted.
3. Pending cases: There were no pending cases at the end of the 2009/10 financial year.
4. Most common offence was that of misconduct
Appeals

1. Number of cases that went on appeal

There were no cases that went o appeal.
Rating:

The PSC takes on average 23 working days to finalise a case of misconduct, which falls within the 20 – 80 working day period of PSCBC Resolution 2 of 1999 as amended.  A full score of 1,00 is awarded.


	6. Regular management reporting on cases of misconduct
	Overview:

1. Availability of regular management reports on cases of misconduct
Cases of misconduct are reported on a quarterly basis to the Specialist Team: Institution Building and Strategic Operations.
2. Management’s response/action on these reports
Since cases are finalised within the prescribed time frame, it not necessary for management to suggest any action for speeding up the process.
Rating:

Cases of misconduct are regularly reported to Plenary Sessions.  No management action was needed, because the one case reported was finalised within the prescribed time frame.  A full score of 1,00 is awarded.


	7. Capacity of the Department to handle cases of misconduct
	Overview:

Table 1.3 below indicates the PSC’s assessment of the number and competency level of managers to deal with misconduct cases:

Table 1.3:
Competency level of managers to deal with cases of misconduct

Salary Band
Number of Officials on the Establishment
Number of Officials

Competence

Still gaining experience – Less than 1 year experience

Adequate – More than 1 year but less than 3years experience

Highly competent – Three years and more experience

Percentage of Highly Competent Officials for Salary Band

Assistant Director

31

2
1
3
10%
Deputy Director

45

3
3
3
7%
Director

31

2
3
10%
Chief Director

6

2
1
17%
TOTAL

113
6
8
10
9%
According to the PSC’s own assessment 89 (or 79%) out of the 113 officials from assistant director to chief director do not have the necessary knowledge to deal with cases of misconduct should it occur.  This confirms the finding on the survey conducted on five sampled managers to establish their working knowledge of PSCBC Resolution 2 of 1999 as amended.  The PSC is further of the opinion that 6 of the 113 officials are still gaining experience, whilst 8 officials’ experience is adequate and 10 officials are highly competent in dealing with cases of misconduct.
Rating:

According to the PSC 10 (or 9%) out of the 113 supervisors and managers (assistant director to chief director) on the establishment are highly competent to deal with cases of misconduct.  This competency level falls within the standard of less than 20% set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E System for a score of 0,00 out of 1,00.
Area for improvement:

The recommendation made at paragraph 4 is reiterated, namely that the PSC should ensure that all managers before the end of the 2011/12 financial year be trained about the content of PSCBC Resolution No. 2 of 1999 (as amended), which caters for the management of cases of misconduct.  This should be a priority for the PSC.



	8. Training on the management of cases of misconduct
	Overview:

1. Existence of training material

The Disciplinary Code and Procedure for the Public Service, PSCBC Resolution 1 of 2003 is outlined in the PSC induction manual.  Furthermore, session is provided to the officials responsible for labour matters to present to attendees. 

2. Content of training material

The material provides an overview of misconduct cases.  The session is interactive whereby practical cases of misconduct are discussed and the delegates are afforded an opportunity to ask questions or comment on such cases.

3. Frequency of training 

Quarterly training is provided to newly appointed employees between salary levels 1-12 as part of an induction course.
4. Prominence of Code of Conduct

Presentation of an overview on the Code of conduct for the public service. 

Rating:

The PSC conducts quarterly an induction session presented to all new appointees in the PSC, covering all aspects of PSCBC Resolution 1 of 2003, which includes the Code of Conduct and the handling of misconduct cases.  A full score of 1,00 is awarded.



	Rating



	9. Score
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

1. A policy/guideline on managing cases of misconduct is in place

· A policy/guideline document is in place that sets out the procedure and time frames to be followed when handling cases of misconduct. 

· All the managers surveyed have a working knowledge of the system.
0,50

0,00
2. Time taken to resolve the most recent cases of misconduct

80% to 100% of the most recent cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing was conducted were finalised within the time frame of 20 – 80 working days.
1,00
3. Regular management reporting on cases of misconduct
· Cases of misconduct are regularly reported upon in management reports. 

· Evidence on management’s response/actions on these reports is available.
0,50
0,50
4. Capacity of the Department to handle misconduct cases

Less than 20% of the managers are highly competent to deal with cases of misconduct.
0,00
5. Training on the management of cases of misconduct
The managing of cases of misconduct is reflected in training materials and is covered in capacity building processes.

1,00
Total score
3,50


	Sources
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Table 1.2 – Overview of the most recent cases of misconduct where a disciplinary hearing has been conducted

	Post Designation
	Nature of offence

(Annexure A of Disciplinary Code)
	Number of Working Days Spent on Misconduct Cases where a Disciplinary Hearing was Conducted
	Outcome of case

(Guilty/

Not guilty)
	Did it go

on Appeal

(Yes/No)
	Number of Working Days Spent on Appeal Cases
	Decision

Varied

on Appeal

(Yes/No)
	Dispute

Declared –

Referred

to Sectoral

Council

(Yes/No)
	Decision

Varied in

Sectoral

Council

(Yes/No)
	Comments

	
	
	Date of

Notice of Discipli-nary Enquiry
	Date of Final Conclu-sion of Discipli-nary Hearing
	Total Number of Working Days Spent on Case
	
	
	Date Case Went on Appeal
	Date Fina-lised
	Total Number of Working Days Spent on Appeal Case
	
	
	
	

	1. ASD
	Misconduct
	11/11/09
	14/12/09
	23
	Not guilty
	No
	N/A
	N/A
	N/A
	N/A
	N/A
	N/A
	

	TOTAL WORKING DAYS SPENT
	23
	TOTAL WORKING DAYS SPENT
	
	

	AVERAGE WORKING DAYS
	23
	AVERAGE WORKING DAYS
	
	

	AVERAGE WORKING WEEKS
	5
	AVERAGE WORKING WEEKS
	
	

	AVERAGE WORKING MONTHS
	1
	AVERAGE WORKING MONTHS
	
	


Principle 2:  Efficiency, Economy and Effectiveness

	Background



	1. Constitutional principle


	Efficient, economic and effective use of resources must be promoted

	2. Performance indicator
	1. Expenditure is in accordance with the budget.

2. Programme outputs are clearly defined and there is credible evidence that they have been achieved.



	3. Standards and scores
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

Planned expenditure vs actual expenditure
· Expenditure stated in the AR is as budget for in the estimates of expenditure.

· Material variances are explained.
0,50
0,50
The quality if the Department’s Performance Indicators
· More than half of each programme’s PIs are measurable in terms of quantity, quality and time dimensions.

· Outputs, PIs and targets are clearly linked with each other as they appear in the SP, estimates of expenditure and the AR for the year under review (the annual report, the strategic plan and the department’s budget must be consistent).

0,50

0,50

The achievement of priority outputs
· 80% and more of the priority outputs have been met.
OR

· 60% - 79% of the priority outputs have been met. 

OR

· 40% - 59% of the priority outputs have been met. 

OR

· Less than 40% of the priority outputs have been met.

3,00

2,00
1,00

0,50

Maximum possible score

5,00



	Assessment



	4. Planned Expenditure vs. Actual Expenditure
	Overview

Expenditure stated in the AR is as budgeted for in the estimates of expenditure

During the 2009/10 financial year an amount of R131 841 00 million was allocated to the PSC after adjusted appropriation.  Expenditure for the said period was R131 789 000 million resulting in an under-expenditure of 0.01% of the amount voted, which is within the generally accepted margin of 2% - for detail refer to Table 2.1 and the end of this report.
Material variations between expenditure and amount voted per programme

Material variations between the PSC’s expenditure and the amount voted are listed in the Table below:
Programme

% Variation
1. Administration

99.9%

2. Leadership and Management Practices

100%

3. Monitoring and Evaluation

100%

4. Integrity and Anti-Corruption

100%

Variation on total budget
99.9%
Since none of the programmes’ expenditure exceeded National Treasury’s generally accepted margin of 2% it was not necessary for the Auditor-General to provide reasons for deviations.
Rating:

The expenditure stated in the AR is as budgeted for in the ENE.  Under-expenditure was 0.01% of the amount voted for during the 2009/10 financial year which falls within the generally accepted margin of 2% set by National Treasury.  A full score of 1,00 is awarded.



	5. The quality of the Department’s PIs
	Overview:

Measurability of outputs and indicators

The PSC’s outputs, targets and PIs as they appear in the SP for 2009/10, the estimates of expenditure for 2009/10 and the AR for 2009/10 were analysed to determine whether they are measurable in terms of quality, quantity and time dimensions.  The measurability of the PIs per programme is summarised in the Table below (for more detail refer to Table 2.2 and the end of this report):
Programme

Number of PIs

Number PIs measurable in terms of quantity and time dimensions
% PIs measurable in terms of quantity and time dimensions
1. Administration

47
44
94%

2. Leadership and Management Practices

26

24
92%

3. Monitoring and Evaluation

22
22
100%

4. Integrity and Anti-Corruption

22

21
95%

Total

117
111
95%
It was found that 111 (95%) of the 117 PIs were measurable in terms of time dimensions.
Clear linkage of outputs and indicators
The outputs, PIs and targets are overall clearly linked with each other as they appear in the strategic plan, estimates of expenditure and annual report for the year under review.  
Rating:

Measurability of outputs and indicators

More than half of each programme’s PIs (or 95% on average) were measurable in terms of time dimensions.  A full score of 0,50 is awarded.

Clear linkage of outputs and indicators
The outputs, PIs and targets are overall clearly linked with each other as they appear in the strategic plan, estimates of expenditure and annual report for the year under review.  A full score of 0,50 is awarded.


	6. The achievement of priority outputs
	Overview:

To determine whether the PSC has succeeded in achieving its priority outputs, each programme’s outputs were compared with the achievements as they were reported on in the AR for the period 2009/10.  Partially achieved outputs were regarded as not achieved, ongoing outputs were regarded as achieved and those outputs, which changed during the course of the year, were not taken into account.

According to the PSC, the following percentage of priority outputs per programme was achieved (For more detail refer to Table 2.2 at the end of this report on this principle):

Programme
Number of priority outputs set to do
Number of outputs achieved
% of outputs achieved

1. Administration

47
36
77%

2. Leadership and Management Practices

26

12
46%

3. Monitoring and Evaluation

22
7
32%

4. Integrity and Anti-Corruption

22

5
23%

Total

117
60
51%
Overall, the PSC has achieved 60 out of the 117 planned outputs for the 2009/10 financial year.  This represents a success rate of 51%.  Out of the 4 programmes, which performance was reported on, Programmes 2, 3 and 4 scored lower than 50% ranging from 23% to 46% of achievement of outputs.  In areas where the outputs were not met, reasons were provided.
The extent to which the PSC has achieved its planned priority outputs under the individual programmes for the 2009/10 financial year, is discussed hereafter:

Programme 1: Administration
Programme 1 achieved 36 out of the 47 planned outputs which represents a success rate of 77%.  Adequate explanation was provided for the non-achievement of outputs.  A further analysis of the performance per sub-programme reveals that the poor formulation of outputs and the non-alignment of achievements with the planned outputs and PIs were the main reasons for the low success rate of sub-programmes 2, 3, 4, 7, 8, and 9 – refer to Table below.  As a result, the achievements of these sub-programmes could not be validated.
Sub-programme

% Achieve-ment of outputs

Reason(s) for non-achievement of outputs

1. Internal Audit
100%
2. Financial Management & Administration
66%
Achievement, output and PI not aligned.
3. Supply Chain Management
75%
Poor formulation of PI.
4. Property Management
66%
Poor formulation of PI.
5. Security Services
100%
6. Communication & Information Services
90%
Late submission of articles by contributors.
7. Information Technology
78%
Achievement not aligned with planned output.  Budgetary constraints.
8. Human Resource Management

50%

Budgetary Constraints.

9. Human Resource Development
50%
Achievement, output and PI not aligned.
Programme 2: Leadership and Management Practices 
Programme 2 achieved 12 out of the 26 planned outputs which represents a success rate of 46%.  Adequate explanation was provided for the non-achievement of outputs.   The main reasons for this low success rate were, for example, additional research that needs to be conducted (5 outputs/projects), postponements which occurred outside the PSC’s control (4 outputs/projects), and achievements which were not reported in line with the PIs (3 outputs/projects).
Programme 3: Monitoring and Evaluation
Programme 3 achieved 7 out of the 22 planned outputs which represents a success rate of 32%.  Adequate explanation was provided for the non-achievement of outputs.   The main reasons for this low success rate were amongst others, the amount of data that had to be processed linked to the number of reports which had to be completed (4 outputs/projects), additional research (3 outputs/projects), difficulties in securing a suitable date in the diaries of high level participants (2 outputs/projects), and capacity constraints in key management positions in the PSC.  The latter could be linked to the slow process in filling vacancies, which took on average of 6 months established from 20 sampled posts – also refer to Principle 8 on the time taken to fill a vacancy.  It was also observed that in Sub-programme 3.1: Governance Monitoring the “Evaluation of department’s adherence to the Constitutional Principles of Public Administration (30 departments)” is regarded as one output, whilst in actual fact 30 outputs are involved.  Recording an output in this manner (one instead of 30) is misleading because, on the one hand, it does not reflect the true state of affairs, and on the other hand, it negatively affects the actual performance of the PSC against this Sub-programme.
Programme 4: Integrity and Anti-Corruption

Programme 4 achieved 5 out of the 22 planned outputs which represents a success rate of 23%.  Adequate explanation was provided for the non-achievement of outputs.   The main reasons for this low success rate were for, example, achievements which were not reported in line with the PIs (4 outputs/projects), the reprioritisation of work due to an additional project (3 outputs/projects were affected), and budgetary constraints (3 outputs/projects).
Emanating from the discussion above, the main contributing factors for the low success rate in the achievement of outputs are due to additional research that had to be undertaken, the large amount of data that need to be processed, and lack of funding.  Of concern is that all these factors can be linked to poor planning.  Another recurring factor, which needs attention, is that reporting on achievements is not done in line with the performance indicator and the outputs – refer to the exposition of reasons for delays in the Table below.

Core Programmes
Reasons for not meeting the target.

Number of outputs involved

1. Leadership & Management Practices

· Did not report in line with PI – achievement could, therefore not be validated.

3

· Postponement not within PSC’s control.

4

· Outstanding information from departments

2

· Additional research

5

2. Monitoring & Evaluation

· Amount of data that had to be processed linked to the number of reports which had to be completed.

4

· Slow feedback of information needed to complete report.

2

· Difficulties in securing a suitable date in the diaries of high level participants
2

· Additional research
3

3. Integrity & Anti-Corruption

· Did not report in line with PI – achievement could, therefore not be validated.
4

· Capacity constraints in key management positions in the PSC.

1

· Reprioritisation of work due to additional project.

3

· Lack of funding

3

· Additional research

1

· Postponement not within PSC’s control.

2

Of concern is the low success rate of the PSC’s core functions, namely programmes 2, 3 and 4.  When the achievement of outputs of Programme 1: Administration is not taken into account, the PSC’s core functions achieved only 34% of the planned outputs.

Rating:

An analysis of the PSC’s outputs, PIs and targets as they appear in Table 2.2 at the end of this report, indicates that the PSC was able to achieve 60 (or 51%) of its 117 planned outputs, which falls within the 40% to 59% standard of the PSC’s Transversal M&E System for a score of 1,00 out of 3,00.  Of concern is the low success rate of the PSC’s core functions, namely programmes 2, 3 and 4, which achieved only 34% of the planned outputs.  The main reasons for this low achievement of priority outputs are due to additional research that had to be undertaken, the large amount of data that need to be processed, and lack of funding and capacity constraints in key management positions in the PSC.  Of concern is that all these factors can be linked to poor planning.
Area for improvement:

The PSC should, within the next financial year (2011/12), improve their project planning process to ensure that strategic decisions on the importance of a project in relation to the manpower and funds to complete the project and the strategic objectives of the PSC are taken before these are agreed upon outputs for the workplan.  Failure to do so will keep on impact negatively on the overall performance of the PSC’s core functions.  Likewise, it will dent the image of the PSC as a custodian of good governance.


	Rating



	7. Score
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

Planned expenditure vs actual expenditure
· Expenditure stated in the AR is as budget for in the estimates of expenditure.

· Material variances are explained.
0,50
0,50
The quality if the Department’s Performance Indicators
· More than half of each programme’s PIs are measurable in terms of quantity, quality and time dimensions.

· Outputs, PIs and targets are clearly linked with each other as they appear in the SP, estimates of expenditure and the AR for the year under review (the annual report, the strategic plan and the department’s budget must be consistent).

0,50
0,50
The achievement of priority outputs
40% - 59% of the priority outputs have been met. 
1,00
Total score

3,00


	Sources
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Table 2.1 – Planned vs actual expenditure

	Programmes (From Estimates of Expenditure)
	Revised Budget Allocation

R’000
	Actual Expend.

R’000
	Percentage Variance Revised Budget Allocation

	Programme 1: Administration

	Sub-programme 1.1: Public Service Commission
	21 138
	21 130
	99.9%

	Sub-programme 1.2: Management
	7 216
	7 188
	99.6%

	Sub-programme 1.3: Corporate Services
	35  395
	35 384
	99.9%

	Sub-programme 1.4: Property Management
	8 720
	8 717
	99.9%

	Total Programme 1
	72 469
	72 419
	99.9%

	Programme 2:  Leadership and Management Practices

	Sub-programme 2.1: Labour Relations Improvement
	8 215
	8 215
	100%

	Sub-programme 2.2: Leadership and Human Resource Reviews
	8 144
	8 144
	100%

	Total Programme 2
	16 359
	16 359
	100%

	Programme 3: Monitoring and Evaluation

	Sub-programme 3.1: Governance Monitoring
	9 910
	9 910
	100%

	Sub-programme 3.2: Service Delivery and Compliance Evaluations
	9 776
	9 775
	99.9%

	Total Programme 3
	19 686
	19 685
	99.9%

	Programme 4: Integrity and Anti-Corruption

	Sub-programme 4.1: Public Administration Investigations
	12 698
	12 697
	100%

	Sub-programme 4.2: Professional Ethics
	10 629
	10 629
	100%

	Total Programme 4
	23 327
	23 326
	100%

	Total Department
	131 841
	131 789
	100%


Table 2.2 – The achievement of objectives

	Name of Programme/Sub-programme
	Outputs per sub-programme
	PI
	Target
	PI measurable

Yes/No
	Actual performance and reasons for non-performance/change of output(s)
	Output & target achieved

Yes/No

	PROGRAMME 1: Administration

Programme objective: To provide logistical and management support through efficient human resources management, accountable financial management, effective communication and information technology services.

	Sub-Programme 1.1: Internal Audit
	Implementation and monitoring of Fraud Prevention Plan and Risk Management Strategy.
	1. Internal controls in place.
	March 2010.
	Yes
	Fraud Prevention Plan was reviewed & submitted to the Departmental Bargaining Council in February 2010.  Risk Management Strategy was reviewed by the Fraud Prevention & Risk Management Committee.  Risk Registers were reviewed on a regular basis.  Trend analysis of risks was conducted.
	Yes

	
	Development and implementation of Internal Audit Coverage Plan.
	2. Internal controls in place.
	March 2010.
	Yes
	Internal Audit Coverage Plan was approved by the Audit Committee in July 2009.  7 audits were conducted in line with the Internal Audit Coverage Plan.
	Yes

	
	Management of Gift Register.
	3. Updated Gift Register.
	March 2010.
	Yes
	Gift register was updated on an ongoing basis
	Yes

	Sub-Programme 1.2: Financial Management and Administration
	Proper monitoring of expenditure against budget.
	4. Funds surrendered to the National Treasury do not exceed 2%
	March 2010
	Yes
	Funds surrendered to the National Treasury amounted to R24 118 which translates to 0.01% of the total budget allocation.
	Yes

	
	Project budgeting and costing.
	5. Funds surrendered to the National Treasury do not exceed 2%
	March 2010
	No
	15 projects were costed.
	No

	
	Financial reports that fairly and accurately present the financial position of the PSC.
	6. Financial transactions accurately recorded with a clean audit report.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Unqualified audit report with a paragraph on “other matters” was received for the 2008/ 09 financial year
	Yes

	Sub-Programme 1.3: Supply Chain Management
	Maintain and update Asset Register.
	7. Updated Asset Register.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Asset Register was updated on a regular basis.  Full asset verifications were done twice during the reporting period
	Yes

	
	Implementation and monitoring of Supply Chain Management. 
	8. SCM policy adhered to.
	March 2010
	Yes
	SCM policy adhered to & no changes were made on the policy.
	Yes

	
	
	9. Service Level Agreements in place.
	March 2010
	No
	5 Service Level agreement were signed
	No

	
	Implementation and monitoring of Logistics Policies
	10. Logistics Policies complied with.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Logistics Policies were complied with and the implementation and monitoring of the Policies were done on an ongoing basis.
	Yes

	Sub-Programme 1.4: Property Management.
	Management of properties/physical properties.
	11. Office accommodation leases procured on time.
	March 2010
	No
	6 lease agreements for Regional Offices were renewed.
	Yes

	
	
	12. Rental and municipal levies paid
	March 2010
	Yes
	Payments were made on time.
	Yes

	
	Improved accessibility to PSC buildings by the Department of Public Works (DPW).
	13. Problems identified and addressed.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Awaiting implementation of the recommendations contained in the Report on the accessibility of the PSC buildings by the DPW.  Reminders were sent to the DPW.
	No

	Sub-Programme 1.5: Security Services
	Proper screening of visitors and documents.
	14. Access control measures implemented.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Proper screening of visitors and documents is ongoing.
	Yes

	
	Installation of security systems in selected regional offices.
	15. Upgraded security systems.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Security was upgraded at the Eastern Cape Regional Office in June 2009.  Security assessments were conducted at Limpopo Regional Office in August 2009.  To date, 5 Regional Offices have been upgraded.  Access control system was upgraded at Commission House in October 2009.
	Yes

	
	Implementation and monitoring of the Contingency Plan.
	16. Risks and threats minimised through handling of emergencies.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Implementation of the Contingency Plan is monitored on an ongoing basis.
	Yes

	Sub-Programme 1.6: Communication and Information Services
	Produce internal PSC newsletter.
	17. Bi-monthly newsletters produced. 
	March 2010
	Yes
	5 internal newsletters were compiled and distributed by March 2010.  In addition, a welcome message from the Director-General was issued in January 2010.
	Yes

	
	Host Information Sessions.
	18. Information Sessions successfully held.
	March 2010
	Yes
	2 Information Sessions were held in November 2009 and February 2010, respectively.
	Yes

	
	Serve as secretariat to MANCO and PSC’s Strategic Planning Sessions.
	19. Minutes drafted and approved.
	March 2010
	Yes
	MANCO meetings were held in June, Oct. & Dec. 2009 & minutes of the meetings were approved.  The Strategic Planning Session was held in December 2009.
	Yes

	
	Enhance corporate image of the PSC:

Manage printing requirement.

Produce promotional material.

Manage media relations.

Provide advocacy support.
	20. Corporate image enhanced & increased appreciation of PSC work.
	March 2010
	Yes
	All reports were standardised to enhance the corporate image and were printed timeously.  1 media briefing was held & 6 media statements were issued.  The PSC received substantial media coverage following presentation of its reports in Parliament.
	Yes

	
	Produce PSC Annual Report.
	21. Annual Report compiled & published in line with Treasury Guidelines.
	August 2009
	Yes
	The Annual Report for the 2008/09 financial year was compiled in line with Treasury Guidelines & published in Aug.2009. It was tabled in Parliament in Sept. 2009.
	Yes

	
	Produce Annual Report to Citizens.
	22. Annual Report to Citizens compiled.
	August 2009
	Yes
	The Annual Report to Citizens was approved in August 2009.  It was also translated into all the 11 official languages.
	Yes

	
	Produce PSC Journal.
	23. PSC Journal published & distributed.
	March 2010
	Yes
	PSC Journal was compiled & submitted to the Editorial Committee for approval in March 2010.  The delay resulted from the late submission of articles by contributors.
	No

	
	Provision of advocacy support to the PSC.
	24. Increased understanding & appreciation of the work of the PSC.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Participated in exhibitions and provided support during PSC events.
	Yes

	
	Annual Review of Section 15 Notice & Promotion of Access to Information (PAIA) Manual.
	25. Manual produced which adheres to PAIA.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Section 15 Notice & PAIA Manual were reviewed in accordance to the PAIA & submitted to the Department of Justice & Constitutional Development as well as the Human Rights Commission in August 2009.  The PAIA Manual was translated into Afrikaans and Xhosa.
	Yes

	
	Purchase relevant Information Resource Centre material.  Provision of on-line research support to line function.
	26. Information Resource Centre equipped with relevant material.
	March 2010
	Yes
	The Information Resource Centre is equipped with relevant material. Purchasing of library material and research support was done as and when necessary.
	Yes

	Sub-Programme 1.7: Information Technology
	Provide IT support to the Office.
	27. Network connectivity at 90% uptime.
	March 2010
	Yes
	The network connectivity uptime was 90%.
	Yes

	
	
	28. Logged faults resolved within 4 hours
	March 2010
	Yes
	Logged faults were resolved within 4 hours
	Yes

	
	ICT enablement of business processes in PSC:

· Automate Financial Disclosure Framework (Phase 2).
	29. IT systems developed.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Development of the electronic database on the financial disclosure framework was completed in March 2010.
	Yes

	
	· Develop a web-based database for tracking of PSC’s recommendations.
	30. Web-based database for tracking of PSC’s recommendations developed.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Development of a web-based database was completed in March 2010.
	Yes

	
	· Implement SMS Technology for submission of financial disclosure forms by SMS members & Performance Agreements (PAs) by HoDs.
	31. SMS Technology for financial disclosure forms & Pas of HoDs implemented.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Implementation of SMS technology was completed in July 2009.
	Yes

	
	· Automation of the PSC filing system.
	32. PSC’s filing system automated.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Configuration of scanners was completed in February 2010.  Training of users is ongoing. 
	No

	
	· Development & implementation of Electronic Document Management System (EDMS) with built-in version control log.
	33. EDMS Implemented.
	March 2010
	Yes
	The development of EDMS for Branch: Monitoring & Evaluation & Branch: Corporate Services was completed in March 2010.  Training of users is ongoing.
	Yes

	
	· Implementation and installation of e-mail archiving
	34. E-mail Archiving implemented.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Approval of the need to procure a Storage Access Network (SAN) was obtained in February 2010.  Due to budgetary constraints, the SAN will be procured in the 2010/11 financial year.
	No

	
	Implementation of Team Workspace
	35. Team Workspace operational.
	March 2010
	Yes
	The development of team workspace for Branch: Monitoring & Evaluation & Branch: Corporate Services was completed in March 2010 & is operational.  Training of users is ongoing.
	Yes

	Sub-Programme 1.8: Human Resource Management
	Implement, monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of the HR Plan.
	36. Vacancies filled within 3 months after becoming vacant.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Due to budgetary constraints, not all vacancies were filled within 3 months.  Compilation of the HR Plan was put on hold due to a directive issued by the DPSA, which states that departments are required to submit HR Plans by 30 June.  The 2008-2012 HR Plan is implemented through the recruitment and selection process.
	No

	
	Employment of People with Disabilities (PWDs).
	37. PWDs to comprise at least 2% of staff.
	March 2010
	Yes
	PWDs comprise 2.2% of the staff complement.
	Yes

	
	Employment of women in all management levels.
	38. Women to comprise at least 50% of staff employed at management level.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Women at management level comprise 41% of the staff complement.  The resignation of the 2 female SMS members resulted in a 2% decline of females at management level.
	No

	
	Revision and implementation of HR Policies. 
	39. HR Policies approved.
	March 2010
	Yes
	4 policies were approved.
	Yes

	Sub-Programme 1.9: Human Resource Development
	Effective implementation of mentorship programme in the PSC.
	40. Mentorship programme in place.
	March 2010
	Yes
	The draft Mentorship Policy was tabled before the Departmental Bargaining Chamber (DBC) in February 2010.  Delay is attributed to the prolonged consultation process with organised labour.
	No

	
	Promote, monitor and evaluate Employees Wellness Programme (EWP).
	41. EWP utilisation improved.
	March 2010
	Yes
	The monitoring of utilisation of the EWP was conducted on a quarterly basis & referrals are done when the need arises. In comparison with the previous financial year, the utilisation of the EWP has improved.  A new service provider (ICAS) was appointed in Oct 2009.  The launch of the EWP by ICAS was done in Nov 2009.
	Yes

	
	Commemoration of National and International Special events and programmes
	42. Events hosted 
	March 2010
	Yes
	4 events were commemorated
	Yes

	
	Effective implementation of EPMIS and PMDS
	43. EPMIS and PMDS implemented.
	March 2010
	No
	The bi-annual assessments for the 2009/10 financial year were conducted.  174 work plans and 37 PAs were submitted for the 2010/11 financial year.


	No

	
	Implementation & monitoring of service delivery standards.
	44. Approved service standards adhered to.
	March 2010
	Yes
	The Service Delivery Improvement Plan for the 2009/10 financial year was implemented with effect from April 2009 & adherence to service standards were monitored
	Yes

	
	Compile the Service Delivery Improvement Plan (SDIP) for 2010/2011.
	45. Approved SDIP.
	March 2010
	Yes
	The SDIP was reviewed and submitted for approval in March 2010.  Delay as a result of the review of the implementation of the 2009/10 financial year service standards.
	No

	
	Management of discipline & grievances in the PSC.
	46. Adherence to prescribed time frames.
	March 2010
	Yes
	4 disputes, which were declared with the General Public Service Sectoral Bargaining Chamber (GPSSBC) were finalised.  3 disciplinary cases were finalised.  2 grievances were finalised.
	No

	
	Management of the efficient functioning of the PSC Departmental Bargaining Chamber. 
	47. Consultations conducted with organised labour on matters of mutual interest.
	March 2010
	Yes
	6 DBC meetings were held.  1 DBC Annual General Meeting was held.
	Yes

	Total number of PIs for programme
	47
	Total number of outputs 
	47

	Total number of PIs measurable for programme
	44
	Total number of outputs achieved 
	36

	% of PIs measurable for programme
	94%
	% of outputs achieved 
	77%

	PROGRAMME 2: Leadership and Management Practices

Programme objective: To improve Public Service labour relations, practices and policies, monitor the standard of Public Service leadership and evaluate human resource policies

	Sub-Programme 2.1: Labour Relations Improvement
	Grievance management in the Public Service:

Grievances and complaints investigation.
	1. Grievances finalised within 3 months from date of receipt.
	March 2010
	Yes
	The PSC received 614 grievances: 

· 165 grievances were finalised of which 60% were finalised within the 3 months from date of receipt. The remaining 40% of grievances could not be finalised within the 3 months due to consultations within the PSC on the
	No

	
	
	
	
	
	proposals made on the grievances. 298 were referred back to departments due to non-compliance with the Grievance Rules.
· 67 grievances were closed because the aggrieved withdrew them or the PSC does not have jurisdiction.
· 84 cases were pending due to incomplete information of which 54 were not properly referred to the PSC.
· 5 complaints were received of which 3 have been finalised & 2 were sent for internal investigation to departments.
	

	
	Management of database on grievances & complaints.
	2. Monthly reports produced.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Reports on the management of grievances are submitted on a monthly basis.
	Yes

	
	Analysis of six monthly reports of the departmental grievances resolution (2 reports).
	3. Six monthly reports produced.
	Oct 2009

March 2010
	Yes
	2 six monthly reports were finalised in May 2009 & Nov 2009, respectively.
	Yes

	
	Monitoring implementation of PSC recommendations on grievances and labour relations complaints
	4. Report with recommendations.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Report was approved by the PSC in May 2009.
	Yes

	
	Trends analysis on grievance resolution in the Public Service.
	5. Fact sheet produced.
	Oct 2009 
	Yes
	Fact Sheet was approved by the PSC in September 2009.
	Yes

	
	Hosting of the 2nd Biennial Labour Relations Conference.
	6. Conference hosted.
	Sept 2009
	Yes
	The hosting of the Labour Relations Conference has been postponed to August 2010.  The PSCBC requested that the conference be held in 2010.
	No

	
	Compile a report on the 2nd Biennial Labour Relations Conference.
	7. Report with recommendations.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Report will be drafted after the Conference has been held in August 2010
	No

	
	Provide legal support to the PSC and the Office.
	8. Legal advice provided.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Advice and legal support provided.
	Yes

	
	An assessment of the contribution of PSETA towards the development of skills of public servants in their career progression prospects.
	9. Report with recommendations.
	June 2009
	Yes
	Report was finalised by the PSC in June 2009 and approved by the PSC in August 2009.
	Yes

	
	Meetings & workshops of Association of African Public Services Commissions (AAPSComs) held.
	10. Reports on workshops and minutes of meetings.
	March 2010
	Yes
	The Executive Committee of the AAPSComs was held in June 2009 in Livingstone, Zambia and in March 2010 in Kampala, Uganda.  Minutes of the meetings were drafted & circulated to the Executive Committee in June 2009 and in March 2010, respectively.
	Yes

	
	Effective and operational AAPSComs Website.
	11. Website updated.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Website was regularly updated with the latest developments.
	Yes

	
	Liaison with the stakeholders to ensure that the AAPSComs obtain international organisation status.
	12. Continuous liaison maintained.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Draft Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) between the AAPSComs & the African Union was adopted by the Executive Committee at its meeting held in March 2010.  The AAPSComs Communiqué was updated to reflect the most recent events of AAPSComs and was translated into Arabic & French.
	Yes

	Sub-Programme 2.2: Leadership & Human Resource Reviews
	Evaluate the effectiveness of the implementation of the Policy on Incapacity Leave & Ill Health Retirement (PILIR) on sick leave trends in the Public Service.
	13. Report with recommendations
	Feb 2010
	Yes
	Plenary approved that the finalisation of the report be extended to Feb 2010 as a result of outstanding information from departments.  PSC approved report in March 2010, subject to the incorporation of their comments.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was due to additional research undertaken to strengthen the report.
	No

	
	Respond to requests for ad hoc investigations into human resource practices in the Public Service.
	14. Report with recommendations.
	March 2010
	Yes
	No ad hoc requests were received.
	Yes

	
	An assessment of the state of Human Resource Management in the Public Service.
	15. Report with recommendations.
	July 2009
	Yes
	Draft Report was compiled in Nov 2009 & approved by the PSC in Dec 2009.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was as a result of the additional 
	No

	
	
	
	
	
	research undertaken to strengthen the findings of the report.
	

	
	Assess the implementation of Performance Management Development System for Senior Managers in the Limpopo Province.
	16. Report with recommendations.
	Feb 2010
	Yes
	Plenary approved that the finalisation of the report be extended to Feb 2010 as a result of outstanding information from departments.  Draft Report was compiled in Feb 2010 and submitted to the PSC for approval in March 2010
	No

	
	An assessment of the extent of (organisational structure and human resource) delegations by EAs to HoDs in terms of the Public Service Act, 1994 and their impact on the effective functioning of departments.
	17. Report with recommendations. 
	March 2010
	Yes
	Plenary took a decision in June 2009 to remove the project from the Workplan as the DPSA had produced a comprehensive report on a similar topic in 2008.  
	Yes

	
	Comparative study of the Management of Career incidents of HoDs in the Public Service.
	18. Report with recommendations.
	June 2009
	Yes
	Draft Report was compiled in Aug 2009 & approved by the PSC in Sept 2009.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was as a result of the need by the PSC to conduct consultative meetings to refine the findings & recommendations contained in the report.
	No

	
	An assessment of the effectiveness of Public Service leadership in Intergovernmental Relations.
	19. Report with recommendations.
	July 2009
	Yes
	Report was approved by the PSC in Nov 2009.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was as a result of the need to conduct further research to consolidate the findings & recommendations of the report.
	No

	
	HoDs Performance Agreements (PAs) monitored & evaluated:  Quality assurance and filing of PAs of HoDs.
	20. Advice provided to EAs on the quality of PAs in accordance with the SMS Handbook.
	March 2010
	No
	23 national and 48 provincial HoDs filed their performance agreements for the 2009/10 financial year.  Advice was provided to EAs on the quality of Pas.
	No

	
	Monitor the rate of compliance by HoDs.
	21. Fact sheet produced.
	July 2009
	Yes
	Fact Sheet was approved by the PSC in Feb 2010.  The PSC extended the date of filing PAs to Aug 2009 as a result of a directive issued by the Minister for Public Service and Administration that indicated that the date of signing of PAs was July 2009. This resulted in the delay in finalising the Fact Sheet.
	No

	
	HoD evaluation process managed and strengthened:

Compile guidelines for 2008/2009 evaluation cycle.
	22. Guidelines published.
	Sept 2009
	Yes
	Guidelines were approved & published in September 2009.
	Yes

	
	All qualifying national & provincial HoDs evaluated.
	23. All qualifying HoDs evaluated.
	March 2010
	No
	20 national & 33 provincial HoDs were evaluated for the 2007/08 cycle. 1 HoD was evaluated for the 2008/09 cycle.  Not all qualifying HoDs were evaluated due to the reluctance of the Executive to initiate the process.
	No

	
	
	24. Fact sheet produced.
	Feb 2010
	Yes
	Draft Fact Sheet for the evaluation of HoDs for the 2007/08 cycle was compiled in March 2010.  Delay in the finalisation of the Fact Sheet was as a result of the verification process undertaken on the information provided for the Fact Sheet.
	No

	
	Application of Organisational Performance Assessment (OPA) Framework.
	25. Advice provided to EAs on the performance of their departments.
	Feb 2010
	Yes
	A submission containing the OPA implementation strategy, the employee satisfaction survey & client satisfaction survey was compiled in Oct 2009.  Delay in the timely finalisation was due to internal consultation on the approach for implementing the OPA.
	No

	
	Key leadership issues identified during evaluations and analysed.
	26. Report with recommendations.
	Feb 2010
	Yes
	Plenary approved that the project be deferred to the 2010/11 financial year & it was replaced with a review of the HoD Evaluation process.
	No

	Total number of PIs for programme
	26
	Total number of outputs 
	26

	Total number of PIs measurable for programme
	24
	Total number of outputs achieved 
	12

	% of PIs measurable for programme
	100
	% of outputs achieved 
	46%

	PROGRAMME 3: Monitoring and Evaluation

Programme objective: To improve governance and conduct service delivery assessments

	Sub-Programme 3.1: Governance Monit
	Overview of the State of the Public Service:

	1. Legislatures & departments receive an independent assessment of the.
	Sept 2009
	Yes
	The roundtable was held in July 2009.
	Yes

	toring
	· Conduct a critical review of SOPS 2009 (1 X roundtable).
	State of governance.
	
	
	
	

	
	
	2. Reports on roundtables on SOPS 2009.
	Sept 2009
	Yes
	Report on the roundtable approved by the PSC in Sept 2009.
	Yes

	
	· 2010 State of the Public service Report: Integration, Coordination and Effective Public Service Delivery.
	3. Report with recommendations.
	Feb 2010.
	Yes
	Draft Report was compiled in Feb 2010.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was as a result of capacity constraints in key management positions in the PSC.
	No

	
	· Theme for the 2011 State of the Public Service Report.
	4. Theme approved.
	June 2009
	Yes
	Theme was approved in May 2009.
	Yes

	
	Evaluation of department’s adherence to the Constitutional Principles of Public Administration (30 Departments).
	5. Reports with recommendations.  Compliance with accepted research and M&E standards.
	Jan 2010
	Yes
	7 reports were approved in Jan, 13 in Feb & 10 in March 2010.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the 23 (out of 30) M&E Reports was due to a variety of reasons, including the late submission of information requested from departments, difficulties in securing appointments with the Management Committee meetings of departments to present & discuss reports & the introduction of a new reporting format.
	No

	
	Consolidated M&E Report for the 2008/09 research cycle.
	6. Report with recommendations.
	Aug 2009
	Yes
	Report was approved by the PSC in Dec 2009.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was due to the amount of data that had to be processed.
	No

	
	Consolidated M&E Report for Departments of Housing.
	7. Report with recommendations.
	Jan 2010
	Yes
	Draft Report was compiled in March 2010.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was due to the late approval of the individual M&E reports, as content of the report is sourced from them.
	No

	
	Consolidated M&E Report for the North West Province.
	8. Report with recommendations.
	Jan 2010
	Yes
	Draft Report was compiled in March 2010.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was due to the late approval of the individual M&E reports, as content of the report is sourced from them.
	No

	
	SAMEA Conference.
	9. Conference hosted.
	August 2009
	Yes
	The conference was held in August 2009.
	Yes

	
	
	10. Report on SAMEA Conference approved.
	Oct 2009
	Yes
	Report on the conference approved by the PSC in Oct 2009
	Yes

	
	Monitoring the implementation of the PSC’s recommendations to departments
	11. Report with recommendations.
	July 2009
	Yes
	Report approved by the PSC in Oct 2009.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was due to the slow feedback received from departments.
	No

	
	An assessment of selected management & admin. practices at Local Government level.
	12. Report with recommendations.
	Feb 2010
	Yes
	Draft Report was compiled in March 2010.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was due to outstanding information from departments.
	No

	
	Dialogue on Poverty Reduction Strategies and Interventions.
	13. Dialogue hosted.
	July 2009
	Yes
	A dialogue was held in Aug 2009.  The dialogue was delayed due to difficulties in securing a suitable date in the diaries of high level participants in the dialogue. 
	No

	
	
	14. Report with recommendations produced.
	Aug 2009
	Yes
	Report was approved by the PSC in Oct 2009.  The report was subsequently delayed as the dialogue only took place in Aug 2009.
	No

	Sub-Programme 3.2: Service Delivery & Compliance Evaluations
	Develop a set of key drivers of citizen satisfaction and pilot with selected departments.
	15. Report with recommendations
	March 2010
	Yes
	Draft Report compiled in March 2010.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was as a result of the nature of the findings of the study that needed triangulation with those of the previous studies conducted by the PSC.
	No

	
	Consolidated Report on Inspections in the South African Police Service.
	16. Report with recommendations.
	June 2009
	Yes
	Report approved by the PSC in Aug 2009.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was due to the need to have the information contained in report verified with senior officials from the Department of Police to ensure there is no security breach.
	No

	
	Service delivery inspections conducted in the Departments of health (focusing on clinics).
	17. Report with recommendations.
	Nov 2009
	Yes
	10 individual inspection reports were approved by the PSC in Dec 2009.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was due to the need to triangulate information contained in the reports with the documents from the Dep. of Health
	No

	
	Promote Public Participation: 

· Template on Public Participation.
	18. Template produced.
	Feb 2010
	Yes
	The template guide was compiled in Feb 2010 & approved by the PSC in March 2010.
	No

	
	· Support implementation of the Citizens’ Forums toolkit.
	19. Support provided.
	March 2010
	Yes
	No requests for support were received.
	Yes

	
	· Assess the effectiveness of Thusong Centres in integrated service delivery.
	20. Report with recommendations
	Dec 2009
	Yes
	Report was approved by the PSC in March 2010.  Delays were experienced in obtaining reports on Thusong Service Centres from other departments, which led to the delay in finalising the Report.
	No

	
	Evaluate the impact of the implementation of the Batho Pele principles on Public Service Delivery (depending on donor funding)
	21. Report with recommendations
	March 2010
	Yes
	Plenary approved that the project be deferred to the 2010/11 financial year due to the lack of funding
	No

	
	Coordinate the PSC’s support to the Southern Sudan Civil Service Commission
	22. Report on the nature and extent of support provided
	Dec 2009
	Yes
	No activity took place during the 2009/10 financial year
	Yes

	Total number of PIs for programme
	22
	Total number of outputs 
	22

	Total number of PIs measurable for programme
	22
	Total number of outputs achieved 
	7

	% of PIs measurable for programme
	100%
	% of outputs achieved 
	32%

	PROGRAMME 4: Integrity and Anti-Corruption

Programme objective: To combat corruption and maladministration, and promote professional ethics in the Public Service

	Sub-Programme 4.1: Public Administration Investigations
	Investigations of complaints lodged and requests emanating from:
The Commission (proactively).
Legislatures.
Executing Authorities.
Public servants.
Anonymous complaints/ whistle-blowing; e.g. National Anti-Corruption Hotline.
	1. Reports with findings and recommendations – best practices are identified 
	March 2010
	Yes
	Complaints Rules cases:  As at 31 March 2010, 195 complaints were lodged with the PSC, of which 87 cases were carried over from the previous financial years & 108 were lodged during the 2009/10 financial year.  Of the 195 complaints lodged, 131 were finalised during the 2009/10 financial year. 64 cases were still in progress of which 47 cases were referred to departments.
Full scale investigations:  Of the 195 complaints lodged, 18 were full scale investigations of which 7 were finalised during the 2009/10 financial year. 11 full scale investigations were still in progress.
Desktop investigations:  Of the 195 complaints lodged, 177 were desktop investigations of which 124 were finalised during the 2009/10 financial year. 53 desktop investigations were still in progress.
NACH cases (not corruption related): At 31 March 2010, 945 NACH cases were lodged with the PSC of which 774 were carried over from the previous financial years & 171 were lodged during the 2009/10 financial year.  Of the 945 NACH complaints lodged, 332 were finalised during the 2009/10 financial year whilst 613 were still in progress of which 559 cases were referred to departments.  Since the inception of the NACH in September 2004, 1 519 complaints were lodged of which 906 were finalised and 613 were still in progress.
	No

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Overview of Financial Misconduct for the 2008/2009 financial year.
	2. Report with recommendations.
	Feb 2010
	Yes
	Draft Report was compiled in March 2010 & submitted to the PSC for approval in March 2010.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was as a result of capacity constraints in key management positions in the PSC.
	No

	
	Trend Analysis on complaints lodged with the PSC during the 2008/2009 financial year.
	3. Fact sheet produced.
	Sept 2009
	Yes
	Report was approved by the PSC in Oct 2009.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was to reprioritisation of work.
	No

	
	Evaluation of supply chain management practices into the procurement of goods & services in selected departments focusing on general payments within the R200 000 threshold.
	4. Report with recommendations.
	June 2009
	Yes
	Report was approved by the PSC in June 2009
	Yes

	Sub-Programme 4.2: Professional Ethics

	Management of Asset Register:
	5. Fact sheet produced.
	March 2010.
	Yes
	As at 31 March 2010, a total of 7 412 forms (81%) were submitted and 1 723 forms (19%) were outstanding.
	No

	
	Monitor compliance rate of the Financial Disclosure Framework (FDF).
	6. Fact sheet produced.
	Aug 2009
	Yes
	Draft Fact Sheet was compiled in Sept 2009 & approved by the PSC in Oct 2009.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was as a result of undertaking an additional project titled: Assessment of the Disclosure Forms of Heads of Provincial Departments, which was not part of the workplan.
	No

	
	Scrutinize disclosure forms for conflict of interest.
	7. 30% of forms scrutinized.  Advice provided to EAs.
	Dec 2009.
	Yes
	30% of forms were scrutinized and advice was provided to EAs.
	Yes

	
	Assessment of the Disclosure Forms of Heads of Provincial Departments.
	8. Report with recommendations.
	Feb 2010
	Yes
	Report was approved by the PSC in Feb 2010.  Additional project undertaken which was not part of the workplan.
	Yes

	
	Assess the implementation of the FDF.
	9. Report with recommendations.
	Dec 2009
	Yes
	Report was submitted to the PSC for approval in March 2010.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was as a result of undertaking an additional project, which was not part of the workplan.
	No

	
	A comparative study between South Africa and selected SADC countries on the management of conflicts of interest through financial disclosures (dependent on donor funding).
	10. Report with recommendations.
	March 2010
	Yes
	The project was deferred to the 2010/11 financial year due to the lack of funding.
	No

	
	Management of the National Anti- Corruption Hotline (NACH):

Effective Call Centre.
	11. Case referral system in place.
	March 2010
	Yes
	1 340 cases of alleged corruption were referred in line with agreed protocols to departments.  Feedback was received from departments on 538 cases & analysed.  319 cases were closed following investigation.  Analyses was done on 902 cases & after approval by the PSC, it was referred to departments for investigation.
	No

	
	Management of Case Management System (CMS).
	12. Report with findings and recommendations.
	March 2010
	Yes
	
	No

	
	Pilot a web-enabled system in selected departments.
	13. Pilot of system undertaken.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Development of web-enabled system finalised in Aug 2009.  The PSC approved the user manual of the system as well as the website & SMS facility in Aug 2009.  Pilot of system could not be undertaken due to insufficient funds.
	No

	
	Profiling & analysis of the most common manifestations of corruption & its related risks in the Public Service.
	14. Report with recommendations.
	Dec 2009
	Yes
	Report was submitted to the PSC for approval in March 2010.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the Report was due to additional information required from the service provider.
	No

	
	Evaluate the state of professional ethics in the Western Cape Province.
	15. Report with recommendations.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Plenary approved that the finalisation of the Report be extended to March 2010 as the PSC had to engage with the Premier of the Western Cape on the objectives of the report.  Report was approved by the PSC in March 2010.
	Yes

	
	Serve as Secretariat to the National Anti-Corruption Forum:

Meeting preparation for NACF and Implementation Committee.  Liaison with stakeholders.  Report on annual activities of NACF (June 2008 – May 2009).  Preparations for the hosting of the Fourth National Anti-Corruption Summit.
	16. Minutes of meetings approved.
	March 2010
	No
	4 Implementation Committee, 2 EXCO and 1 NACF meetings were held. Minutes of the meetings were approved by the NACF.  The hosting of the Fourth National Anti-Corruption Summit was postponed to 2011 due to South Africa hosting the 2010 FIFA World Cup and the appointment of a new Chairperson, who needed to familiarise herself with the work of the NAC.
	No

	
	
	17. Report with recommendations.
	March 2010
	Yes
	Report on annual activities of the NACF (June 2008 – May 2009) not completed due to lack of inputs from sectors of the NACF.  Report on the Implementation of Resolutions made by Parliament & its Committees on Corruption approved by the PSC as secretariat of the NACF in June 2009.
	No

	
	Co-ordinate the implementation of the National Anti-Corruption Programme (NACP):   Translate resolutions of Third Anti-Corruption in NACP.
	18. Effective co-ordination of NACP.
	Feb 2010
	Yes
	NACF approved the NACP in October 2009.
	Yes

	
	Review of the NACF.
	19. Effective co-ordination of NACP.
	Feb 2010
	Yes
	A workshop on the review the NACF which was scheduled for November 2009 was postponed to the 2010/11 financial year as a result of the NACF sectors not agreeing on the objectives of the workshop.


	No

	
	Facilitate development of a National Integrity System.
	20. Report with recommendations.
	Feb 2010
	Yes
	Due to the late approval of the NACP, the project was moved to the 2010/11 financial year.
	No

	
	Intensify ethics awareness in the Public Service
	21. Promotional material produced and workshops held
	Dec 2009
	Yes
	No new promotional material was produced due to insufficient funding.
Successfully hosted Inter-national Anti-Corruption Day in partnership with United Nations Office on Drugs & Crime & the University of South Africa in Dec 2009.  Various promotional material were distributed at the Special Roundtable on International Anti-Corruption Day.
Roundtable on the promotion of professional ethics in the Public Service was held in Nov 2009 and the Report on the roundtable was approved in March 2010
	No

	
	Development of an Integrity Barometer
	22. Barometer developed
	July 2009
	Yes
	Concept document on the Integrity Barometer was compiled in November 2009 & approved by the PSC in Dec 2009.  Delay in the timely finalisation of the concept document was as a result of the lack of good practice examples.
	No

	Total number of PIs for programme
	22
	Total number of outputs 
	22

	Total number of PIs measurable for programme
	21
	Total number of outputs achieved 
	5

	% of PIs measurable for programme
	100%
	% of outputs achieved 
	23%

	

	Total number of PIs for the Department:
	117
	Total number of outputs
	117

	Total number of PIs measurable for the Department:
	111
	Total number of outputs achieved
	60

	% of PIs measurable for the Department:
	95%
	% of priority outputs achieved
	51%


Principle 3:  Development-Oriented Public Administration

	Background



	2. Constitutional principle

	Public Administration must be development-oriented.

	3. Performance Indicator 
	The department is effectively involved in programmes/projects that aim to promote development and reduce poverty.



	4. Standards
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

1. At least half the projects are of an acceptable standard in terms of beneficiary participation

1,00

2. At least half the project plans are of an acceptable project management standard

1,00

3. At least half of the projects are aligned with local development plans 

1,00

4. A system is in place for systematically institutionalising lessons learnt

1,00

5. Success of projects
· At least half the projects achieved success in at least 51% - 100% of their objectives.

· At least half the projects achieved success in at least 31% - 50% of their objectives.

· At least half the projects achieved success in at least 0% - 30% of their objectives.

1,00

0,50

0,25

Maximum possible score

5,00



	Assessment



	5. Participation of beneficia-ries in the design of the project
	Overview:
The PSC is not directly involved in programmes/projects that aim to promote development and reduce poverty.  Interventions are mainly targeted at the monitoring and evaluation of poverty reduction programmes initiated by other departments to establish the success of such programmes.  Government departments are, therefore, indirect beneficiaries of the PSC’s assessment of poverty reduction programmes.  See Table 3.1 for details on the participation of beneficiaries in these projects of the PSC.

As indirect beneficiaries, departments are involved from the conceptualisation of a project until the last phase, namely, making inputs into the draft report and its findings.  At the project conceptualisation stage, informal interviews are held with programme managers of poverty reduction programmes a year in advance to determine a suitable programme that will be evaluated.  Inputs are also solicited on the design of the evaluation.  Relevant documentation, including the concept document, is collected at this stage. 

Once the project proposal has been developed and approved, meetings are set with relevant programme managers to discuss the project proposal and the process issues.  Formal meetings are held with the MECs and senior management of departments to brief them on the project and the process issues.  Their comments and views are considered during the implementation phase.  

During the project implementation phase, the PSC conducts formal interviews with programme managers at national, provincial and local spheres of government.  In addition, direct beneficiaries of projects are interviewed during site visits.  In all the site visits, the PSC evaluators are accompanied by departmental officials.
Based on the findings of the evaluation, a report is prepared and submitted to the relevant department.  The department has 10 working days to respond to the findings.  The report may be amended with comments from the department.

The final report is submitted to the Commission and the Minister or MEC of the department after which the report is presented to the legislature/parliament.  Follow-ups on the implementation of the recommendations are conducted.
Rating:

The PSC is not directly involved in programmes/projects that aim to promote development and reduce poverty.  Interventions are mainly targeted at the monitoring and evaluation of poverty reduction programmes initiated by other departments to establish the success of such programmes.  Government departments are, therefore, indirect beneficiaries of the PSC’s assessment of poverty reduction programmes.  A full score of 1,00 is awarded.


	6. Good project management standards
	Overview:
The PSC meets all the project management standards by incorporating the following main items in each project proposal: 

1. Project title

2. Background and need for the project

3. Mandate of the PSC

4. All objectives of the project in measurable terms.
5. Expected output

6. Methodology

7. Scope

8. Time frames

9. Project risks

10. Mitigation plans 

11. Detailed financial projections – a summary is usually provided
12. Project communication 
13. Project team 

14. Review meetings

15. Except for HIV/Aids (beneficiaries are generally reluctant to disclose their HIV/AIDS status due to the stigma associated with this disease), other issues such as gender and the environment are also considered.
Although the PSC generally adheres to the project management standards, at times it fails to adhere to project time frames.  Amongst others, this is due to lack of cooperation of departments to provide relevant project documentation on time and/or too many projects are taken on without due consideration of capacity and the scope/complexity of the project(s).

Rating:

More than half of the project proposals are of an acceptable project management standard.  A full score of 1,00 is awarded.  However, of concern is that despite these good project management standards applied by the PSC, it at times fails to adhere to project time frames.  This is mainly due to too many projects without considering capacity constraints and the scope/complexity of the project(s), which is indicative of poor strategic planning.
Area of improvement:
The PSC should ensure that:

· All project proposals for the 2012/13 financial year are completed prior to the strategic planning session for that period indicating the time (days) and capacity (human and financial resources) needed for completion of the project, as well as the risk involved if the project is not taken on.

· All projects are duly considered and prioritised (quantity or quality) against the scope/complexity of a project, the available human capacity, financial resources and risks attached to a project.

· Only those priority projects are taken on which can be completed within the available man-days and which can be properly financed.

The implementation of this recommendation will ensure that the PSC will produce reports of a higher quality because of better in-depth analyses.  Reports will be delivered timeously which in turn will have a better impact.


	7. The alignment of programmes with local development plans
	Overview:
With the exception of project 5 and 8 as depicted in Table 3.2 below, the issue of alignment with local development plans (LDPs) is not directly relevant at the level of the PSC evaluation projects due to the fact that the PSC evaluates existing poverty reduction programmes/ projects, which may already have been either aligned or not aligned to LDPs.  However in project 5 and 8 the PSC’s evaluation does take cognisance of the alignment of projects to LDPs and recommendations to departments in this regard.  
Project 5:  An Evaluation of Integration and Coordination in the Integrated Sustainable Rural Development

The whole evaluation focused on development planning in 3 District Municipalities, namely, Bushbuckridge, Chris Hani and Zululand;

Project 8:  An Evaluation of the Comprehensive Agricultural Support Programme (CASP)

One of the interview questions for CASP managers was aimed at determining whether CASP Projects were aligned with Integrated Development Plans (IDPs). 
Rating:

The PSC’s projects do not necessitate alignment with local development plans (LDPs).  However, when the PSC evaluates programmes, such as poverty reduction programmes or departments’ adherence to the nine CVPs, it ensures that departments have taken due cognisance of the alignment of their programmes/projects with LDPs.  A full score of 1,00 is awarded.


	8. A system for recording lessons learnt is in place
	Overview:
Whilst the PSC does consciously identify lessons learned with an aim of applying these to future projects, this is not done in a formal and structured manner.  Consequently, evidence of the most basic forms of learning such as seminars/roundtable discussion proceedings on projects under review, were not available at the time of writing this research report.  However, project team meetings are held throughout the project life cycle whereby team members share experiences and reflect on project issues.  Proceedings are recorded and minutes of these project meetings are filed. 
Rating:

Although the PSC does have some form of identifying and recording lessons learnt, a formal and structured system has not been put in place.  A score of 0,00 out 1,00 is awarded.

Area of improvement:

The PSC should explore the possibility of putting in place a formal and structured system of recording lessons learnt.  This could be shared during branch and/or strategic planning sessions to enhance the execution of planned projects.


	9. Success of the projects
	Overview:
All the poverty reduction projects have achieved at least 51% - 100% of their objectives.  Details on the project success rate are captured in Table 3.3 below.  Despite this good success rate in the execution of these projects, it is of concern that the PSC does not do a follow-up on the implementation of the recommendations made in dialogues on the findings of these reports on these projects.  It would also be beneficial to do an impact assessment on the findings of these reports to establish whether embarking on such projects by the PSC should be a priority output or whether it shouldn’t be better to utilise resources involved in these assessments elsewhere in the organisation.
Rating:

At least half the PSC’s evaluation projects achieved success in at least 51% - 100% of their objectives.  A full score of 1,00 is awarded.  However, of concern is the lack of following-up on recommendations made at dialogues on the findings as well assessing the impact of these reports. 
Area of improvement:

The PSC should before the end of the 2011/12 financial year:

· Embark on a follow-up process on recommendations made at dialogues on the findings of reports on poverty reduction projects.

· Assess the impact of these reports to establish whether the assessment of poverty reduction programmes should remain a priority output or whether resources utilised in the execution of these projects could not be utilised better elsewhere in the organisation.


	Rating



	10. Score
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

1. At least half the projects are of acceptable standard in terms of beneficiary participation

1,00
2. At least half the project plans are of an acceptable project management standard

1,00
3. At least half of the projects are aligned with local development plans
1,00
4. A system is in place for systematically institutionalising lessons learnt

0,00
5. Success of projects
· At least half the projects achieved success in at least 51% - 100% of their objectives.
1,00
Total score
4,00


	Sources



	11. References
	Sources consulted in the preparation of this report:

None.



	11. Useful sources to consult on this principle


	1. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Report on the Evaluation of the Implementation of the Batho Pele Principle of Consultation. October 2007.

2. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Report on the Evaluation of Government’s Poverty Reduction Programme. October 2007.



Table 3.1 – Beneficiary participation, quality of project plan quality and linkage with LDPs

	PROJECTNAME
	A
	B


	C

	
	BENEFICIARY PARTICIPATION


	PROJECT PLAN QUALITY
	LOCAL PLANS

	
	Do beneficiaries participate in planning and are they properly involved in implementation?
	Is a standardized format used showing all relevant details including objectives, clear governance arrangements and detailed financial projections and also considering issues such as gender, the environment and HIV/AIDS?
	Is local development plans considered?

	
	YES or NO and comment
	Rate each plan as Acceptable/Not acceptable and comment
	State YES or NO

 and describe how

	1. An Audit of the Government’s Poverty Reduction Programmes and Projects (February 2007).
	YES

(Departments as Indirect Beneficiaries)
	Acceptable
	No

	2. An Evaluation of Government’s Poverty Reduction Programme (October 2007),
	YES

(Departments as Indirect Beneficiaries)
	Acceptable
	No

	3. An Evaluation of the National School Nutrition Programme (March 2008).
	YES

(Departments as Indirect Beneficiaries)
	Acceptable
	No

	4. Dialogues on Poverty Reduction Strategies and Interventions.
	YES

(Departments as Indirect and Civil Society as direct Beneficiaries)
	Acceptable
	No

	5. An Evaluation of Integration and Coordination in the Integrated Sustainable Rural Development Programme (ISRDP) (January 2009).
	YES

(Departments as Indirect Beneficiaries)
	Acceptable
	Yes 

The whole evaluation focused on development planning in 3 District Municipalities i.e. Ehlanzeni, Chris Hani and Zululand.

	6. A Meta-Evaluation of the Mid-term Review of the Expanded Public Works Programme (March 2009).
	YES

(Departments as Indirect Beneficiaries)
	Acceptable
	No

	7. A Meta-Evaluation of a Review of LRAD Project Performance (2001-2006).
	YES

(Departments as Indirect Beneficiaries)
	Acceptable
	No

	8. An Evaluation of the Comprehensive Agricultural Support Programme (CASP).
	YES

(Departments as Indirect Beneficiaries)
	Acceptable
	Yes 

One of the interview questions for CASP managers was aimed at determining whether CASP Projects were aligned with Integrated Development Plans (IDPs).


Table 3.2 – Performance of the developmental project against planned objectives

	PROJECT NAME
	PROJECT OBJECTIVES
	Expenditure According to Budget
	Objectives Achieved
100% - 51% Achieved 50% - 31 Achieved
0% - 30% Achieved
	Comments/Reasons for Performance

	1. An Audit of the Government’s Poverty Reduction Programmes and Projects.
	· To define what is meant by poverty relief (and related terms) programmes and projects,

· To develop criteria for the classification of poverty relief programmes and projects,

· To develop and populate a database on poverty relief programmes and projects in all government departments at national and provincial level. 
	YES
	100% –  51%
	· All the set objectives were achieved.

· A report (containing a CD) was published in Feb. 2007.

· It was distributed to all affected sector departments.

	2. An Evaluation of Government’s Poverty Reduction Programme (October 2007).
	· Evaluate whether government’s objectives with its poverty reduction are being achieved,

· Identify reasons some or all of the programmes or projects are being achieved,

· Assist the departments involved in this programme with their internal evaluation programmes through structured recommendations based on the outcomes of the research,

· Inform any key evaluation initiatives in departments to enable prompt revision where required, and

· Establish knowledge and skills base in the PSC for future similar exercises.  
	YES
	100% - 51%
	· All the set objectives were achieved.

· A report (containing a CD) was published in Feb. 2007.

· It was distributed to all affected sector departments.

	3. An Evaluation of the National School Nutrition Programme.
	· Evaluate the effectiveness of the NSNP;

· Identify and highlight success of the programme, as well as problematic areas that adversely influence the optimal implementation of the programme;
· Provide recommendations in terms of the effective implementation of the programme.
	YES
	100% – 51%
	· All the set objectives were achieved.

· A report was published in February 2007.

· It was distributed to all affected sector departments.

	4. Dialogues on Poverty Reduction Strategies and Interventions
	· Deepen and inform the debate on poverty reduction.  By entering the debate the PSC intended to send a clear message that development issues and development administration form a critical part of the work of the Public Service.  

· Facilitate a process for formulating points for action on critical issues relating to poverty reduction.  

· Solicit views on how the institution of the Public Service, its organisation, administration, systems and processes, should be designed to better support developmental programmes. 

· Explore the avenues into which the PSC should develop its monitoring and evaluation work in order to add the most value to policy development and implementation.
	YES
	100% – 51%
	· Most set objectives were achieved.

· An area that still needs attention is to follow up on some critical points for action made at the dialogues. 

· Newsletters on the three dialogues have been published and a Consolidated Report was approved by the Commission in October 2009. 

	5. An Evaluation of Integration and Coordination in the Integrated Sustainable Rural Development Programme.
	· To evaluate the government integration and coordination processes that was set in place in support of the ISRDP. This was the main focus of the evaluation.

· To evaluate whether the programmes and projects implemented in the nodal areas under the ISRDP have been successful in reducing the poverty of the targeted households/ targeted section of the population of the node.  Specifically, the relationship between the integration and coordination processes and the success of the ISRDP in the nodes was explored.
	YES
	100% – 51%
	· All the set objectives were achieved.

· A report was published in October 2009.

· It was distributed to all affected sector departments.



	6. A Meta-Evaluation of the Mid-term Review of the Expanded Public Works Programme (March 2009).
	· To pilot meta-evaluation in one government programme with a view to incorporating lessons learnt into future meta-evaluation projects.  The Expanded Public Works Programme has been selected for this purpose. 

· To provide timely comment about areas for improvement of monitoring and evaluation.

· To determine the extent of the utilisation of evaluation findings by decision-makers and the eventual impact of evaluations.

· To synthesise evidence flowing from evaluations of the four EPWP sectors, i.e. the Infrastructure, Environment and Culture, Social and Economic Sectors.

· To improve the PSC’s understanding of the success of this programme and enable the PSC to confidently comment on that success and, where appropriate, make recommendations.

· To identify important evaluation questions not answered by available evaluations in order to focus the PSC’s own evaluation programme.

· To identify challenges with regard to the M&E Systems of departments and make recommendations to address these.
	YES
	100% – 51%
	· Despite the initial lack   of cooperation from the Department of Public Works which delayed the implementation of the project, all the set objectives have been achieved.

· It was it was published and distributed to all affected sector departments.

	7. A Meta-Evaluation of a Review of LRAD Project Performance (2001-2006).
	· To assess the quality of the evaluation.

· To provide timely comment about areas for improvement of monitoring and evaluation, including issues that should be addressed in subsequent evaluations.

· To determine the extent of the utilisation of evaluation findings by decision-makers and the eventual impact of evaluations.

· To improve the PSC’s understanding of the success of this programme and enable the PSC to confidently comment on that success and, where appropriate, make recommendations.

· To identify important evaluation questions not answered by available evaluations in order to focus the PSC’s own evaluation programme.

· To identify challenges with regard to the M&E Framework of LRAD
	YES
	100% – 51%
	· The Draft Report was submitted to the DG for comment on 14/12/2010.

	8. An Evaluation of the Comprehensive Agricultural Support Programme.
	· To evaluate whether the objectives of the Comprehensive Agriculture Support Programme (CASP), have been achieved / are being achieved.

· To evaluate whether the programme design was appropriate in relation to the set objectives.

· To evaluate whether the programme is being implemented effectively and efficiently (focusing on the implementation strategies of CASP).
	YES
	100% – 51%
	· The Report is still being drafted. 


Principle 4:  Impartiality and Fairness 

	Background



	1. Constitutional principle


	Services must be provided impartially, fairly, equitably and without bias.

	2. Performance indicator
	There is evidence that the Department follows the prescribed procedures of the PAJA when making administrative decisions.


	3. Standards
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

A. Duly authorised decisions 

A.1  Decisions in terms of legislation/policy

· All the decisions were taken in terms of the appropriate legislation/policy.

OR

· Fifty percent and more of the decisions were taken in terms of the appropriate legislation/policy.

OR

· Less than fifty percent of the decisions were taken in terms of the appropriate legislation/policy.

A.2  Decisions in terms of delegations

· All the decisions were taken by duly authorised officials in terms of the departmental delegations of authority.

OR

· Fifty percent and more of the decisions were taken by duly authorised officials in terms of the departmental delegations of authority.

OR

· Less than fifty percent of the decisions were taken by duly authorised officials in terms of the departmental delegations of authority.
1,50

0,75

0,00

1,50

0,75

0,00

B. The decisions are just and fair

· 100% of the decisions were just and fair.

OR

· 50% to 99% of the decisions were just and fair.

OR

· 25% to 49% of the decisions were just and fair.

OR

· 0% to 24% of the decisions were just and fair.
1,00

0,50

0,25

0,00

C. Communicating administrative decisions

· Prior notice to administrative action is given in all cases.

· Opportunities are provided in all the cases reviewed to make representations before action is taken.

· In 100% of the cases administrative decisions that adversely affect anyone’s rights are clearly communicated with adequate notice of the right to appeal or review or request reasons for decisions is given.

· Requests for the reasons for decisions are properly answered in at least one third of the cases reviewed.
0,25

0,25

0,25

0,25
Maximum possible score

5,00



	Assessment



	4. Duly authorised decisions
	Overview:

The PSC submitted a sample of four documents (report from the chairperson of the hearing, and appointment letter signed by the DG) documents to determine whether decisions were taken in accordance with prescribed legislation, polices and/or delegated authority – refer to Table 4.1 at the end of this report for the list of these decisions.

Decisions in terms of legislation/policies

In all four cases assessed, the provisions of the legislation/policy in terms of which the decisions were taken, are clearly stated, namely,

· Resolution 1 of 2003.
· Disciplinary code and procedures of the Public Service.
· Public Finance Management Act.
· PPPFA

· Supply Chain Management (SCM) Policy and National Treasury Practice Notes

Decisions in terms of delegations

It was found that the PSC’s Delegations of Authority provides for the appointment of officials on different levels, namely the DDG for officials below deputy director and the DG for officials on director and chief director level.  In respect of decisions made on the appointment of service providers, the necessary delegations are provided for in the SCM Policy.  It was found that all four decisions were taken by duly authorised officials.
Rating:

The PSC fully considers the implications of all decisions made in terms of legislation and policies to ensure compliance with the PAJA in their decision-making processes.  Clear delegations of authority exist in the PSC and all 4 sampled decisions assessed were taken by duly authorised officials.  A full score of 3,00 is awarded.


	5. The decisions are just and fair 
	Overview:

Documentation in each of the following 4 sampled cases submitted for assessment was analysed to establish whether the decisions made were fair and just in terms of the PAJA– refer to Table 4.1 and the end of this report for the list of these documents:

Based on the assessment of the content of these documents and evidence submitted, it was found that all four sampled decisions were just and fair.  The following is a synopsis of the PSC’s sampled decisions considered against this standard:

Two Labour Relation Decisions

The decision taken was in line with the Res 1 of 2003.  An investigation was conducted, possible action was indicated in the report, a chairperson was appointed to conduct the disciplinary enquiry, the necessary notice was given to the accused, a hearing took place, and a decision was made and afterwards communicated to the relevant person.

Two Service Provider Decisions:  

The decisions were taken in line with the National Treasury Practice notes, the SCM Policy, the PFMA, and the Authorised Committee.  For example, the DCC awarded the tender and the decision was made and communicated to the relevant service provider.
Rating:

The content of the 4 sampled decisions showed that the decisions taken were just and fair, in terms of content, reasons for decisions, procedures prescribed by policies and actions taken.  A score of 1,00 is awarded.


	6. Communi-ating admini-strative decisions
	Overview:

The PSC submitted a sample of two documents for assessment against this standard – refer to Table 4.2 and the end of this report for the list of these decisions.

Prior notice of proposed administrative action

Yes it was provided in a form of a Charge Sheet indicating what the misconduct is about and the date of the hearing.
Opportunities to make representations 

Yes, it was provided prior to the date of hearing.  Can be represented by a fellow colleague or union representative

Communication of decisions that adversely affect anyone’s rights

Yes, this is found on the report from the Chairperson.  The outcome of tenders also appears in newspapers.
Reasons on request

Not necessary because it is verbally provided to the accused on the conclusion of the hearing.  In the case of an unsuccessful service provider, provision is made that reasons of the outcome can be requested.  On receipt of such request a response will be drafted and sent back to the enquirer.
Rating:

The assessment of all the sampled documents submitted showed that the PSC provided prior notice and opportunities to make representations before action is taken.  All decisions were clearly communicated with adequate notice of the right to appeal or review or request reasons for decisions.  Requests for the reasons for decisions were answered in at least one third of the cases reviewed.



	Rating



	7. Score
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

A. Duly authorised decisions

A.1  Decisions in terms of legislation/policy
· All the decisions were taken in terms of the appropriate legislation/policy.

A.2  Decisions in terms of delegations

· Less than fifty percent of the decisions were taken by duly authorised officials in terms of the departmental delegations of authority.
1,50
1,50
B. The decisions are just and fair

· 100% of the decisions were just and fair.
1,00
C. Communicating administrative decisions

· Prior notice to administrative action is given in all cases.

· Opportunities are provided in all the cases reviewed to make representations before action is taken.

· In 100% of the cases administrative decisions that adversely affect anyone’s rights are clearly communicated with adequate notice of the right to appeal or review or request reasons for decisions is given.

· Requests for the reasons for decisions are properly answered in at least one third of the cases reviewed.
0,25
0,25
0,25
0,25
Total score
5,00


	Sources
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Table 4.1 – Duly authorised decisions

	A
	B
	C

	Administrative decisions taken in this department
	Decision is in accordance with prescribed legislation/policy (Yes/No)
	Decision-maker is authorised to make the decision

(Yes/No)

	1. Not Guilty of misconduct
	Yes (Resolution 1 of 2003)
	Yes (Chairperson of the hearing)

	2. Guilty of misconduct
	Yes (Resolution 1 of 2003)
	Yes (Chairperson of the hearing)

	3. 
	
	

	4. 
	
	


Table 4.2 – Communicating administrative decisions

	A
	B
	C
	D
	E

	Administrative decisions taken in this department
	Prior Notice is given (Yes/No)
	Opportunities for representation

(Yes/No)
	Decisions that adversely affect people are communicated

(Yes/No)
	Reasons provided on request

(Yes/No)

	1. Not guilty of misconduct
	Yes
	Yes
	Yes
	Yes

	2. Guilty of misconduct
	Yes
	Yes
	Yes
	Yes

	3. 
	
	
	
	

	4. 
	
	
	
	


Principle 5:  Public Participation in Policy-making

	Background



	1. Constitutional principle


	People’s needs must be responded to and the public must be encouraged to participate in policy-making.

	2. Performance indicator


	The Department facilitates public participation in policy-making.

	3. Standards 
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

1. An approved policy/ guideline on public participation in policy-making is in place.
1,00

2. The existence of a system for soliciting participation

· A system is in place and used for generating inputs in more than half the cases.

OR

· A system is in place, but not always used.

2,00

1,00
3. The extent to which public comments are formally considered

· In at least half the cases contributions are acknowledged and considered.

OR

· In at least half the cases contributions are acknowledged, but not considered. 

2,00

1,00
Maximum possible score

5,00



	Assessment



	4. The existence of a policy/ guidelines
	Overview:

Due to the oversight role of the PSC it does not develop policies that require engagement or inputs from the public and for public scrutiny.  The PSC, therefore, does not have a policy for public participation in policy-making.  

However, as part of its oversight, the PSC has produced a generic template for developing guidelines on public participation in policy-making.  This emanated from several PSC studies that have shown the lack of such guidelines in the Public Service.  It was against this backdrop that the generic template was developed, which departments can use to develop their own internal guidelines on public participation.

Rating:

Due to the oversight role of the PSC it does not develop policies that require engagement or inputs from the public and for public scrutiny.  The PSC, therefore, does not have a policy for public participation in policy-making.


	5. The existence of a system for soliciting participation
	Overview:

The PSC has specifically developed a step-by-step guide to holding citizens forums, popularly known as the Citizen’s Forum Toolkit (CF Toolkit), a first of its nature in the Public Service.  The purpose of the CF Toolkit is to evaluate the delivery of particular services throughout the country, and to enable the active involvement of people affected by government programmes in service delivery improvement processes.

One example of engaging citizens in the work of the PSC is with citizen satisfaction surveys.  In this regard, the PSC developed South Africa-specific drivers of citizen satisfaction as a model to determine the level of satisfaction amongst citizens in service delivery. During the pilot of the PSC’s drivers of the citizen satisfaction, citizens were engaged on the importance of the drivers to service delivery.  The purpose of this exercise was to ensure that whatever drivers that the PSC concludes as key to service delivery in the country are informed by what the citizens of this country deem important when engaging with the PSC during service delivery.

Another key area where the PSC solicits public views is with roundtables on the State of the Public Service Report.  These roundtables are conducted both at national and provincial level to afford stakeholders an opportunity of engaging with the PSC on the annual state of the Public Service.

In addition, the PSC has a system to engage departments on monitoring and evaluation projects.  The process aims to promote collaboration and partnership by communication with departments throughout the duration of the project, starting from the initial process whereby the project is introduced to top management, to presenting them with a draft report on findings and recommendations.  Departments then have the opportunity to comment and give additional input on the draft report.  In the process the principles of transparency and accountability are promoted.
The PSC also hosts various workshops and seminars on its core areas of work, such as the biannual Labour Relations Conference hosted in partnership with the PSCBS, monitoring and evaluation workshops/learning sessions, national anti-corruption day, the roundtable on promotion of professional ethics in the Public Service and IPMA-HR conference.  A wide variety of stakeholders are invited to these events.  Whilst information is being disseminated, the views and inputs of stakeholders are also solicited by the PSC.

Internally, the PSC has developed a policy and guideline on the distribution protocol of reports regarding all the activities of the PSC to the relevant stakeholders.  Through its reports, the PSC engages various portfolio committees by means of presentations.  Bilateral discussions are also held to solicit views of the relevant Accounting Officers and Executive Authorities regarding PSC findings and recommendations relating to evaluation projects conducted by the PSC in their departments.

The PSC also has a communication strategy which outlines, amongst others, ways that the Office can use to advance its media relations such as the hosting of media briefings and securing participation in forums such as the Izimbizo which will afford the Commission a platform to reach external stakeholders and the public at large.  Besides the above-mentioned initiatives, it should be noted that a number of activities have been conducted to engage citizens both through its oversight work as well as events which have been used to engage various sectors of the society.

Rating:

The PSC did not only developed a step-by-step guide to holding citizens forums but also South Africa-specific drivers of citizen satisfaction as a model to determine the level of satisfaction amongst citizens in service delivery and in the process engaging citizens in the work of the PSC.  The PSC also hosts various workshops and seminars on its core areas of work, whilst the PSC’s Transversal M&E System ensures that departments’ assessed are involved in the process from the start till the findings of the report.  A full score of 2,00 is awarded.


	5. The extent to which public comments are formally considered
	Overview:

Although the above-mentioned mechanisms have been used to solicit views of the PSC’s stakeholders, they do not focus on policy-making processes, but rather on the oversight work of the PSC.  In this regard inputs solicited are used to inform government about deficiencies and need for improving the functioning of the Public Service.
In as far as the PSC’s M&E System is concerned departments are given an opportunity to provide inputs on the results of the M&E assessment.  All these inputs are recorded in the report and where applicable a department’s rating is amended.
Rating:

The PSC in at least half the cases acknowledges and considers In at least half the cases contributions.  A full score of 2,00 is awarded.



	Rating



	6. Score
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

1. An approved policy/guideline on public participation in policy-making is in place.
N/A
2. The existence of a system for soliciting participation

A system is in place and used for generating inputs in more than half the cases.
2,00
3. The extent to which public comments are formally considered 
In at least half the cases contributions are acknowledged and considered.
2,00
Total score
4,00


	Sources
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Principle 6:  Accountability

	Background



	1. Constitutional principle


	Public administration must be accountable.

	2. Performance indicator
	1. Adequate internal financial controls and performance management are exerted over all departmental programmes.

2. Fraud prevention plans, based on thorough risk assessments, are in place and are implemented.



	3. Standards
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

1. The adequacy of internal financial controls

· The Auditor-General issued an unqualified audit opinion and concluded that the internal financial control measures are adequate in all respects with no areas flagged as needing attention.

OR

· The Auditor-General concluded that the internal financial control measures are mostly adequate with certain important areas flagged as needing attention.
OR

· The Auditor-General issued a qualified/an adverse/a disclaimer of opinion, concluded that the internal financial control measures are inadequate and flagged important areas as needing attention.
1,00

0,50

0,00

2. The existence of an operational performance management system.
1,00

3. A thorough risk assessment has been done
· All the Department’s activities/applications have been addressed.

· The seriousness of each risk has been assessed.

· The risks have been prioritised.

· Internal control measures have been devised.
0,25

0,25

0,25

0,25

4. The existence of a fraud prevention plan

· A comprehensive and appropriate fraud prevention plan is in place

· The fraud prevention plan is based on a thorough risk assessment.
0,50

0,50
5. The implementation of the fraud prevention plan

· Sufficient staff members to investigate cases of fraud are in place.
AND

· All strategies of the fraud prevention plan have been implemented

OR

· At least 80% - 100% of the strategies of the fraud prevention plan have been implemented.

OR

· At least 50% - 79% of the strategies of the fraud prevention plan have been implemented.

OR
· Less than 50% of the strategies of the fraud prevention plan have been implemented.
0,25

0,75

0,50

0,25

0,00
Maximum possible score
5,00



	Assessment


	4. The adequacy of internal financial controls
	Overview:

Compliance audit

Based on the appropriateness of accounting policies used and overall presentation of financial statements, the Auditor-General (A-G) issued an unqualified audit opinion (which indicates that the A-G agrees with the information presented by management in the financial statements).
Emphasis of matter
However, the A-G raised concerns over the non-compliance with paragraph 8.2.3 of the Treasury Regulations (TR) as it did not pay some of its suppliers within 30 days after receipt of the invoice. 

The PSC did not comply with TR 21.2.2 because it did not surrender the R350 000 received as gifts, donations and sponsorship in cash, to the Revenue Fund.
Rating:

The A-G issued an unqualified audit opinion and concluded that the internal control measures are adequate in all aspects with no areas flagged as needing attention.  A full score of 1,00 is awarded.  The A-G, however, raised concerns about suppliers not being paid within 30 days after receipt of invoices.
Area for improvement:

The PSC should with immediate effect assign the responsibility to an official to record the date on which all invoices have been received as well as doing a daily follow-up on the payment of each invoice to ensure that it has been paid within the 30 day period.


	5. The existence of an operational performance management (M&E) system
	Overview:

The PSC uses monthly and quarterly financial and non-financial reports to monitor performance.  The quarterly performance reports also reflect the deviation from the set targets and indicate the corrective measures to be taken to achieve them.  The following reports are also utilised:

· Project milestones.
· BAS expenditure control report.
· Quarterly performance report as supplied to NT.
· Quarterly report on contracts awarded above R100 000 to NT.
According to the three-year PSC Strategic Plan 2010/11 to 2012/13 the following key computerised systems are being utilised in the PSC:

· The Basic Accounting System (BAS), which is a transversal accounting and financial system owned by National Treasury.

· LOGIS: The National Database used for procurement, stock management and payment purposes.

· PERSAL: Used for salary administration.

Rating:

The PSC does have the document e.g. “Processes for Reporting on Performance Information”.  Quarterly reviews on performance information (report is presented at MANCO for discussion and approval before submitted to NT). The PSC is also utilising existing National Transversal Systems such as BAS, PERSAL and LOGIS to generate data for performance reporting purpose. Therefore the PSC complies with this standard set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E System for a total score of 1,00 is awarded


	6. A thorough risk assessment has been done
	Overview:

The PSC does have an approved Risk Management Strategy in place.
The identification of risks

Treasury Regulations (TR) requires departments to identify risks and develop a strategy to prevent the risks from occurring.  Risks have been clearly identified for all activities and /or applications.  The PSC conducts thorough risk assessments on a quarterly basis, most recently in July 2010.

The seriousness of risks have been assessed

The impact that these risks may have on the activities of the PSC has also been assessed.  The risks in respect of impact and likelihood, which were rated on a scale of 1-5, relates to the potential loss to the business should the risk occur.

The prioritisation of risks

All the risks identified have been prioritised by impact and likelihood as follows:

Impact rating-

1. Negligible/ insignificant

2. Minor

3. Medium/moderate

4. Major

5. Catastrophic

Likelihood rating

1. Rare

2. Unlikely

3. Possible

4. Likely

5. Almost certain

Tables within the assessment report provide a clear indication of the associated severity levels by means of colour codes, which is descriptive of low, moderate, high and extreme risk.

The ten top risks identified are as follow:
Risk Number

Objectives

Indicators

Risk Description

1

To promote efficient and effective HR planning

# Increased funding for PSC Work Plan activities

# Skilled workforce

Limited resources to execute PSC mandate

2

To promote efficient and effective HR planning

# Increased funding for PSC Work Plan activities

# Skilled workforce

Capacity constraints as a result of the advent of the Single Public Service Bill

3

To promote regional integration on the Continent

Support to the AAPSComs

Capacity to support Regional Integration

4

Promote sound financial management 

Increased funding for PSC work plan activities

Insufficient funding for PSC work plan activities 

5

Improve asset management

Effective asset management and internal controls

Inadequate asset management processes

6

To undertake audits and investigations into public administration practices

Prompt responses by PSC.
The slow rate or the lack of response from the PSC in relation to complaints

7

To promote professional ethics and integrity and prevent and combat corruption in the Public Service

Timely provision of feedback on NACH cases

The slow rate or the lack of response from the PSC in relation to  complaints impacts on the integrity of the NACH

8

To promote professional ethics and integrity and prevent and combat corruption in the Public Service

NAP for the NACF coordinated

Non cooperation of sectors on the NACF (National Anti-Corruption Forum) impacts on expenditure budget and project due dates.

9

To promote professional ethics and integrity and prevent and combat corruption in the Public Service

Conflicts of interest managed

Non-compliance with the Financial Disclosure Framework requirements for the submission of disclosures

10

Good governance promoted and governance practices enhanced.

Timely collection and presentation of quality relevant information and recommendations to stakeholders

Quality of service providers, products and management thereof.

Control measures have been devised

The following responsibility structures to implement, manage, monitor and evaluate fraud, as well as risks, have been put in place:

(1)
Risk Manager and Risk Champions

The responsibility of the risk manager is to do regular follow-ups on the risk assessment done in the PSC, the implementation of the identified control measures and procedures, as well as evaluating and updating the risks by comparing it with gaps identified by way of process control mapping.

(2) Outsourced Internal Audit Services

The Outsourced Internal Audit (OIA) service enhances management’s understanding of risk management and the underlying concepts which assist with the implementation of an effective risk management system.  The OIA provides feedback to management on the quality of organisational controls and performance.

(3)
Fraud Prevention and Risk Management Committee

The said Committee was established in 2008.  The responsibilities of the Committee are, inter alia, to review and implement the fraud prevention plan, to coordinate and monitor fraud prevention activities, to monitor and review risk responses and internal control strategies, and to ensure that appropriate risk management skills training is provided to all members and staff.

(4) IT Component

The PSC subscribes to the PSC Information Technology Policy, guidelines and procedures.

(5)
Audit Committee

The PSC is served by an Audit Committee appointed under the PFMA and TR.  The Committee is required to meet at least four times per annum.

Rating:

The PSC conducted a risk assessment exercise during June 2010, during which all activities and/or applications were assessed.  The seriousness of each risk was assessed, and was rated in terms of its consequences and impact.  Appropriate internal control measures were devised to address the risks in the PSC. These encompass, amongst others, mapping of all procurement related processes and transactions.  The PSC, therefore, complies with this standard of the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  A full score of 1,00 is allocated.



	7. The existence of a fraud prevention plan
	Overview:

The PSC’s fraud prevention plan (FPP) was assessed against the standards set in Table 6.1 for a good FPP and the end of this report.  Following is a brief discussion on the Results against each standard:
The existence of a comprehensive FPP
A FPP is in place, which contains information, inter alia, on procedures, rules and internal controls to prevent and detect fraud, risk assessment, and a central fraud line for reporting and monitoring fraud.

Basis of FPP and strategies

Fraud prevention strategies are based on regular risk assessments.  The PSC’s risk manager and risk champions are responsible for conducting the assessments within the PSC and submit detailed reports which are discussed with management in their Fraud Prevention and Risk Management Committee meetings.  The PSC uses the information contained in the risk register to design preventative strategies and improve measures of control.

Fraud Data Base

The human resource development component keeps record of all cases of misconduct.  A fraud database is managed, administered and maintained by the Labour Relations Officer of the PSC.  The PSC consults regularly with this Unit to ensure that proper records are kept of all allegations relating to the PSC. 

Responsibility to contribute towards eliminating fraud

The FPP indicates clearly that every employee is responsible for identifying and reporting fraud and corruption.  The PSC’s FPP will maintain an effective and sustained awareness campaign, which includes creating awareness of fraud indicators (the “red flag” of fraud) in general.  This component of the FPP is divided into two categories, namely: Education and Communication (Section 6).

Community awareness

The FPP caters for the creation of awareness on the PSC’s stance toward fraud and corruption by developing a poster campaign aimed at all stakeholders to advertise the PSC’s stance towards fraud and its expectations with regard to ethics and integrity of all stakeholders.  It also states that copies of the code and policy will be circulated to all employees.

Reporting line of fraud and corruption 
It is the responsibility of all employees to report incidents of fraud and corruption.  The FPP clearly indicates the steps to be followed in reporting any cases of fraud and corruption – see page 22 of 57.
Protected disclosure
The protection of whistleblowers is addressed and provided for in the FPP.  The confidentiality of information is also fully addressed – see page 21 of 5).
No discretion in external reporting of fraud
There is no discretion in the reporting of fraud to either the police or other anti-corruption agencies.  The Fraud and Corruption Prevention Plan subscribes to internal investigating agencies.  

Provision for investigating fraud and corruption
The FPP makes provision for the PSC to ensure that fraud is responded to and investigated as soon as it is reported– see page 22 of 57, paragraphs 5.4.4 and 5.4.5.
Prompt investigation of all instances of suspected fraud
The FPP encourages and provides for sufficient mechanisms to promptly and effectively address incidents of fraud within the PSC with the purpose of establishing whether a basis exists for further investigation– see page 22 of 57, paragraph 5.4.4.
No interference in investigation from management
In terms of the provisions of the FPP, management and employees may not interfere with fraud investigations.  It also addresses the risk of whistleblowers being victimised by managers, fellow employees and/or other persons– see page 22 of 57, paragraph 5.4.6.
Skilled officers to undertake investigations
Fraud investigations are undertaken by staff members of the Forensic Investigative Unit (FIU) of the PSC.  The FIU, which is managed by a Director, and have skilled investigating officers in its employ for investigating fraud cases– see page 22 of 57, paragraph 5.4.5.
Code of Conduct for the Public Service
In addition to the Code of Conduct for the Public Service, the FPP also has a comprehensive Code of Conduct applicable to PSC employees – see page 31 of 57.
Practicality and suitability of the plan to the PSC’s circumstances

The Fraud and Corruption Prevention Plan is practical and suitable and the document can easily be implemented according to the organisational needs of the PSC.  It is available to all staff on the Intranet.
Rating:

A comprehensive and appropriate fraud prevention plan, based on a thorough risk assessment, is in place and complies 100% with the 13 requirements for a good FPP dealt with in Table 6.1 at the end of the Main Report on this principle.  A full score of 1,00 is awarded.



	8. The imple-mentation of the fraud prevention plan
	Overview:

Key staff to investigate cases of fraud

According to the PSC there is only one official, on the level of assistant director, involved in investigating fraud in the PSC.  This official is regarded as highly competent in this area and as sufficient to handle cases of fraud reported in the PSC.  It was further found that there is no specific unit in the PSC to investigate fraud cases.  Line function officials are appointed to investigate cases reported in their component.  (Refer to Table 6.2 at the end of this report).
Implementation of the strategies of the fraud prevention plan

The PSC has indicated that at least 80% to 100% of the FPP strategies have been implemented.
Rating:

Fraud investigations are undertaken by staff members from line function and at least 80% to 100% of the FPP strategies have been implemented. A score of 1,00 is awarded.


	Rating



	9. Score
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

1. The adequacy of internal financial controls

· The Auditor-General issued an unqualified audit opinion and concluded that the internal financial control measures are adequate in all respects with no areas flagged as needing attention.
1,00
2. The existence of an operational performance management system.
1,00

3. A thorough risk assessment has been done
· All the Department’s activities/applications have been addressed.

· The seriousness of each risk has been assessed.

· The risks have been prioritised.

· Internal control measures have been devised.
0,25

0,25

0,25

0,25
4. The existence of a fraud prevention plan

· A comprehensive and appropriate fraud prevention plan is in place

· The fraud prevention plan is based on a thorough risk assessment.
0,50

0,50
5. The implementation of the fraud prevention plan

· Sufficient staff members to investigate cases of fraud are in place.
· At least 80% - 100% of the strategies of the fraud prevention plan have been implemented.
0,50
0,50
Total score
5,00


	Sources
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Table 6.1 – Checklist for a good fraud prevention plan

	Standard
	√ 


	1. A comprehensive implementation plan and responsibility structure must be developed to implement and give effect to the department's fraud control strategy.
	√

	2. Fraud prevention strategies must be based on a thorough risk assessment.
	√

	3. A fraud database, which complies with Cabinet Memo 45 of 2003, should be in place (Not own Hotline).
	√

	4. It must be clear that every employee has a responsibility to contribute towards eliminating fraud.
	√

	5. Service users, suppliers and the broader community should be made aware of the department's stance on fraud and corruption.
	√

	6. It should be clear to everybody to whom and how fraud should be reported
	√

	7. A clear policy on protected disclosures must be in place.
	√

	8. Accounting officers must be clear that there is no discretion in the reporting of fraud to either the police or other independent anti‑corruption agencies.
	√

	9. Provision must be made for the investigation of fraud once reported.
	√

	10. All instances of suspected fraud must be promptly examined by the department to establish whether a basis exists for further investigation.
	√

	11. Fraud investigations must be conducted without interference from management.
	√

	12. Investigations must be undertaken by skilled officers.
	√

	13. The expected standards of conduct (code) must be clear.  The Code of Conduct for the Public Service must be applied to the specific circumstances of the department.
	√

	
	Total Requirements to comply with
	13

	
	Number of Requirements met (yes)
	13

	
	Number of Requirements not met (no)
	0

	
	% of requirements met
	100%


Source:
Australia.  New South Wales Premier's Department.  Office of Public Management.  Fraud Control:  Developing an effective strategy.  Vol. 2, 1994.

Table 6.2 – Competency levels of fraud investigators

	Salary Band
	Number of Officials on the Establishment
	Number of Officials

	11. 
	12. 
	Competence

	13. 
	14. 
	Still gaining experience

(Less than 1 year experience
	Adequate

(More than 1 year but less than 3years experience
	Highly competent

(Three years and more experience)
	Percentage of Highly Competent Officials for Salary Band

	Assistant Director
	1
	
	
	1
	100%

	Deputy Director
	
	
	
	
	%

	Director
	
	
	
	
	%

	Chief Director
	
	
	
	
	%

	Deputy Director-General
	
	
	
	
	%

	Director-General
	
	
	
	
	%

	Total
	1
	
	
	1
	100%


Principle 7:  Transparency

	Background



	1. Constitutional principle
	Transparency must be fostered by providing the public with timely, accessible and accurate information.



	2. Performance indicator
	A. Departmental AR
· The AR complies with NT’s Guideline on Annual Reporting.

B. Access to Information

· The Department complies with the provisions of the PAIA 2000 (Act 2 of 2000).



	3. Standards
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

a) Departmental Annual Report (AR)
A.1  The presentation of the AR
· The AR is attractively and clearly presented.

· The AR is well written in simple accessible language.
0,25

0,25
A.2  The content of the AR
The AR covers in sufficient detail at least 90% of the areas prescribed by National Treasury and the Department of Public Service and Administration.
0.50

A. 3  Reporting on performance in the AR
The AR clearly reports on performance against predetermined outputs in at least two thirds of the programmes listed.
2,00

b) Access to Information

B.1  The appointment of DIOs to deal with requests for access to information
The department has at least one DIO with duly delegated authority.
0,50
B.2  The availability of a Manuel on Access to Information (MAI)
The department does have a MAI in place that complies with the requirements of the PAIA.
0, 50
B.3  Procedures to manage request for access to information
Systems for managing requests for access to information are in place.
1,00
Maximum possible score

5,00



	Assessment



	4. The presentation of the annual report
	Overview:

The title and date of the AR
Public Service Commission Annual Report 2009/2010

The impression it conveys

The AR covers all the projects that the PSC embarked upon in the 2009/10 financial year.  It further highlights the actual performance target against the output performance measures/service delivery indicators.  It also provides the breakdown of how the allocated funds were spent during the financial period. 
The overall quality of the AR
The language used in the AR is easy to understand although some of the words used will not be easily understood by the some of the readers.  The AR also complies with the National Treasury guidelines for the preparation of ARs.  
The level of readership to which it is aimed
The AR is aimed at all South African citizens, including members of Parliament, the Provincial Legislature and government departments.  
Accessibility and usefulness to ordinary people

The AR is placed on the PSC website for easy access by the public.  Printed copies of the AR are distributed to stakeholders via the PSC distribution list and at exhibitions.  It is furthermore available on request and in all PSC offices.
Rating:

The AR is concise, easy to read and follows a logical sequence.  Although a full score of 0,50 is awarded it is available in English only, which narrows transparency on the PSC’s work.
Area for improvement:

The AR needs to be translated into at least two other official languages to accommodate other ethnic groups.


	5. The content of the annual report
	Overview:

The content of the AR was assessed against the requirements of NT for annual reporting listed in Table 7.1 and the end of this report.  A summary of the results appear below followed by a short overview of the results on each main area.

Name of main areas to be addressed

Number of areas to be addressed

Actual number of areas addressed

Number of areas not applicable
% Deviation

1. General information

11

6

5
0%
2. Programme performance

66

31

30
8%
3. Audit reports, financial statements & other financial information

13

13

0
0%
4. Human resource oversight report

56

56

0
0%
Total

146

106
35
3%
1. General information

The PSC has adhered to all the relevant requirements needed to compile the AR.  Five of the areas were not relevant to the PSC, namely institutions falling under the PSC’s control, bills submitted to Parliament and public entities controlled by the PSC.
2. Programme performance

With regard to programme performance, 31 of the prescribed 66 areas were addressed, whilst 30 areas were not applicable.  The areas not reported on were maintenance and asset management.
3. Audit reports, financial statements and other financial information

The PSC complied 100% with the reporting requirements on audit reports, financial statements and other financial information.  These include a detailed report by the Audit Committee, the Accounting Office and the Auditor-General. A clear indication is given of the PSC’s actual financial performance, management and financial control.

4. Human resource oversight report

The PSC reported on all 56 areas required on human resource management.
Rating:

The PSC’s AR addresses 93% of the areas prescribed by NT.  The only two areas that need attention are reporting on maintenance and asset management.  A full score of 0,50 is awarded.


	6. Reporting on performance in the annual report
	Overview:

The extend to which the PSC reported in its AR on its performance against planned outputs for the financial year 2009/10, in accordance with National Treasury requirements, appears in Table 7.1, paragraph B.10 at the end of this report.  An exposition of the detail per programme is highlighted below followed by a short discussion on the findings:

Programme number and name
Performance is indicated in accordance with the ENE/Budget Statement and strategic plan.

(YES/NO)
Achievements for each sub-programme under a programme are clearly reported.

(YES/NO)
1. Programme 1: Administration
No
Yes
2. Programme 2: Leadership and Management Practices
No
Yes
3. Programme 3: Monitoring and Evaluation
Yes
Yes
4. Programme 4: Integrity and Anti-Corruption
Yes
Yes
Performance is indicated in accordance with the ENE/budget statement and strategic plan.

It was found that the AR does not follow the sequence of the Medium Term Strategic Plan (MTSP) when reporting on Programme 1 (Administration) and Programme 2: Leadership and management practices, whilst some of the outputs in the AR do not appear in the Medium Term Strategic Plan (MTSP).
Explanation of how much was achieved

The AR clearly communicates the information and details of the outputs that were planned and achieved by each programme in an understandable manner.
Reasons for performance/non-performance

The outputs are clearly stated in quantifiable and illustrative terms.  Achievements are clearly indicated, and explanations are provided for non-performance.

Rating:

The AR clearly reports on performance against predetermined outputs in at least two thirds of the programmes listed, a full score of 2, 00 is awarded.  However, it was found that some projects and outputs that are reported on do not appear in the MTSP.
Area for improvement:

The PSC should ensure that the projects reported on in the AR for the 2010/11 financial year are exactly the same as what appears in the MTSP for the same period or provide a reason for omission or additional projects to prevent confusion between what is reported and what was indicated as planned in the MTSP.


	7. The appointment of DIOs to deal with requests for access to information
	Overview:

The number of deputy information officers (DIOs) in the PSC
At present the PSC has five DIOs, consisting of one DIO for each of the four branches in the Office and the Director Communication and Information Services.  This is in line with the PSC’s policy with regard to procedures to be followed for requests for access to information, which states that all Deputy Directors-General and the Director: Communication and Information Services are Deputy Information Officers
DIOs are appointed in writing

None of the five DIOs were appointed in writing as required by PAIA.
DIOs have authorisation to deal with requests for access to information
The designated DIO are fully authorised to provide access to information in terms of the departmental delegations of authority.
DIOs do have job descriptions and performance contracts
The job descriptions and performance agreements of the DIOs do not indicate their tasks and/or responsibilities as DIOs.

Rating:

The PSC appointed five DIOs – one for each branch and for communication and information services – with duly delegated authority to deal with request to access to information.  However, these DIOs were not appointed in writing as required by PAIA and their duties as a DIO do not form part of his/her job description and performance contract.  The Department therefore complies with this standard of the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  A score of 0,00 out of 0,50 is awarded.

Area for improvement:

The PSC should with immediate effect, in terms of Section 17 (6)(a) of PAIA, appoint the DIOs in writing and ensure that the duties of a DIO (Sections 18 to 49 of PAIA) are included in their job descriptions and performance contracts for the 2011/12 financial year.


	8. The availability of a Manual on Access to Information
	Overview:

The content of the PSC’s MAI was assessed against the requirements of PAIA listed in Table 7.3 and the end of this report.  A short overview of the results is highlighted below.

Language

The MIA is published in three official languages, namely, English, Xhosa and Afrikaans.
PSC’s structure and functions

The PSC’s structure and functions appears in the MAI.
Contact details

The contact details of all the DIOs are clearly indicated in terms of postal, street address, phone, fax and e-mail address.

Access to the guide

MAI indicates the name, address, telephone and fax numbers, websites and e-mail address of the institution where the Guide of South African Human Rights Commission on how to use the Promotion of Access to Information Act 2000, could be obtained.

Access to a record

MAI provides sufficient details to facilitate a request for access to a record.  This includes the procedures to be followed and the form that should be completed.
Description of subjects of records
MAI provides and describes the subjects on which the PSC holds records and the categories of records held on each subject. 

Categories of records available

Formal notice has been published on categories of records within the PSC that are automatically available to the public without the person having to request access in terms of PAIA (section 15 notice).

Submission of categories of records to the Minister of Justice

Categories of records of the Department that are automatically available for copying or purchasing in terms of section 15(1)(a)(ii) of the PAIA are described, and the section 15 notice is compiled annually and is submitted to the Department of Justice and Constitutional Development.
Description of services available

The PSC indicated services that are available to the members of the public and how to gain access to those services.

Participation in the formulation of policy

MAI describes the arrangements and provisions for a person to participate in or influence the formulation of policy by means of consultation, making of representations or otherwise.

Remedies available

The MAI reflects on the remedies available in respect of PAIA or a failure to act by the PSC.

Updating and publishing

MAI is updated and published on an annual basis.
Availability of manual at place of legal deposit

The MAI is available at every place of legal deposit as defined in section 6 of the Legal Deposit Act, 1997.

Telephone directory, notice boards and PSC’s website

Details of the Information Officer and DIOs are available in every telephone directory, on notice boards and on the PSC’s website.
Rating:

The PSC has a MAI in place, which complies with all the requirements set by Section 14 of the (PAIA), 2000 (Act 2 of 2000).  The PSC, therefore, does comply with this standard of the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  A full score of 0,50 is awarded.

Area for improvement:

Although the manual is translated into three official languages, the PSC should strive to translate the manual into all the official languages albeit it is not a requirement.


	9. Procedures to manage requests for access to information
	Overview:

Record keeping

The PSC has a register to record requests received for information in terms of PAIA.  This record is regularly updated.
Responsible component

Chief Directorate: Labour Relations Improvement is responsible for this register.
Tracking mechanism to monitor requests and responses to requests

On an annual basis, a report on requests for access to information (section 32) is compiled and forwarded to the South African Human Rights Commission.

Average time to respond to a request
The PSC’s average response time is 30 days from receipt of request to information.

Information to clients of their right to appeal
The PSC informs clients in writing about their right to appeal. 

Internal appeal mechanism

Information in relation to internal appeal mechanisms is contained in the PSC/OPSC PAIA Manual.

Communication of appeal decisions

The PSC communicates its decision regarding the appeal in writing directly to the client. 
Section 32 reports to the Human Rights Commission (HRC)

The PSC annually compiles Section 32 reports and submit it to the South African Human Rights Commission.
Rating:

The PSC has systems in place to manage request for information.  A full score of 1,00 is awarded.


	Rating



	10. Score
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

A. Departmental Annual Report (AR)

A.1  The presentation of the AR

· The AR is attractively and clearly presented.

· The AR is well written in simple accessible language.
0,25
0,25
A.2  The content of the AR

The AR covers in sufficient detail at least 90% of the areas prescribed by National Treasury and the Department of Public Service and Administration.
0,50
A. 3  Reporting on performance in the AR
The AR clearly reports on performance against predetermined outputs in at least two thirds of the programmes listed.
2,00
B. Access to Information

B.1  The appointment of DIOs to deal with requests for access to information

The department has at least one DIO with duly delegated authority.
0,00
B.2  The availability of a Manuel on Access to Information (MAI)
The department does have a MAI in place that complies with the requirements of the PAIA.
0,50
B.3  Procedures to manage request for access to information
Systems for managing requests for access to information are in place.
1,00
Total score
4,50


	Sources



	11. References
	Sources consulted in the preparation of this report:

Documents:

1. Republic of South Africa. Office of the Public Service Commission. Annual Report 2009/2010. 
2. Republic of South Africa. Office of the Public Service Commission. Manual on Access to Information.


	12. Useful sources to consult on this principle
	1. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Report on the Implementation of the Batho Pele Principle of Openness and Transparency in the Public Service. February 2008.

2. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Report on the Implementation of the Promotion of Access to Information Act, (Act No 2 0f 2000). Undated.




Table 7.1 – Content checklist for the annual report

	CONTENT
	Required level of detail provided: Yes/No

	

	A. GENERAL INFORMATION

	1. Submission of annual report to executive authority.
	Yes

	2. Introduction by head of the institution.
	Yes

	3. Information on the Ministry:     a)  The work involved in
	Yes

	b)  Names of institutions falling under Minister’s control
	N/A

	c)  Bills submitted during reporting period
	N/A

	d) Official visits abroad – dates and purpose
	Yes

	4. Mission statement
	Yes

	5. Legislative mandate a) that governs the existence of the department and its operations (core mandates).
	Yes

	                                           b) Trading and/or public entities controlled by the department indicating:

	                                                 i) Legislation under which established.
	N/A

	                                                ii) Functions of each trading and/or public entity.
	N/A

	                                               iii) Accountability arrangements between HoD and trading and/or public entity.
	N/A

	Total out of 11 areas reported on A
	6

	B. PROGRAMME AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

	B.1 Programme performance – Information to be reported.

	1. Voted funds indicating information in accordance with the following framework:

Appropriation

Main Appropriation

Adjusted Appropriation

Actual Amount Spent

Over/Under Expenditure

Department to 

complete figures

Responsible Minister

Title of responsible Minister 

Department

Name of relevant Department

Accounting Officer

Title of Responsible Director-General/Head of Department


	Yes

	2. Aim of vote.
	Yes

	3. Key Measurable objectives – in line with legislative mandate.
	Yes

	4. Programmes – Brief description of each programme through which the department’s activities are conducted.
	Yes

	5. Achievements - Brief description of any significant achievements/progress in relation to stated measurable objectives.
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 5 areas reported on B.1
	5

	B.2 Overview of service delivery environment.

	Overall performance – outlining key outputs relating to services rendered directly to the public providing.

	1. A list of all key services rendered to the public indicating:
· Number of people utilising the service.

· Number of people that were turned away/not served. 

· Quality of service.
	N/A

	2. Problems encountered with rendering of the service.
	Yes

	3. Corrective steps taken in dealing with service delivery problems. 
	Yes

	4. Reasons for any additions to or virement between the main appropriation allocations.
	N/A

	5. Report on any rollovers from previous years.
	N/A

	6. Description of any significant developments, external to the department, which might have impacted on service delivery.
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 6 areas reported on B.2
	3

	B.3 Overview of organisational environment.

	1. An overview of the organisational challenges experienced that might have impacted on departments ability to deliver on strategic plan such as:

· Resignation of key personnel (Accounting Officer/Chief Financial Officer);

· Strike by significant portion of personnel;

· Restructuring efforts;

· Significant system failures; and

· Cases of corruption.
	Yes

	2. Measures that were adopted to mitigate the impact of these events on service delivery.
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 2 areas reported on B.3
	2

	B.4 Strategic overview and key policy developments.

	1. Major, relevant policy developments/legislative changes that may have effected the Department’s operations during review or future period(s).
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 1 area reported on B.4
	1

	B.5 Departmental revenue.

	1. Detail on how the department has delivered on the plans for collecting revenue
	Yes

	2. Reasons for under performance and indication of measures taken to keep on target and future measures to rectify under performance.
	Yes

	3. Reasons for exceeded performance.
	N/A

	4. Breakdown of sources of revenue in following Table format:

Source of income

20076/07 Actual

2007/08 Actual

2008/09 Actual

2009/10 Target

2009/10 Actual

% Deviation from target

Tax revenue

(Specify)
Non-tax revenue

(Specify)

Sales of capital assets (Capital Revenue)

(Specify)

Financial transactions (Recovery of loans and advances)

TOTAL DEPARTMENTAL RECEIPTS


	N/A

	Sub-total out of 4 areas reported on B.5
	2

	B.6 Departmental expenditure

	1. Per programme in Table format showing:

Programmes

Voted funds for 2009/10

Roll-overs and adjustments

Virement

Total voted

Actual expenditure

Variance


	Yes

	2. How actual expenditure differ from planned expenditure
	Yes

	3. Impact of variance on service delivery.
	Yes

	4. Measures adopted to improve the efficiency and economy of spending on each programme. 
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 4 areas reported on B.6
	4

	B.7 Transfer payments – if applicable.

	1. List/summary of transfers made in the following Table format.
Name of institution

Amount Transferred

Estimate Expenditure


	N/A

	2. Narrative of services provided by each entity.
	N/A

	3. An assessment of the actual amount spent by each entity (excluding individuals or social grant payments).
	N/A

	4. Indication when full spending report on each entity can be expected.
	N/A

	5. Comment on monthly monitoring systems or the lack thereof to monitor spending on such transfers.
	N/A

	6. Details on difficulties experienced and steps taken (if any) to rectify difficulties where monitoring did take place.
	N/A

	Total out of 6 areas reported on B.7
	N/A

	B.8 Conditional grants and earmarked funds

B.8.1 The transferring department

	1. A summary of all grants transferred to provinces/municipalities in the following Table format:                                                                                                  N/A                      

Grant

GRANT ALLOCATION
TRANSFERRED

PROCESS

Division Revenue Act

Adjustments Estimate
Roll Overs

Total Available

Actual Transfers
Amount not transferred

% of available transferred

Payment Schedule

Transfers

Variance

R’000

R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
%

Date 

Amount

Date

Amount

Accredited amount number

Day/Month

Amount



	2. An outline of the purpose and expected outputs for each grant.
	N/A

	3. Explanation of whether transfers were made as scheduled.
	N/A

	4. Reasons if payments were delayed (not paid according to schedule) or withheld (non-transfers) and the extent of compliance with DORA. 
	N/A

	5. Description of nature of administration cost (if any) retained by national department.
	N/A

	6. Analysis of spending trends for each grant, indicating the extent to which compliance with conditions of grant was monitored.
	N/A

	7. Highlights of specific areas where compliance fell short of requirements and steps taken where a province/municipality failed to comply.
	N/A

	8. An indication of the extent to which outputs were achieved, providing a comparative analysis of provincial performance against targets.
	N/A

	9. An outline of reasons where performance fell short of expectations and measures taken to improve performance in coming years if grant is continuing.
	N/A

	10. An overall assessment of compliance with the DORA (both by the department and the receiving spheres and an explanation of measures taken where there was non-compliance.
	N/A

	Sub-total out of 10 areas reported on B.8.1
	N/A

	B.8.2 Receiving department should include the following information in the annual report on conditional grants received.

	1. A summary of all grants transferred to provinces/municipalities in the following table format:                                                                                           N/A                      

Grant

GRANT ALLOCATION
TRANSFERRED

PROCESS

Division Revenue Act

Adjustments Estimate
Roll Overs

Total Available

Actual 
Unspent

% of available spent

Payment Schedule

Receipts

Variance

R’000

R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
%

Date 

Amount

Date

Amount

Accredited amount number

Day/Month

Amount



	2. An overview of grants received, including types and total amount received.
	N/A

	3. An indication of the total amount of actual expenditure on all allocations.
	N/A

	4. Confirmation that all transfers were deposited into the accredited bank account of the Provincial/Municipal Treasury.
	N/A

	5. An indication of the extent to which the objectives were achieved, providing a comparative analysis of provincial performance against targets.
	N/A

	6. An outline of reasons where performance fell short of expectations and measures taken to improve performance in coming years if grant is continuing.
	N/A

	7. An overall assessment of compliance with the Act and an explanation of measures taken where there was non-compliance.
	N/A

	Sub-total out of 7 areas reported on B.8.2
	N/A

	B.9 Capital investment, maintenance and asset management plan.
B.9.1 Capital investment

	1. List of building projects currently in progress with an indication when they are expected to be completed.
	N/A

	2. Plans to close down or down-grade any current facilities.
	N/A

	3. The current maintenance backlog and plans on how to deal with the backlog over the Medium Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF).
	N/A

	4. Development relating to the above that are expected to impact on the department’s current expenditure.
	N/A

	Sub-total out of 4 areas reported on B.9.1
	0

	B.9.2 Maintenance

	1. How the actual expenditure compares to what the department planned to spend on maintenance.
	No

	2. Whether the expenditure is more or less than the property industry norms.
	No

	3. Progress made in addressing the maintenance backlog – has it grown or become smaller.
	No

	4. Is the rate of progress according to plan?  If not, why not and what measures have been taken to keep on track? 
	No

	Sub-total out of 4 areas reported on B.9.2
	0

	B.9.3 Asset management (Departments are required to provide an overview of the fixed and significant movable assets under the control of the department).

	1. Details on how asset holdings have changed over the period under review, including information on disposals, scrapping and loss due to theft.
	Yes

	2. Measures to ensure that the department’s asset register remained up-to-date during the period under review.
	Yes

	3. The current state of the department’s capital stock – for example, what percentage is in good, fair or bad condition?
	No

	4. Major maintenance projects that have been undertaken during the period under review.
	No

	5. Facilities that were closed down or down-graded during the period under review.
	No

	6. Projects that will be carried forward to the forthcoming financial year.
	No

	7. New projects that will commence in the forthcoming financial year.
	No

	8. Process in place for the tendering of projects.
	No

	Sub-total out of 8 areas reported on B.9.3
	2

	B. 10. Summary of programme performance.

	1. Performance is indicated in accordance with the ENE/Budget Statement as tabled in Parliament/the Legislature and the strategic/performance plan for the reporting period.
	Yes

	2. Reporting is done on each programme’s specified service delivery objectives, performance measures and targets in the exact order as specified in the ENE/Budget Statement and strategic/performance plan.
	Yes

	3. The same numbering used in strategic plan/performance plan is used in AR 
	No

	4. Deviations or no information is explained explicitly. 
	Yes

	5. Summary (list) of department’s programmes – including Administration
	Yes

	6. Then per programme – including Administration:

	6.1 Purpose: (Department to describe the purpose of the programme).
	Yes

	6.2 Measurable objective: (Department to describe the measurable objective(s) relating to the programme).
	Yes

	6.3 Service delivery objectives and indicators: (Department to describe the delivery objectives and indicators relating to the programme).
	Yes

	6.4 Service delivery achievements: (Departments should report on output information for each of the sub-programmes under the Programme in accordance with the performance measures and performance targets as specified in the 2008/09 ENE and strategic plan (for national departments) and as specified in the strategic plan for provincial departments.  The table below reflects an example of reporting against specified targets:

Sub-programme

Outputs

Output performance measures/service delivery indicators
Actual performance against target

Target
Actual
Curriculum and Assessment Development and Learner Achievement

Basic literacy programmes

Number of literacy programmes developed for learners and educators

800 000 adult learners in literacy and ABET programs

825 000 adult learners in literacy and ABET programs


	Yes

	7. Recent outputs 

	7.1 Brief synopsis on how the achievement of targets has contributed towards achieving the department’s outcomes.
	Yes

	7.2 Reasons for major variances (Departments to state the reasons for major variances between target and actual)
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 11 areas reported on B.10
	10

	Total out of 72 areas reported on B
	31

	C. AUDIT REPORTS, FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

	1. Report of the departmental Audit Committee.
	Yes

	2. Report of the Accounting Officer.
	Yes

	3. Auditor-General’s report.
	Yes

	4. Statements of accounting policies & related matters.
	Yes

	5. Appropriation Statements.
	Yes

	6. Notes on the Appropriation Statements.
	Yes

	7. Statement of financial performance – Income statement.
	Yes

	8. Statement of financial position – Balance Sheet.
	Yes

	9. Statement of changes in net Asset/Equity.
	Yes

	10. Cash Flow Statement.
	Yes

	11. Notes to the Financial Statements.
	Yes

	12. Disclosure notes to the Annual Financial Statements.
	Yes

	13. Annexures to the Annual Financial Statements.
	Yes

	Total out of 13 areas reported on C
	13

	D. HUMAN RESOURCES OVERSIGHT REPORT – Department of Public Service and Administration 

	D.1 Service delivery.

	1. Main services provided and standards.
	Yes

	2. Consultation arrangements with customers.
	Yes

	3. Service delivery access strategy.
	Yes

	4. Service information tool.
	Yes

	5. Complaints mechanism.
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 5 areas reported on D.1
	5

	D.2 Expenditure.

	1. Personnel costs by programme.
	Yes

	2. Personnel costs by salary bands.
	Yes

	3. Salaries, overtime, homeowners allowance and medical assistance by programme.
	Yes

	4. Salaries, overtime, home owners allowance and medical assistance by salary bands.
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 4 areas reported on D.2
	4

	D.3 Employment and vacancies.

	1. Employment and vacancies by programme.
	Yes

	2. Employment and vacancies by salary bands.
	Yes

	3. Employment and vacancies by critical occupation.
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 3 areas reported on D.3
	3

	D.4 Job evaluation.

	1. Job evaluation done during financial year under review by salary band. 
	Yes

	2. Profile of employees whose salary positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded by race, gender & disability.
	Yes

	3. Employees whose salary level exceeds the grade determined by job evaluation by occupation.
	Yes

	4. Profile of employees whose salary level exceeds the grade determined by job evaluation by race gender & disability.
	Yes

	5. No cases where the remuneration bands exceed the grade determined by job evaluation.
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 5 areas reported on D.4
	5

	D.5 Employment changes.

	1. Annual turnover rates by salary band.
	Yes

	2. Annual turnover rates by critical occupation.
	Yes

	3. Reasons why staff are leaving the department.
	Yes

	4. Promotions by critical occupation.
	Yes

	5. Promotions by salary band.
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 5 areas reported on D.5
	5

	D.6 Employment equity.

	1. Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in occupational categories, race & gender.
	Yes

	2. Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in occupational bands, race & gender.
	Yes

	3. Recruitment for the period under review by occupational band, race & gender.
	Yes

	4. Promotions for the period under review by occupational band, race & gender.
	Yes

	5. Terminations for the period under review by occupational band, race & gender.
	Yes

	6. Disciplinary actions for the period under review by race & gender.
	Yes

	7. Skills development for the period under review by occupational categories, race & gender.
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 7 areas reported on D.6
	7

	D.7 Performance Rewards.

	1. Performance rewards by race, gender, and disability.
	Yes

	2. Performance rewards by salary bands for personnel below Senior Management Service.
	Yes

	3. Performance rewards by critical occupations.
	Yes

	4. Performance related rewards (cash bonus), by salary band, for Senior Management Service.
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 4 areas reported on D.7
	4

	D.8 Foreign workers.

	8.1 Foreign workers by salary band comparing previous with current financial year and indicating the deviation (number and percentage).
	Yes

	8.2 Foreign workers by major occupation comparing previous with current financial year and indicating the deviation (number and percentage).
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 2 areas reported on D.8
	2

	D.9 Leave utilisation for the period 1 January to 31 December.

	1. Sick leave by salary band.
	Yes

	2. Disability leave (temporary and permanent) by salary band.
	Yes

	3. Annual leave by salary band.
	Yes

	4. Capped leave by salary band.
	Yes

	5. Leave payouts for the period 1 April to 31 March
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 5 areas reported on D.9
	5

	D.10 HIV/AIDS & Health Promotion Programmes.

	Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure.
	Yes

	Details of Health Promotion and HIV/AIDS Programmes.
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 2 areas reported on D.10
	2

	D.11 Labour relations.

	1. Collective agreements/No agreements
	Yes

	2. Outcomes of misconduct and disciplinary hearings finalised/No disciplinary hearings
	Yes

	3. Types of misconduct addressed at the disciplinary hearings.
	Yes

	4. Grievances lodged.
	Yes

	5. Disputes lodged with Councils.
	Yes

	6. Strike actions.
	Yes

	7. Precautionary suspensions.
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 7 areas reported on D.11
	7

	D.12 Skills development.

	1. Training needs identified by occupational category & gender.
	Yes

	2. Training provided by occupational category & gender.
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 2 areas reported on D.12
	2

	D.13 Injury on duty.

	Nature of injury on duty indicating: Required basic medical attention, temporary/permanent disabled, fatal.
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 1 area reported on D.13
	1

	D.14 Utilisation of consultants.

	1. Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds. 
	Yes

	2. Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds in terms of Historically Disadvantaged Individuals.
	Yes

	3. Report on consultant appointments using donor funds.
	Yes

	4. Analysis of consultant appointments using donor funds in terms of Historically Disadvantaged Individuals.
	Yes

	Sub-total out of 4 areas reported on D.14
	4

	Total out of 56 areas reported on D
	56

	
	Total level of detail to comply with
	152

	
	Level of detail met (Yes)
	106

	
	Level of detail not met (No)
	9

	
	Level of detail not applicable
	37

	
	% level of detail met
	93%


Source:
Republic of South Africa. The National Treasury. Guide for the preparation of annual reports. National/Provincial Departments for the year ended 31 March 2010. Issue date 31 March 2009.

Table 7.2 – Capacity to deal with requests for access to information

	Name of component
	Number of DIOs
	Were they appointed in writing?

YES/NO
	Do they have delegated authority to provide access to information?

YES/NO
	Are their tasks reflected in their performance agreements?

YES/NO

	1. Branch: Administration
	1
	No
	Yes
	No

	2. Branch: Leadership and Management Practices
	1
	No
	Yes
	No

	3. Branch: Monitoring and Evaluation
	1
	No
	Yes
	No

	4. Branch: Integrity and Anti-Corruption
	1
	No
	Yes
	No

	5. Director: Communication and Information Services
	1
	No
	Yes
	No

	Total
	5
	
	
	


Table 7.3 – Content checklist for the manual on access to information

	Standard
	√ 

	1. The manual is published in three official languages.
	Yes

	2. A description of the department’s structure and functions appears in the manual.
	Yes

	3. Information on the postal and street address, phone and fax number and, if available, electronic mail address of the information officer and of every deputy information officer appears in the manual.
	Yes

	4. A description of the guide on how to use the Act and how to obtain access to the guide is provided.
	Yes

	5. Sufficient detail to facilitate a request for access to a record is provided.
	Yes

	6. A description of the subjects on which the department holds records and the categories of records held on each subject is provided.
	Yes

	7. The categories of records of the department which are available without a person having to request access in terms of the Act are listed.
	Yes

	8. A description of the categories of records of the department that are automatically available without a person having to request access in terms of the Act is submitted to the Minister of Justice on an annual basis.
	Yes

	9. A description of the services available to members of the public from the department and how to gain access to those services.
	Yes

	10. A description of any arrangement or provision for a person, by consultation, making representations or otherwise, to participate in or influence the formulation of policy.
	Yes

	11. A description of all remedies available in respect of an act or a failure to act by the department.
	Yes

	12. The manual is updated and published at least once a year.
	Yes

	13. The manual is available at every place of legal deposit as defined in sec. 6 of the Legal Deposit Act,1997 
, SA Human Rights Commission, every (regional) office of the department; Government Gazette and Website if any
	Yes

	14. The department’s contact details including details of the information and the deputy information officer are available in every telephone directory, notice boards and departmental website.
	Yes

	
	Total Requirements to comply with
	14

	
	Number of Requirements met (yes)
	14

	
	Number of Requirements not met (no)
	0

	
	% of requirements met
	100%


Source:
Republic of South Africa. Department of Justice and Constitutional Development. Promotion of Access to
Information Act 2000, Act Number 2 of 2000. Chapter 2. Siber Ink Tokai. 2006.

Principle 8:  Good Human Resource Management and Career Development Practices

	Background



	1. Constitutional principle 
	Good human resource management and career development practices, to maximize human potential, must be cultivated.



	2. Performance indicator
	A. Recruitment 

Vacant posts are filled in a timely and effective manner.

B. Skills Development 

The Department complies with the provisions of the Skills Development Act. 



	3. Standards
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

A. Recruitment 

A.1  The existence of a human resource policy on recruitment

A recruitment policy is in place that complies with good practice standards and spells out a detailed recruitment procedure.
1,00

A. 2  Time taken to fill a vacancy

· All vacant posts assessed are filled within 90 days – including advertisement time. 
OR
· 75% of vacant posts assessed are filled within 90 days – including advertisement time.
OR
· 50% of vacant posts assessed are filled within 90 days – including advertisement time. 

OR

· Less than 50% of vacant posts assessed are filled within 90 days – including advertisement time.
1.00
0,50

0,25

0,00

A. 3  Regular management reporting on recruitment
1. Regular management reporting on recruitment is done.

2. Evidence on management’s response/actions on these reports is available.
0,50
0,50
B. Skills Development 

B.1  The existence of a skills development plan
1. A skills development plan is in place.

2. The skills development plan is based on a thorough skills needs analysis.
0,50

0,50

B.2  Performance against the skills development plan

1. Two thirds of planned skills development activities have been implemented.

2. Two thirds of planned skills development activities’ impact on service delivery has been assessed.
0,50

0,50

Maximum possible score 

5,00



	Assessment



	4. The existence of a human resource policy on recruitment
	Overview:

Clearly described procedures

The PSC does have a Recruitment and Selection Policy (RSP) in place.  The RSP clearly describes the recruitment procedure to be followed.  Explicit procedures are given, amongst others, in respect of achieving a representative workforce in accordance with the Employment Equity Act, 1998, advertising of posts, composition, appointment and responsibilities of the selection panel, compilation of short lists, interviewing process, and role of the secretariat, nomination and approval of candidates for advertised posts.
Responsibility delegation

The RSP prescribes that responsibilities should be clearly assigned in accordance with the approved human resource management delegation powers in the PSC.  The delegation of authority for human resource management (DAHRM) was approved by the Head of the PSC on 8 February 2007.  The DAHRM gives a description of each specific delegated power, the route and level of delegation (in terms of recommendation, approval and execution), and specific conditions where applicable.
Matching of skills with post requirements

The RSP ensures that a candidate’s skills, knowledge and abilities match the requirements of the post and the outcomes sought by the PSC, such as representivity.  The recruitment criteria is outlined in the advertisement of posts such as qualifications, relevant experience in and knowledge of the specific key performance areas, training, skills and employment equity (representivity). 

Open process

The process is open, competitive and free of bias, unlawful discrimination, nepotism or patronage.  The Policy also promotes that all candidates be treated equally, and that no preferential scores may be given for affirmative action.  The capacity and potential to do work and deliver services must be noted throughout.  The Policy further stipulates that all steps and processes must be documented.  An applicant has the right to enquire why his/her candidature was not considered for short listing and the secretariat must ensure that all documents are filed to be able to answer such requests.  In conclusion, the RSP underpins the principles of fairness, equity, confidentiality, professionalism and human dignity as espoused in the applicable legislative framework. 
Transparent decision-making

All notes and scoring schedules should be documented to ensure a transparent process that is open to review.  These documents are filed with the Directorate: Human Resource Management and Development.
Recruitment strategies

The Policy provides for creative recruitment strategies in circumstances where the PSC has difficulty in recruiting certain categories of personnel.  In such cases, for example, after the market is tested for candidates from advertising provincially and nationally, and suitable candidates could not be found from the short-listed candidates, a “head hunting” process may be applied in conjunction with normal recruitment strategies.
Rating:

The PSC has a detailed Recruitment and Selection Policy that complies with good practices and sound procedures.  It enshrines the principles of fairness, consistency, equity, transparency, confidentiality and merit. The Policy complies with all the legislative frameworks governing recruitment and selection in the Public Service, and with the standard set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  A full score of 1,00 is allocated.


	5. Recruitment times
	Overview:

Table 8.1 and the end of this report summarises the 20 most recent appointments within the PSC.  Based on the information contained in the said table, it takes the PSC on average 156 days (6 months) to fill a post.  The shortest period taken to fill a vacancy was 66 days for a post of Communication Assistant.  The longest time taken to fill a vacancy was 334 days (48 weeks) for a post of Deputy Director HoD Evaluations.  Three of the most recently filled posts were filled within 12 weeks.  Twelve weeks represent a generally acceptable standard for the filling of any vacancy according to the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.
The PSC has indicated that the long time taken to fill vacancies is due to unavailability of panel members and short listed candidates on the date of the interviews.
Eight (40%) of the 20 sampled posts were advertised within 30 days after the post had been vacated.  The remaining twelve posts were advertised between 34 and 204 days after the posts became vacant.  Of concern is that six of these posts were on the level of middle and senior management – see table below.
Post

Number of days taken to advertise a vacancy
1. Deputy Director HoD Evaluations

204

2. Deputy Director HRBP (1)

176

3. Regional Director Gauteng

112

4. Deputy Director HRBP
82
5. Chief Director PAI
51
6. Director-General 
44
In the sampled posts, no interviews were conducted within 10 working days after the closing date of the advertisement as required by the standard set in the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  The average time taken between the closing date for the advertised post and the date the interviews took place was 36 days.  The shortest period between the closing date and the interview was 17 days for a post of Communication Assistant, and the longest period was 69 days for a post of Chief Director PAI.  A further breakdown analysis between the shortest and longest time taken to finalise this part of the recruitment process reveals the following:
Days between closing date and interview date

Total number of posts

Number of posts

Below middle management

Middle management

Senior management

11 – 20
1
1
0
0
21 – 30

8
7
1
0
31 – 40
5
2
3
0
41 – 50
3

0
2

1

51 – 60
1

0
0
1

61 – 70
2
0
1
1
Total

20
10
7
3
The decision to appoint was taken within 30 days after the interviews in 18 (90%) of the cases.  The two posts which took in excess of 30 days after the interviews were that of Chief Director PAI (54 days) and Regional Director Gauteng (49 days).

Considering the guideline of 12 months on maximum to fill a vacancy set by PSCBC Resolution 1 of 2007, all twenty sampled posts were filled within the time frame of 12 months.
Rating:

The average time taken to fill a vacant post is 156 days (6 months).  None of the 20 identified posts were filled within the standard time frame of 90 days set by the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.  A score of 0, 00 out 1,00 is awarded.  Of concern is the slowness in finalising the recruitment process, especially in respect of the excessive time taken before a vacant post is advertised (between 44 and 204 days), and the time for interviews to take place after the closing date of the advertisement (between 17 days and 69 days).  Fifty percent of the sampled posts were affected by the slow process of which 7 posts were on middle management level, and 3 posts on senior management level.  According to the PSC the long time taken to fill vacancies is due to unavailability of panel members and short listed candidates on the date of the interviews.
Area for improvement:

Measures should be put in place immediately to ensure that vacancies are advertised soon after a resignation has been received, and that interviews should take place within 30 days after the closing date of the advertisement.  A good strategy is to split the recruitment process as follows:  30 days as running period for the vacancy; 30 days to complete the short listing and interviews; and 30 days to obtain approval and appoint the successful candidate.  Adhering to this guideline will ensure that vacancies are filled in a timely manner and that service delivery is not affected negatively.


	6. Management reporting on recruitment
	Overview:

Management reporting on recruitment, selection and appointment

A monthly status report on vacancies, recruitment (including advertisement of posts) and posts filled is submitted to management meetings.
What is reported to whom?
The status of vacancies, recruitment and posts filled are reported to the Deputy Director-General: Corporate Services who in turn reports to EXCO and EXMA.  

What action is taken on the basis of the reports?
PSC’s reports are used for the purpose of reviews and strategic planning.
Relevance between the time taken to fill a vacancy and management actions taken/not taken on these reports
The reports clearly convey the recruitment situation in the PSC and indicate where action is needed.

Rating:

Monthly management reporting on recruitment is done.  Definite action is taken by management to address challenges regarding the establishment as reflected in the reports.  However, of concern is that despite the monthly progress reports to EXCO and EXMA, and that recruitment challenges are seemingly been addressed during these meetings, the recruitment process remained exceedingly long (6 months).  This is an indication that either the information provided to management was not sufficient enough to propose informed strategies for improvement, or that management’s proposed actions were not implemented.  A score of 0,50 out of 1,00 is therefore awarded.
Areas for improvement:

The Deputy Director-General: Corporate Services, with immediate affect should ensure that monthly progress reports to management at least include the following:

· The post designation.

· The date the post became vacant.

· The date on which the post was advertised.

· The date of appointment.
· The reason(s) for delay(s).

Providing this information to EXCO and EXMA will enable management to take informed decisions about strategies for improvement.


	7. Skills development plan
	Overview:

When the Workplace Skills Development Plan (WSDP) was compiled, information regarding the strategic needs and critical skills required by the PSC was sourced from different sources such as the Office’s Strategic Human Resource Plan, Personal Development Plans and Quarterly Monitoring Report.
1. Essential skills required to execute the activities of the PSC
The PSC has an approved WSDP in place, which indicates the skills required to execute the activities of the PSC. There critical skills are as follows:

· Monitoring and Evaluation

· Labour Relations

· Report writing

· Project Management

· Investigations skills
2. Skills already possessed by staff per post

It is not clear which skills are possessed by the staff per post due to the fact that a skills audit exercise has not yet been conducted in the PSC.

3. Measures to acquire the skills to close the skills gap

Skills programmes are being presented to the staff to close the gaps identified in line with their PDPs taking into consideration critical training needs for the PSC.  Financial constrains impeded the presentation of skills programmes at a larger scale.  Furthermore, bursaries are awarded to the staff to ensure their development.  Mentorship policy has been developed and approved to guide the transfer of skills in the PSC.

4. Description of the training and development plans for previously disadvantaged groups

The WSDP addresses the global needs of the PSC on all levels and in all race groups.  The training and development needs of the previously disadvantaged groups are addressed in the WSDP. 

5. Prioritising, costing and providing of a budget to execute the plan

Prioritising, costs and a budget allocation to execute the plan, are captured in the WSDP per category of training as well as per occupational class. 

6. Overall quality of the plan

The overall quality of the WSDP meets the requirements, which the Department of Labour has prescribed for the Public Sector.  However, the WSDP falls short of indicating the skills that the PSC already possesses (lacks an employee profile).
Rating:

The PSC has a comprehensive workplace skills development plan (WSDP) in place.  However, it is not clear which skills are already possessed by staff per post due to the fact that a skills audit exercise has not yet been conducted in the PSC  A score of 0,50 out of 1,00 is awarded.

Areas for improvement:

The PSC should with immediate effect conduct a skills audit on the skills already possessed by all officials.  This will enable the Office to put an informed strategy in place for providing focussed training to close the skills gap.



	8. Performance against skills development plan
	Overview:

Summary of the PSC’s skills development activities planned
According to the WSDP for the 2009/109 financial year the PSC planned to have 219 training activities for the 213 officials on the establishment.  Only 75 (or 34%) of the planned activities were implemented – refer to Table 8.2 at the end of the report on this principle.  The PSC reported that financial constraints challenges lead to a situation where not all targeted employees eventually received training.
The planned and implemented activities were divided as follows:

Occupational Category

Gender

Planned training

Planned training implemented

Programmes & Short courses

Learnerships
Total

Programmes & Short courses

Learnerships
Total

Managers & professionals

Female

66

66
22
22
Male

58

58
24
24
Clerks & elementary occupations

Female

66

1

67

18

1

19

Male

31

1

32

9

1

10

Total occupational categories

Female

128

1

129

40

1

41

Male

89

1

90

33

1

34

Total for Department

217

2

219

73

2

75

According to the figures provided by the PSC, programme and short courses were planned for a total of 124 managers and professionals (66 females and 58 males), and 99 for clerks and elementary occupations (67 females and 32 males).  The PSC was able to implement 46 (37%) of the 124 planned training for managers and professionals and 29 (29%) of the 99 planned training for clerks and elementary occupations.  The majority of the training (61%) was provided to managers and professionals, whilst only 39% of the training was provided to clerks and elementary occupations.  The unevenness of training provided is of concern, especially in the absence of a knowledge base on the skills already possessed by staff.  It is also been noticed that none of the disabled officials on the establishment were considered or trained to enhance their capabilities, knowledge or performance.

Extent to which planned skills development activities are implemented and whether their impact on service delivery is assessed

Impact assessment of skills development activities implemented is not conducted.
Rating:

The PSC was able to implement 75 (or 34%) of the planned skills development activities.  The majority of the training (61%) was provided to managers and professionals, whilst only 39% of the training was provided to clerks and elementary occupations.  The unevenness of training provided is of concern, especially in the absence of a knowledge base on the skills already possessed by staff.  It is also been noticed that none of the disabled officials on the establishment were considered or trained to enhance their capabilities, knowledge or performance.  The impact of the implemented skills development activities on the service delivery of the PSC was not assessed.  A score of 0,50 is awarded. 
Area for improvement:
The PSC should annually:

· Ensure that planned skills development activities are aligned with the skills gap identified through a skills audit.
· Evaluate the impact of skills improvement on the PSC’s service delivery.

The implementation of this recommendation will assist the PSC to provide focussed training and ensure improvement in service delivery.



	Rating



	9. Score
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

A. Recruitment 

A.1  The existence of a policy on recruitment

A recruitment policy is in place that complies with good practice standards and spells out a detailed recruitment procedure.
1,00
A. 2  Time taken to fill a vacancy

Less than 50% of vacant posts assessed are filled within 90 days – including advertisement time.
0,00
A. 3  Regular management reporting on recruitment
· Regular management reporting on recruitment is done.

· Evidence on management’s response/actions on these reports is available.
0,50
0,00
B. Skills Development 

B.1  The existence of a skills development plan
· A skills development plan is in place.

· The skills development plan is based on a thorough skills needs analysis.
0,50
0,00
B.2  Performance against the skills development plan

· Two thirds of planned skills development activities have been implemented.

· Two thirds of planned skills development activities’ impact on service delivery has been assessed.

0,50
0,00
Total score 

2,50



	Sources
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Table 8.1 – Time taken for recruitment process of the twenty most recently filled posts

	A
	B
	C
	D
	E
	F
	G
	H

	Post
	Date vacant
	Date advertised
	Closing date
	Date of interviews
	Decision on Appoint-ment
	Appoint-ment date
	Days to fill the post  G - B

	1. Chief Accounting Clerk Salaries
	9/3/2009
	18/5/2009
	12/6/2009
	9/7/2009
	23/7/2009
	17/8/2009
	161

	2. Administrative Secretary: Gauteng
	4/5/2009
	18/5/2009
	12/6/2009
	8/7/2009
	24/7/2009
	1/8/2009
	89

	3. Assistant Director: Western Cape
	1/7/2009
	3/8/2009
	28/8/2009
	30/9/2009
	7/10/2009
	1/11/2009
	123

	4. Communication Assistant
	1/8/2009
	3/8/2009
	28/8/2009
	14/9/2009
	1/10/2009
	6/10/2009
	66

	5. Deputy Director: External Communication
	1/9/2009
	24/8/2009
	18/9/2009
	16/10/2009
	30/10/2009
	1/12/2009
	91

	6. Deputy Director: HoD Evaluations
	1/2/2009
	24/8/2009
	18/9/2009
	30/10/2009
	23/11/2009
	1/1/2010
	334

	7. Deputy Director: HRBP (1)
	1/3/2009
	24/8/2009
	18/9/2009
	23 & 30/10/2009
	23/11/2009
	1/12/2009
	275

	8. Deputy Director: PE
	1/9/2009
	14/9/2009
	9/10/2009
	13/11/2009
	1/12/2009
	1/1/2010
	122

	9. Assistant Director: Northern Cape
	7/8/2009
	14/9/2009
	9/10/2009
	9/11/2009
	26/11/2009
	1/2/2010
	178

	10. Director-General: OPSC
	1/8/2009
	14/9/2009
	9/10/2009
	20/11/2009
	1/12/2009
	1/1/2010
	153

	11. State Administration Officer CD: SDCE
	16/9/2009
	14/9/2009
	9/10/2009
	2/11/2009
	11/11/2009
	19/1/2010
	125

	12. Senior Security Administration Officer
	1/10/2009
	28/9/2009
	23/10/2009
	19/11/2009
	15/12/2009
	1/2/2010
	123

	13. Driver/Messenger Parl Off
	5/12/2009
	15/2/2010
	26/2/2010
	19/3/2010
	12/4/2010
	17/5/2010
	163

	14. Chief Director: PAI
	1/1/2010
	21/2/2010
	12/3/2010
	20/5/2010
	12/7/2010
	1/8/2010
	212

	15. Regional Director: Gauteng
	1/11/2009
	21/2/2010
	12/3/2010
	7/5/2010
	24/6/2010
	1/7/2010
	242

	16. Deputy Director: HRBP (2)
	1/12/2009
	21/2/2010
	12/3/2010
	13/5/2010
	30/5/2010
	21/6/2010
	202

	17. Administrative Secretary D: EA
	1/3/2010
	1/3/2010
	19/3/2010
	28/4/2010
	14/5/2010
	1/8/2010
	122

	18. Senior State Accountant Asset Management
	1/2/2010
	15/3/2010
	1/4/2010
	5/5/2010
	14/5/2010
	1/6/2010
	120

	19. Supply Chain Management Clerk
	1/3/2010
	15/3/2010
	1/4/2010
	29/4/2010
	14/5/2010
	18/5/2010
	78

	20. Administrative Secretary D: HoD
	1/2/2010
	23/3/2010
	9/4/2010
	5/5/2010
	31/5/2010
	14/6/2010
	133

	
	TOTAL NUMBER OF DAYS
	3 112

	
	AVERAGE NUMBER OF DAYS
	156

	
	AVERAGE NUMBER OF WEEKS
	22

	
	AVERAGE NUMER OF MONTHS
	6


Table 8.2 – Skills development activities planned and implemented

	Occupational Categories
	Gender
	Number of employees as at 1 April
	Training needs identified at start of reporting period
	Training provided within the reporting period
	How was impact assessed?

	
	
	
	Number of learnerships
	Number of skills programmes & other short courses
	Total
	Number of learnerships
	Number of skills programmes & other short courses
	Total
	

	1. Legislators, senior officials and managers
	Female
	20
	0
	28
	28
	0
	6
	6
	Not assessed

	2. 
	Male
	30
	0
	30
	30
	0
	14
	14
	Not assessed

	3. Technicians and associate professionals
	Female
	41
	0
	38
	38
	0
	16
	16
	Not assessed

	4. 
	Male
	39
	0
	28
	28
	0
	10
	10
	Not assessed

	5. Clerks 
	Female
	34
	0
	34
	34
	0
	12
	12
	Not assessed

	6. 
	Male
	17
	0
	22
	22
	0
	5
	5
	Not assessed

	7. Elementary occupations
	Female
	32
	1
	28
	28
	1
	6
	7
	Not assessed

	8. 
	Male
	18
	1
	9
	9
	1
	4
	5
	Not assessed

	9. Employees with disabilities.
	Female
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	10. 
	Male
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Sub-total
	Female
	127
	1
	128
	129
	1
	40
	41
	

	
	Male
	104
	1
	89
	90
	1
	33
	34
	

	Total
	231
	2
	217
	219
	2
	73
	75
	27 094


Source:
Republic of South Africa. The National Treasury. Guide for the preparation of annual reports. National/Provincial Departments for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Principle 9:  Representivity

	Background



	1. Constitutional principle 
	Public administration must be broadly representative of South African people, with employment and personnel management practices based on ability, objectivity fairness and the need to redress the imbalances of the past to achieve broad representation.



	2. Performance indicator 
	The Department is representative of the South African people and is implementing diversity management measures.



	3. Standards 
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

1. The existence of an employment equity policy and plan

· An approved employment equity policy that complies with section 1 of the EEA is in place.

· An approved employment equity plan that complies with section 20 of the EEA is in place.
0,50

0,50
2. The achievement of representivity targets
· All three national employment equity targets have been met.

OR

· Two of the three national employment equity targets have been met.

OR

· One of the national employment equity targets has been met.
OR

· None of the national employment equity targets have been met.
2,00

1,00

0,50
0,00
3. Regular management reporting on representivity
· Apart from reporting to the Department of Labour, implementation of the employment equity plan is reported to management at least twice a year.

· Evidence on management’s response/actions on these reports is available.
0,50

0,50
4. The implementation of diversity management measures
· Comprehensive (80% to 100%) diversity management measures are implemented.

OR

· Some (50% to 79%) diversity management measures are implemented.

OR

· Less than 50% diversity management measures are implemented.
1,00

0,50
0,00
Maximum possible score

5,00



	Assessment



	4. Employment equity policy and plan
	Overview:

Compliance of the employment equity policy with section 1 of the EEA
The PSC has a draft Employment Equity Policy (EE Policy) that complies with eleven (79%) of the fourteen requirements of section 1 of the Employment Equity Act, 1998, Act No. 55 of 1998.  The areas not addressed relate to remuneration, employment benefits and terms of conditions of employment, transfer and demotion.  The PSC is currently in the process of obtaining approval on the draft EE Policy.

Compliance of the employment equity plan with section 20 of the EEA
The PSC’s approved Employment Equity Plan (EE Plan), covers the period 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2010, and complies with seven (70%) of the ten requirements of section 20 of the Employment Equity Act, 1998, Act No. 55 of 1998.  The areas not addressed relate to strategies to achieve representivity goals, procedures to evaluate the implementation of equity targets, and internal procedures to resolve disputes about the interpretation/implementation of the plan.
Documents have been submitted to the Department of Labour
These documents have not been submitted to the Department of Labour.
Rating:

Compliance of the employment equity policy with section 1 of the EEA
The PSC has a draft Employment Equity Policy (EE Policy) which complies with 79% of the requirements of section 1 of the Employment Equity Act, 1998, (Act No. 55 of 1998).  Since the EE policy is not approved yet, a score of 0,00 out of 0,50 is awarded.

Compliance of the employment equity plan with section 20 of the EEA
The PSC has an approved Employment Equity Plan (EEP) the period 1 April 2007 to 31 March 2010 that complies with 70% of the requirement of section 20 of the Employment Equity Act, 1998, (Act No. 55 of 1998).  A full score of 0,50 is awarded.

Documents have been submitted to the Department of Labour
None of these documents have been submitted to the Department of Labour.
Area for improvement:

The PSC should before the end of the 2010/11 financial year:

· Review both the EE Policy and EE Plan to ensure that it complies with all the requirements of sections 1 and 20 of the Employment Equity Act, 1998, (Act No 55 of 1998).

· Ensure that both EE Policy and EE Plan are approved.

· Ensure that both these documents are submitted to the Department of Labour.


	5. Achievement of representivity targets
	Overview:

The PSC’s progress on employment equity according to figures provided in the AR for 2009/10 is captured in Tables 9.3 and 9.4 and the end of this report.  The PSC’s compliance with the national representivity targets was as follows:

National Targets

PSC’s compliance

75% Black at senior management level at the end of April 2005.

88% Blacks in Senior Management – 13% above the required standard of 75% set for April 2005.

At least 50% at all senior management level s should be women by 31 March 2009.

40% women at senior management – 10% below the standard set for 31 March 2009.

Disability target of 2% to be achieved by 31 March 2010.

2,2% people with disability – 0,2% above the required standard of 2% set for 2005.

Overall the PSC has 90% Blacks in its employ.  Comparing to the 82% Black economically active population in the Province as determined by Statistics SA (STATSA) in 2003, the PSC has an overall surplus of 8% Blacks on its establishment.  According to the representivity targets set in Table 9.3, the PSC aimed to have 89% Blacks on its establishment, which is still 7% more Blacks than the 82% figure of STATSA.  Of concern is that no targets have been set for top management posts.
Senior Management

At senior management (salary levels 13-16), there are clear imbalances.  The representation of Blacks is 88% in relation to the National target of 75%.  This means that the PSC has a surplus of 13% Blacks on senior management level.
Gender

The representivity of women at top and senior level stands at 40% (10% lower than the target of 50% set for 31 March 2009.  In relation to the Provincial demographics of 46% women, the PSC has a shortfall of 6% women at senior management level.  However, the PSC overall has 55% women in its employ, which is indicative that there is a potential pool to meet the need for employment of women on senior management level in the long term.  
Disability

Comparing to the prescribed 2%, the PSC at the end of the 2009/10 financial year had 2,2% persons with disabilities on middle management level in its employ.  This means that the PSC is over represented by 0,20% in this category of employees.  The PSC has got an EE plan in place for the recruitment and employment of people with disabilities.
Rating

At the end of the 2009/10 financial year the PSC had 88% Blacks at senior management level, which is an over representivity of 13% against the target of 75% set for 30 April 2005.  Women at all senior management levels comprise 40%, which represents a deficit of 10% against the target of 50% set for 31 March 2009.  People with disability comprise 2,2% which is a over representivity of 0,2% against the target of 2%.  The PSC thus achieved 2 of the three national targets, which translates to a score of 1,00 out of 2,00 in the PSC’s Transversal M&E System.
Area for improvement:

The PSC should with immediate effect address the representivity imbalances which occur in respect of the overall number of Blacks on the establishment in relation to the Black economically active population in the Province, and the number of women at top and senior management level.



	6. Management reporting on representivity
	Overview:

Management reporting on representivity
Progress is monitored by the Directorate: Human Resource Management and Development (D: HRMD).  Apart from the annual report to the PSC of Labour, monthly employment equity targets are discussed at EXMA, EXCO and Plenary.  The D: HRMD also compiles a quarterly status report on the full establishment.

What is reported to whom?
The implementation of and progress with the employment equity plan are discussed by management at EXMA.  Monthly employment equity targets are also distributed at management meetings.  The recruitment, selection and appointment position is reported in the quarterly Performance Progress Report and reflected in the Annual Performance Plan.
What action is taken on the basis of the reports?
Definite action is taken by the relevant managers to ensure that the proposed employment equity targets, provided by the D: HRMD, are met during the filling of vacant posts on their respective establishments.  According to the minutes of an EXMA meeting held on 26 October 2009, the Acting DG advised the DDG: CS that the Regional Director: Gauteng position needed to be advertised.  The D: PSCS reported that vacant posts of the Commissioner in the Western Cape and North West provinces will be filled and that the post of Commissioner in the Northern Cape has been advertised due to the end of the term of Office Commissioner which ended 7 November 2009.
Relevance between the time taken to achieve representivity targets and management actions taken/not taken on these reports
The time taken to achieve representivity targets vary because posts are filled as when there are vacancies.  A quarterly status report is submitted to the Director-General and top management on the racial and gender distribution, and employment of people with disabilities.  The D: HRMD undertakes regular audits of the establishment to ensure that employment equity matters are addressed, of which the outcome is reported in a quarterly performance report.
Rating:

Apart from the annual report to the Department of Labour, the implementation of and progress with the employment equity plan are discussed by management at EXMA.  Representivity figures are submitted to EXCO and Plenary.  Evidence on management’s action on these reports is available.  A full score of 1,00 is awarded.  Of concern, though, is that the imbalances which occur are seemingly not addressed despite this progress reports on representivity.


	7. Diversity management measures
	Overview

The PSC’s progress with implementing diversity management measures was assessed against the checklist of standards in Tables 9.5 for good diversity management measures and the end of this report.  The Annual Employment Equity Report 2009/10 to the Department of Labour does not have evidence that demonstrates that the PSC embraces diversity issues.  However, the following areas in which the PSC has made progress with diversity management against the standards listed in Table 9.5, are highlighted below:
1. The PSC’s Recruitment and Selection Policy addresses representivity

The employment equity plan of the PSC addresses representivity.  However, there is no EE policy in place. 

2. The EE Plan indicates specific strategies/targets and time tables to be achieved

The EE Plan does indicate the specific strategies/targets.  There is also an action plan to achieve the set targets. 

3. Representivity targets are cascaded through all occupational categories and job levels in the PSC

During short listing and interviews with candidates the PSC adheres to its occupational targets.
4. Representivity targets at all occupational categories and job levels are quarterly monitored

A quarterly report indicates progress with regard to progress with representatively in the PSC and the report is submitted to EXMA.
5. The PSC’s workforce reflects the population demographics of the province

The PSC is a national department and, therefore, do not show the demographics of the Gauteng Province but that of the country. 

Below is the table illustrating the PSC adherence to the National demographics:
National

PSC
Africans = 76%

Africans = 90 %

Coloureds = 10%

Coloureds 10 %

Indians = 4%

Indians = 4 %

Whites = 10% 

Whites = 10%

Disability = 1%

Disability = 2.2%

6. Vacant posts are widely advertised in specific publications where minorities and women are expected to seek jobs
Vacant posts are advertised in the Public Service Vacancy Circular and in national news papers where they are accessible to minorities and women.

7. Vacant posts are advertised in at least four of the eleven languages predominantly spoken in Gauteng

Vacancies are advertised in English only.
8. Under utilisation of occupational categories and job levels is identified
Not applicable.
9. Goals are established to reduce under utilisation of occupational categories and job levels

Not applicable.
10. Employee development is integrated and in line with the critical skills needed to advance in service delivery (for example through job rotation and/or job enrichment)

The PSC’s employee development is integrated and aligned with the critical skills needed in the PSC to advance service delivery.  Training gaps are annually identified through officials’ PDPs which appear in their work agreements.  The interventions used are for example, formal education, seminars, conferences and skills programmes such as ABET and Learnerships  

11. Diversity competencies such as how to deal with different cultures, religions and understanding the impact of diversity on relationships and service delivery, form part of SMS members’ performance agreements

Diversity management among other programmes are continuously addressed at bi-monthly top management meetings.
The PSC continues to improve and/or change management diversity in the areas such as culture, gender, disability and employment equity.  It has truly transformed over the past years.
12. Training on cultural awareness/differences among people (for example religion, habits, feasts) is provided at least once a year

Diversity is broadly addressed during the quarterly induction of new employees.  Other awareness activities which occur throughout the year include, for example, woman’s day celebrations, wellness day, and cultural day activities.
13. Cultural preferences, behaviour and skills that help people bridge their differences have been identified

The PSC acknowledges cultural differences.  Opportunities are afforded to employees to showcase their culture by means of dressing and eating preference and dislikes on Heritage Day and social hub networking.

14. The general mood and morale of the department’s workforce and the impact on service delivery are assessed at least twice a year

An exercise to establish the general mood and moral of officials within the PSC was conducted during February 2010.

15. The recruitment/promotion/resignation of employees from designated groups is carefully monitored in terms of the overall targets of the employment equity plan and to implement corrective measures where necessary
The PSC has an approved employment equity strategy in place which amongst others, requires that employment equity issues should be included in all SMS members’ performance agreement.  This will ensure that SMS members are assessed against the achievement of EE targets.  

The PSC endeavours to create an equitable working environment.  Recruitment targets for previously disadvantaged are, therefore, part of the performance agreements of senior managers.  Diversity issues also form part of advertisements and the recruitment processes.

16. Ways such as scholarships, learnerships and bursaries to access candidates from designated groups and occupational categories are considered and acted upon
To assist the PSC in overcoming diversity management barriers, provision for change management and ABET courses, amongst others, have been made:

Diversity management provides support for various operational aspects, especially with regard to mentoring of staff, job descriptions and procedure manuals.  The D: HRMD plays an important and active role in ensuring that policies are in place, which subscribe to and enhance equity, fair treatment and tolerance with diversity issues.

17. The PSC’s workplace conditions are focussed on the health and wellness of the workforce
A diversity management implementation plan that indicates the key performance areas for change management, actions, applicable policies, operational guidelines, responsible structures minimum standards and M&E processes has not yet been fully developed and implemented.  Notwithstanding the absence of such a plan, the following are some of the activities undertaken to promote diversity awareness in the PSC:

· The PSC through ICAS runs advocacy programmes, namely, the HIV/AIDS Life Skills Orientation Programme, Employee Wellness Programme and the HIV and AIDS in the Workplace. 

· The Employment Equity Consultative Forum ensures the implementation of employment equity plan as well as change management.

a) Workplace design and ergonomics

Since the offices of the PSC are not close to restaurants, it provides kitchen facilities and slot machines with cool drinks and snacks for officials.  Parking bays and restroom facilities for people with disabilities are also catered for.  However the air conditioners and lifts are most of the time out of order and there is generally a problem with office space.  As a result, two to eight officials are squeezed together in small offices, which is not conducive to their well being and performance.

b) There is a definite balance between work and family
Generally there is an improvement in the balance between work and family.  For example, the number of employees who work overtime has significantly reduced, and an Independent Counselling Advisory Service (ICAS) was appointed to assist in the employee wellness programme, which helps employees to balance work & family issues. 

c) Employees have access to kitchen facilities
At each floor there is a kitchen equipped with a fridge, microwave oven and hot water.

d) A policy for smokers is in place

A smoking policy is in place, which provides for designated smoking areas within the offices of the PSC.

e) A policy on workplace bullying and sexual harassment is in place

The PSC has in place a policy against a sexual harassment, but not against workplace bullying. 

f) The PSC’s office buildings are in all respects (parking, entrances, lifts, rest rooms, waiting rooms, offices, equipment) accessible to people with disabilities

The lifts and other facilities in the PSC’s Offices are equipped for physically challenged employees and customers.  However, the lifts create a problem, since it is constantly out of order, which is not helpful for the physically disabled.  It also negatively affects the PSC’s image to its visitors which come from all over the world.  The PSC takes reasonably account of the work environment when diversity management issue have to be considered and accommodated, for example, the PSC through ICAS runs advocacy programmes, such as the HIV/AIDS Life Skills Orientation Programme, Employee Wellness Programme and the HIV and AIDS in the Workplace 

Rating:

Comprehensive measures regarding diversity management have been implemented.  The PSC is applying transversal and national policies as well as frameworks to enhance equity and diversity management.  Measures have been put in place to sensitize its employees on diversity issues.  The only areas that need attention are the advertisement of vacancies in more than one language, the Office’s workspace, the lifts and air condition and the drafting of a policy against workplace bullying.   A full score of 1,00 is nevertheless awarded.


	Rating



	8. Score
	DESCRIPTION

POINTS

1. The existence of an employment equity policy and plan

· An approved employment equity policy that complies with section 1 of the EEA is in place.

· An approved employment equity plan that complies with section 20 of the EEA is in place.
0,00
0,50
2. The achievement of representivity targets
Two of the three national employment equity targets have been met.
1,00
3. Regular management reporting on representivity
· Apart from reporting to the Department of Labour, implementation of the employment equity plan is reported to management at least twice a year.

· Evidence on management’s response/actions on these reports is available.
0,50
0,50
4. The implementation of diversity management measures
Comprehensive (80% to 100%) diversity management measures are implemented.
1,00
Total score
3,50


	Sources
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2. Republic of South Africa. Public Service Commission. Gender Mainstreaming Initiatives in the Public Service. November 2006.



Table 9.1 – Compliance with EE policy requirements
	Policy Requirements
	√ 

	1. Recruitment procedures, advertising and selection criteria.
	√

	2. Appointments and appointment process.
	√

	3. Job classification and grading.
	√

	4. Remuneration.
	X

	5. Remuneration, employment benefits and terms of conditions of employment.
	√

	6. Job assignments.
	√

	7. The working environment and facilities.
	√

	8. Training and development.
	√

	9. Performance evaluation systems.
	√

	10. Promotion.
	√

	11. Transfer.
	X

	12. Demotion.
	X

	13. Disciplinary measures other than dismissal.
	√

	14. Dismissal.
	√

	
	Total Requirements to comply with
	14

	
	Number of Requirements met (yes)
	11

	
	Number of Requirements not met (no)
	3

	
	% of requirements met
	79%


Source:
Republic of South Africa. Department of Labour. Employment Equity Act 1998, Act Number 55 of 1998,

Section 1 - Definitions.

Table 9.2 – Compliance with EE plan requirements

	Plan Requirements
	√ 

	1. The objectives to be achieved for each year of the plan.
	√

	2. The affirmative action measures to be implemented as required by section 15(2) of the Act. 
	√

	3. Where under representation of people from designated groups has been identified, the numerical goals to achieve the equitable representation of suitable qualified people from designated groups within each occupational category and level, the timetable and strategies to achieve these numerical goals.
	X

	4. The timetable for each year of the plan for the achievement of goals and objectives other than numerical goals.
	√

	5. The duration of the plan: not shorter than 1 year; and not longer than 5 years.
	√

	6. The procedures that will be used to monitor and evaluate the implementation of the plan and the progress towards implementing employment equity.
	X

	7. Internal procedures to resolve any dispute about the interpretation/implementation of the plan.  
	X

	8. The persons – including senior managers – responsible for monitoring and implementing the plan.
	√

	9. A copy of the plan is freely available to all employees.
	√

	10. Establishment records are available. 
	√

	
	Total Requirements to comply with
	10

	
	Number of Requirements met (yes)
	7

	
	Number of Requirements not met (no)
	3

	
	% of requirements met
	70%


Source:
Republic of South Africa. Department of Labour. Employment Equity Act 1998, Act Number 55 of 1998,

Section 20 - Definitions.

Table 9.3 – Number of staff by gender and population group

	Occupational Bands
	Statistics
	Male
	Female
	Total

	
	
	African
	Coloured
	Indian
	White
	African
	Coloured
	Indian
	White
	

	1. Top management
	Actual
	8
	0
	1
	0
	4
	1
	0
	0
	14

	2. 
	Target
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	3. Senior management
	Actual
	16
	2
	1
	2
	9
	1
	1
	4
	36

	4. 
	Target
	16
	2
	1
	2
	16
	2
	1
	2
	42

	5. Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management
	Actual
	29
	3
	0
	7
	32
	2
	2
	5
	80

	6. 
	Target
	28
	4
	1
	4
	28
	4
	2
	4
	75

	7. Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management, supervisors, foreman and superintendents.
	Actual
	16
	0
	0
	1
	28
	1
	2
	3
	51

	8. 
	Target
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	9. Semi skilled and discretionary decision- making
	Actual
	16
	1
	0
	0
	27
	5
	0
	0
	49

	10. 
	Target
	41
	5
	2
	6
	41
	6
	2
	6
	109

	11. Unskilled and defined decision-making
	Actual
	1
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	1

	
	Target
	1
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	0
	1

	Total
	Actual
	86
	6
	2
	10
	100
	10
	5
	12
	231

	
	Target
	86
	11
	4
	12
	85
	12
	5
	12
	227


Source:
Republic of South Africa. The National Treasury. Guide for the Preparation of Annual Reports. National/Provincial Departments for the year ended 31 March 2008.

Table 9.4 – Number of staff by disability

	=Occupational Bands
	Statistics
	Male
	Female
	Total
	% of total

Establish-

ment

	
	
	African
	Coloured
	Indian
	White
	African
	Coloured
	Indian
	White
	
	

	1. Top management
	Actual
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	2. 
	Target
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	3. Senior management
	Actual
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	4. 
	Target
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	5. Professionally qualified and experienced specialists and mid-management
	Actual
	1
	0
	0
	1
	2
	1
	0
	0
	5
	6,25%

	6. 
	Target
	1
	2
	0
	0
	2
	0
	0
	0
	5
	6,67%

	7. Skilled technical and academically qualified workers, junior management, supervisors, foreman and superintendents  
	Actual
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	8. 
	Target
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	9. Semi skilled and discretionary decision- making
	Actual
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	10. 
	Target
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	11. Unskilled and defined decision-making
	Actual
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	
	Target
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Total
	Actual
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	5
	2,2%

	
	Target
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	
	5
	2,2%


Source:
Republic of South Africa. The National Treasury. Guide for the preparation of annual reports. National/Provincial Departments for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Table 9.4 – Diversity management checklist

	Standard
	√ 

	1. The department’s recruitment and selection policy addresses representivity in the workforce.
	√

	2. The department’s employment equity plan addresses strategies, targets and a time table to achieve a representative workforce.
	√

	3. Representivity targets are cascaded through all occupational categories and job levels in the department
	√

	4. The achievement of representivity targets at all occupational categories and job levels in the department is monitored at least on a quarterly basis.
	√

	5. The department’s workforce reflects the population demographics of the province.
	√

	6. Vacant posts are widely advertised in specific publications where minorities and women are expected to seek jobs.
	√

	7. Vacant posts are advertised in at least four of the eleven languages that are predominantly spoken in the specific area/province.
	X

	8. Under utilisation of occupational categories and job levels is identified.
	√

	9. Goals are established to reduce under utilisation of occupational categories and job levels.
	√

	10. Employee development is integrated and in line with the critical skills needed to advance in service delivery (for example through job rotation and/or job enrichment).
	√

	11. Diversity competencies such as how to deal with different cultures, religions, diverse work teams and understanding the impact of diversity on business relationships and service delivery, form part of SMS members’ performance agreements.
	√

	12. Training on cultural awareness/differences among people (for example religion, habits, feasts) is provided at least once a year throughout the year.
	√

	13. Cultural preferences, behaviour and skills that help people bridge the, and leverage differences have been identified.
	√

	14. The general mood and morale of the department’s workforce and the impact on service delivery are assessed at least twice a year.
	X

	15. The recruitment/promotion/resignation of employees from designated groups is carefully monitored in terms of the overall targets of the employment equity plan.
	√

	16. The recruitment/promotion/resignation of employees from designated groups is carefully monitored to establish trends for implementing corrective measures.
	√

	17. Ways such as scholarships, learnerships and bursaries to access candidates from designated groups and occupational categories are considered and acted upon.
	√

	18. The department’s workplace conditions are focussed on the health and wellness of the workforce by actively addressing and implementing the following:

	a. The workplace design and ergonomics are conducive to employees’ wellbeing.
	X

	b. There is a definite balance between work and family.
	√

	c. Employees have access to kitchen facilities. 
	√

	d. A policy for smokers is in place.
	√

	e. A policy on workplace bullying and sexual harassment is in place.
	X

	f. The department’s office buildings are in all respects (parking, entrances, lifts, rest rooms, waiting rooms, offices, equipment) accessible to people with disabilities.
	√

	
	Total Requirements to comply with
	23

	
	Number of Requirements met (yes)
	19

	
	Number of Requirements not met (no)
	4

	
	% of requirements met
	83%


(Checklist Numbers 1 – 14).
Source:
Reichenberg, Neil, R. United Nations Expert Group Meeting on Managing Diversity in the Civil Service. Best Practice in Diversity Management. Executive Director. International Personnel Management Association. United Nations Head Quarters. New York. 3 – 4 May 2001.

(Checklist Numbers 15 – 18).

Source:
Republic of South Africa. Department of Public Service and Administration. Draft Strategic Human Resource Planning Guide and Toolkit. Version 1.0. March 2007.

APPENDICES

APPENDIX A.1:  Attendance list – introductory meeting

Introductory meeting on 14 June 2010
Attendance List

	NAME
	RANK

	1. Mr. I. Naidoo
	DDG: M&E

	2. Ms. B. Lerumo
	DDG: CS

	3. Ms. J. S. Henning
	D: PSM&ES

	4. Mr. A. Maluleke 
	D: HR

	5. Mr. E. E. Masango
	DD: IT

	6. Mr. H. D. Ramafoko
	D: CIS

	7. Mr. S. B. Ngcobo
	D: IT


APPENDIX A.2:  Attendance list – presentation of the M&E Report 

Presentation of the Draft M&E Report on 8 March 2011
Attendance List

	NAME
	RANK

	8. Mr. M. Diphofa
	D-G

	9. Mr. I Naidoo
	DDG: M&E

	10. Ms. B. Lerumo
	DDG: CS

	11. Mr. J. P. v/d Merwe
	CD: GM

	12. Dr. D. Mamphiswana
	DDG: IAC

	13. Mr. E. E. Masango
	DD: IT

	14. Ms. L. C. Viviers
	CD: SO

	15. Ms. C. B. Julie
	CD: HRBP

	16. Mr. H. D. Ramafoko
	D: CIS

	17. Ms. I. L. Mathenjwa
	Acting CD: CE&OR

	12. Mr. A. Maluleke 
	D: HR

	18. Mr. J. Mathe
	D: PE

	19. Mr. P. J. Semenya
	D: CIRAS

	20. Mr. J. Mentoor
	CD: PE

	21. Mr. J. Kgoedi
	D: PSCS

	22. Ms. J. S. Henning
	D: PSM&ES

	23. Mr. L. Naidoo
	D: PAI (3)

	24. Ms. M. E. Fourie
	D: CE&OR

	25. Ms. M. J. Mashao
	CD: LRI

	26. Ms. P. Govender
	D: HRBP (1)

	27. Mr. R. Davids
	D: PERP

	28. Mr. S. Ngema
	D: HoDEVAL

	29. Mr. S. B. Ngcobo
	D: IT

	30. Ms. T. G. Moeeng
	D: PAI (2)

	31. Mr. T. J. Matlhare
	D: MCI

	32. Mr. T. J. Mokomatsidi
	D: HRBP (2)

	33. Mr. L. B. Mgengo
	RD: EC

	34. Ms. M.S. Santho
	RD: FS

	35. Ms. D. Mkwanyana
	RD: Gaut

	36. Mr. B. F. M. Khonjwayo
	RD: KZN

	37. Mr. M. M. Chale
	RD: Limpopo

	38. Mr. J. Malan
	RD: NC

	39. Ms. K. G. Seabelo
	RD: NW

	40. Mr. R. Erasmus
	Acting RD: WC


APPENDIX B: List of values, performance indicators, standards and applicable policies/regulations per principle
	Constitutional Principle and Value
	Performance Indicator
	Standards
	Applicable Legislation and Regulations

	1. Professional ethics.

Value:  A high standard of professional ethics must be promoted and maintained.
	Cases of misconduct where a disciplinary hearing has been conducted, comply with the provisions of the DCPPS.
	2. A procedure is in place for reporting, recording and managing cases of misconduct.

3. All the managers surveyed have a working knowledge of the system.

4. Management reporting is done on cases of misconduct and acted upon.

5. All of the most recent cases of misconduct in which a disciplinary hearing is conducted are finalized within the time frame of 20 – 80 working days.

6. All the managers are capable to deal with cases of misconduct.

7. Frequent training is provided on the handling of cases of misconduct.
	· Disciplinary Codes and Procedures for the Public Service.

· Public Service Coordinating Bargaining Council (PSCBC) Resolution 2 of 1999 as amended by Public Service Coordinating Bargaining Council Resolution 1 of 2003.

· Code of Conduct for the Public Service.

	2. Efficiency economy and effectiveness.

Value:  Efficient, economic and effective use of resources must be promoted.
	1. Expenditure is in accordance with the budget.

2. Programme outputs are clearly defined and there is credible evidence that they have been achieved.


	1. Expenditure is as budgeted for and material variances are explained.

2. More than half of each programme’s Performance Indicators (PIs) are measurable in terms of quantity, quality and time dimensions.

3. Outputs, PIs and targets are clearly linked with each other as they appear in the SP, estimates of expenditure and the AR for the year under review.

4. Programmes are implemented as planned or changes to implementation are reasonably explained.
	· Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999, Sections 38 to 40.

· Treasury Regulations.  Part 3:  Planning and Budgeting.

· Public Service Regulations.  Part III/B.  Strategic Planning.

· Treasury Guidelines on preparing budget submissions for the year under review.

· Treasury Guide for the Preparation of ARs of departments for the financial year ended 31 March.

· National Planning Framework.

	3. Development oriented Public Administration.

Value: Public administration must be development-oriented.
	The Department is effectively involved in programmes/projects that aim to promote development and reduce poverty.


	1. Beneficiaries play an active role in the governance, designing and monitoring of projects.

2. A standardised project plan format is used showing:

a) All relevant details including measurable objectives.

b) Time frames (targets). 

c) Clear governance arrangements.

d) Detailed financial projections.

e) Review meetings.

f) Considering issues such as gender, the environment and HIV/AIDS.

3. Poverty reduction projects are aligned with IDPS.

4. Organisational learning takes place.

5. Projects are successfully initiated and/or implemented.
	Section 195 (c) of the Constitution.

	4. Impartiality and fairness.

Value:  Services must be provided impartially, fairly, equitably and without bias.
	There is evidence that the Department follows the prescribed procedures of the Promotion of Administrative Justice Act (PAJA) when making administrative decisions.

	1. All decisions are taken in accordance with prescribed legislation/policies and in terms of delegated authority.

2. All decisions are justified and fair considering the evidence submitted in this regard.

3. The procedures required in the PAJA in communicating administrative decisions are duly followed.
	· Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, Act No 3 of 2000.

· Regulations on Fair Administrative Procedures, 2002.

· Departmental delegations of authority.

	5. Public participation in policy-making.

Value:  People’s needs must be responded to and the public must be encouraged to participate in policy-making.
	The Department facilitates public participation in policy-making.
	1. A policy and guideline on public participation in policy-making is in place. 

2. A system for soliciting public inputs on key matters is in use and effectively implemented.

3. All policy inputs received from the public are acknowledged and formally considered. 
	White Paper for Transforming Public Service Delivery (Batho Pele).

	6. Accountability.

Value:  Public administration must be accountable.
	3. Adequate internal financial controls and performance management are exerted over all departmental programmes.

4. FPPs, based on thorough risk assessments, are in place and are implemented.


	1. The A-G’s assessments of internal financial controls conclude that they are adequate and effective.

2. A performance management (M&E) system on all departmental programmes is in operation.

3. FPPs are based on a thorough risk assessment.

4. FPPs are in place and are comprehensive and appropriate, and are implemented.

5. Key staff for ensuring implementation of FPPs, especially investigation of fraud, are in place and operational.


	· Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999.

· Treasury Regulations.  Part 3:  Planning and Budgeting.

· White Paper for Transforming Public Service Delivery (Batho Pele).

· Public Service Regulations.  Part III/B.  Strategic Planning.

· Treasury Guidelines on preparing budget submissions, 2002.

· Treasury Guide for the Preparation of ARs of departments for the financial year ended 31 March.

National Planning Framework.

	7. Transparency.

Value:  Transparency must be fostered by providing the public with timely, accessible and accurate information.
	A. Departmental AR

The departmental AR complies with NT’s guideline on Annual Reporting.

B. Access to Information

The Department complies with the provisions of the Promotion of Access to Information Act (PAIA).


	A. Departmental AR

1. The Report is attractive and clearly presented and is well written in simple accessible language.

2. The content of the AR covers in sufficient detail at least 90% of the areas prescribed by NT and the DPSA.

3. The AR clearly report on performance against predetermined outputs in at least two thirds of the programmes listed.

B. Access to Information

1. The department has at least one deputy information officer with duly delegated authority.

2. A manual on functions of and index of records held by the department that complies with the requirements of the PAIA is in place.

3. Systems for managing requests for access to information are in place.
	· Public Finance Management Act 1999, Act 1 of 1999.

· NT’s guideline for the Preparation of ARs.

· The Department of Public Administration’s guide for an Oversight Report on Human Resources.

· PSC.  Evaluation of Departments’ ARs as an Accountability Mechanism.  October 1999.

· White Paper for Transforming Public Service Delivery (Batho Pele).

· Promotion of Access to Information Act 2000, Act 2 of 2000.

· Departmental delegations of authority.

	8. Good human resource management and career development practices.

Value:  Good human resource management and career development practices, to maximize human potential, must be cultivated.
	A. Recruitment 

Vacant posts are filled in a timely and effective manner.

B. Skills Development 

The Department complies with the provisions of the Skills Development Act.


	A. Recruitment
1. A recruitment policy complying with good practice standards and spelling out a detailed procedure is in place. 

2. Vacant posts are filled within 90 days – including advertisement time.

3. Regular management reporting on recruitment is done.

B. Skills development 
1. A skills development plan, based on a thorough skills needs analysis, is in place 

2. Activities planned for are implemented 

3. The results achieved through skills development are monitored and recorded.
	· Public Service Regulations, 2001 as amended.

· Public Service Act.



	9. Representivity.

Value:  Public administration must be broadly representative of SA people, with employment and personnel management practices based on ability objectivity fairness and the need to redress the imbalances of the past to achieve broad representation.
	The Department is representative of the South African people and is implementing diversity management measures.


	1. EE policies and plans are in place and reported upon.

2. All representivity targets are met.

3. Diversity management measures are implemented.


	· Part VI Public Service Regulations, 2001 as amended.

· EE Act, Act 55 of 1998.

· White Paper on the Transformation on Public Service – 15/11/1995.

· White Paper on Affirmative Action in the Public Service, 2001.


APPENDIX C: Performance
 overview and list of recommendations

	Name of department being monitored


	Office of the Public Service Commission.

	Overview of performance per principle
	The Department’s performance against all nine principles is reflected in the graph below.  Measurement is done by weighting and scoring the performance of the Department against specific standards linked to the performance indicator(s) for a particular principle.  A department can thus be scored between 0 or 0% (none of the standards have been met) and 5 or 100% (excellent performance on all the standards) per principle.

[image: image2.emf]Performance per principle

80%

70%

60%

100%

100%

90%

50%

70%

100%

80%

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100% 120%

Average

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Principles 

% Performance


The average result of 80% indicates that performance against most of the principles is good.


	Recommen-dations 
	Sixteen recommendations are made in this report that needs to be implemented within specific time frames.  Within six months of receipt of this report the Chief Directorate: Governance Monitoring will do a follow-up on the progress made with the implementation of these recommendations.  The number of recommendations per principle is captured in the Table below, followed by the specific recommendation(s) per principle.

Principle

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

Total

Recommendations

1
1
3
-
-
1
4
4
2
16
% of total

6%
6%
19%
6%
28%
28%
13%
100%




	Principle
	Recommendations

	Principle 1: Professional Ethics
	1. A policy/guideline on managing cases of misconduct is in place

The OPSC should before the end of the 2011/12 financial year ensure that all managers attend a refresher course on the management of discipline.


	
	2. Capacity of the OPSC to handle cases of misconduct 

The recommendation made at paragraph 1 above is reiterated, namely that the PSC should before the end of the 2011/12 financial year ensure that all managers attend a refresher course on the management of discipline.  This should be a priority for the PSC.



	Principle 2: Efficiency, Economy and Effectiveness
	The achievement of priority outputs

The PSC should, within the next financial year (2011/12), improve their project planning process to ensure that strategic decisions on the importance of a project in relation to the manpower and funds to complete the project and the strategic objectives of the PSC are taken before these are agreed upon outputs for the workplan.  Failure to do so will keep on impact negatively on the overall performance of the PSC’s core functions.  Likewise, it will dent the image of the PSC as a custodian of good governance.


	Principle 3: Development-Oriented Public Administration
	1. Good project management standards
The PSC should ensure that:

· All project proposals for the 2012/13 financial year are completed prior to the strategic planning session for that period indicating the time (days) and capacity (human and financial resources) needed for completion of the project, as well as the risk involved if the project is not taken on.

· All projects are duly considered and prioritised (quantity or quality) against the scope/complexity of a project, the available human capacity, financial resources and risks attached to a project.

· Only those priority projects are taken on which can be completed within the available man-days and which can be properly financed.

The implementation of this recommendation will ensure that the PSC will produce reports of a higher quality because of better in-depth analyses.  Reports will be delivered timeously which in turn will have a better impact.


	
	2. A system for recording lessons learnt is in place
The PSC should explore the possibility of putting in place a formal and structured system of recording lessons learnt.  This could be shared during branch and/or strategic planning sessions to enhance the execution of planned projects.


	
	3. Success of the projects
The PSC should before the end of the 2011/12 financial year:

· Embark on a follow-up process on recommendations made at dialogues on the findings of reports on poverty reduction projects.

· Assess the impact of these reports to establish whether the assessment of poverty reduction programmes should remain a priority output or whether resources utilised in the execution of these projects could not be utilised better elsewhere in the organisation.



	Principle 6: Accountability
	1. The adequacy of internal financial controls
The PSC should with immediate effect assign the responsibility to an official to record the date on which all invoices have been received as well as doing a daily follow-up on the payment of each invoice to ensure that it has been paid within the 30 day period.


	Principle 7: Transparency
	1. The departmental AR
The presentation of the AR
The AR needs to be translated into at least two other official languages to accommodate other ethnic groups.



	
	Reporting on performance in the AR
The PSC should ensure that the projects reported on in the AR for the 2010/11 financial year are exactly the same as what appears in the MTSP for the same period or provide a reason for omission or additional projects to prevent confusion between what is reported and what was indicated as planned in the MTSP.


	
	2. The implementation of PAIA
The appointment of Deputy Information Officers (DIOs) to deal with requests for access to information
The PSC should with immediate effect, in terms of Section 17 (6)(a) of PAIA, appoint the DIOs in writing and ensure that the duties of a DIO (Sections 18 to 49 of PAIA) are included in their job descriptions and performance contracts for the 2011/12 financial year.


	
	The availability of a Manual on Access to Information (MAI)
Although the MAI is translated into three official languages, the PSC should strive to translate the MAI into all the official languages albeit it is not a requirement.


	Principle 8: Good Human Resource Management and Career Development Practices
	1. Recruitment

1.1 Time taken to fill a vacancy

Measures should be put in place immediately to ensure that vacancies are advertised soon after a resignation has been received, and that interviews should take place within 30 days after the closing date of the advertisement.  A good strategy is to split the recruitment process as follows:  30 days as running period for the vacancy; 30 days to complete the short listing and interviews; and 30 days to obtain approval and appoint the successful candidate.  Adhering to this guideline will ensure that vacancies are filled in a timely manner and that service delivery is not affected negatively.


	
	1.2 Regular management reporting on recruitment

The Deputy Director-General: Corporate Services, with immediate affect should ensure that monthly progress reports to management at least include the following:

· The post designation.

· The date the post became vacant.

· The date on which the post was advertised.

· The date of appointment.

· The reason(s) for delay(s).

Providing this information to EXCO and EXMA will enable management to take informed decisions about strategies for improvement.


	
	2. Skills Development

2.1 The existence of a skills development plan

The PSC should with immediate effect conduct a skills audit on the skills already possessed by all officials.  This will enable the Office to put an informed strategy in place for providing focussed training to close the skills gap.



	
	2.2 Performance against the skills development plan

The PSC should annually:

· Ensure that planned skills development activities are aligned with the skills gap identified through a skills audit.
· Evaluate the impact of skills improvement on the PSC’s service delivery.

The implementation of this recommendation will assist the PSC to provide focussed training and ensure improvement in service delivery.



	Principle 9: Representivity
	1. The existence of an equity policy and plan

The PSC should before the end of the 2010/11 financial year:

· Review both the EE Policy and EE Plan to ensure that it complies with all the requirements of sections 1 and 20 of the Employment Equity Act, 1998, (Act No 55 of 1998).

· Ensure that both the EE Policy and EE Plan are approved.

· Ensure that both these documents are submitted to the Department of Labour.


	
	2. The achievement of representivity targets

The PSC should with immediate effect address the representivity imbalances which occur in respect of the overall number of Blacks on the establishment in relation to the Black economically active population in the Province, and the number of women at top and senior management level.



	Conclusion
	The 16 recommendations listed in this Appendix as well as the findings will be used as the basic monitoring template.  This will be fed into the tracking of implementation of recommendations by the Chief Directorate: Governance Monitoring.
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Process of implementing the System in Departments
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Process of implementing the PSM&ES in Departments
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Process of implementing the PSM&ES in Departments





Notification to sampled departments





Send letters to department, Minister, Member of the Executive Council and Director-General (D-G)/Head of Department (HoD) explaining the purpose, process and requesting a contact person.


Attach the Assessment Framework of the System and list of documents needed.





Introductory meeting with department





Obtain name of a contact person within the department


Meet with D-G/HoD and top management of department to explain the System and obtain buy-in.





Produce draft report





Obtain and analyse information.


Assess performance against defined performance indicator(s) for each principle.


Identify areas of good practice and/or problem areas.


Write main and summary report.





Presentation of draft results to department





Discuss results of assessment with D-G/HoD and top management of department.


Give opportunity to submit written comments within 10 days of presentation.





Final report





Include comments of department in report and make amendments if necessary.


Submit final report to PSC for approval.


Send approved report to department.





Consolidated report





Collate information of individual reports into one consolidated report.


Submit report to Parliament and Executive Authorities.








� Legal deposit in terms of the Legal Deposit Act is defined as City Library Services (Bloemfontein), the Library of Parliament (Cape Town), the National library (Pietermaritzburg), the South African Library (Cape Town), the State Library (Pretoria), the National Film, Video and Sound Archive for the purpose of certain categories of documents prescribed (Pretoria), or any other library or institution prescribed by the Minister for purposes of certain prescribed categories of documents.
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